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o VA men, and three perfons on your part, going into Peclebut, fhall take an accounc of the
effeéts : T faid that this was a new matier, and which had not been agreed upon between
is 3 to which the Colonel replicd, if you will not comply with this propofal there will be &
difturbance in the Englith camp. On hearmﬁ‘thxs.l difcovered Colonel Champion was:
forced into this meafure, and that he could not help it; therefore from friendfhip to hitn I .
faid 'no more on the fubje@, but that, weighing the matter, I would comply with it the next
day, After this the Colonel wrote me, that it was neceflary to fend the perfons into the city
then. When 1 faw he was thus hafty, though in the heat of noon, I went to Colonel
Champion, and afked him what gentlemen would go into Peelebut; on which, calling Mr.
Murray, Colonel Leflie, and Major Hannay before me, he faid, thsfc are'the three gentle-
‘men who will go and take the account : 1 faid, between Mr. Haftings and me there is no
agreement to this purport, and from the firft there will be no more than four or five thou-
fand Rupees in Peelebur; but fuppofing there fhould be treature, what bufinefs have the
gentlemen with it, for never was any thing of this kind granted before 2 To this Mr. Mur-
ray faid to me, ¢ Previous to this the war was with the Marateas, in which no country, &c.
t was in queftion, on which account nothing.of this kind was urged; but now, if people
« from the ¥nglith do not go into the fort, the Seapoys will plunder the whcle country.”
The Colonel, hearing this, reproved him, faying, ¢ This difcourfe is not proper.”
After this I faid, * Though this matter is not in my agreement, it is of no cpnquucnce,
« give me the fum I am to pay to Mr, Haftings for this bufinefs, in lieu of which take
« what you fay is in Peelebut, and give me a receipt:” to this no reply was returned,
but they remained fixed in their refolution,  After this I obferved, that if Englith people
went now into Peelebut, in future to whatever city or place we went the fame debate would
enfue 3 in reply they faid, that thould not be the cafe at any other place, it was for this
place only they debated.  On this, fpeaking to Major Hannay, I faid, ¢ This once is im-
« material to fatisfy the gentlemen, I will be filent; but this 1 declare, if henceforward
« at any place fimilar demands are made, I will quit the country as it is'and return to my
¢« own.” Major Hannay telling what I faid to Colonel Leflie in Englifh, Colonel Leflie, ad-
drefling himfelf to Colonel Champion, faid in Englifh, ¢« Well, well,” that is, ¢ good, good ;”
for though I do not underftand Englifh, I have particwlar reafons for faying I am right in
this particular, 1 told the gentlemen that fending people wopld only be produétive of ac-
quiring a bad name, but that for their fazisfaction I yielded, Finally, thefe gentlemen went,
' but rerurned without fuccefs : and the truth is, that originally there were not above four or
five thoufand Rupees in Peelebut 5 but if there had been, what bufinefs was it to the gentle-
men, feeing that, when this war was firft concerted between you and me, this circumitance
was never mentioned ¢ Moreover I am entirely employed about the {um agreed to be paid,
nor will I be neglectful. Why did the gentlemen talk to me in this way ? I was altonithed,
having never experienced from the Englith gentlemen before that the Chief was fet afide,
and I obliged to converfe with other gentlemen.  With you, Sir, and other Governors, as
Lord Clive, &c. I have long had friendfhip, but never did the Chief fit by and every
other fpeak feparately. It is now above nine years that there has been ftrict friendfhip be-
tween the Englith and me, and every day increafing; but I never conceived from our
friendfhip that there would be room for the breadth of a hair of difpute, and I have been
beyond meafure employed to preventit.  Till now too, whatever is fit and proper has been
fhewn by the Englifh, Gentlemen, except now that this extraordinary argument is introduced.
To you it is known how immenfe my expenfes have been for thefe three years paft, and
for performance of the agreement between us I am employed night and day’; but if hence-
forward, ar whaiever places there may be treafure, this fort of demand is to be made, I
i thall have difficulty thereir.  Yourfelt are judge whether or not what I write be true, but -
never had I this Kind of argument with the I<nglifh, that money in idea, and that was not
agreed on, fhould be talked of, and a freth bufinefs and new difcourle be begun, and the
Chief being difpiaced, every man urge his own demand forcibly. Do you weigh ‘this
matter maturely, and exprefs your difpleafure to the gentlemen, that this may not again
occur, and this practice may not happen of fetring the Chief alide, and every man being
his own mafter, and doing whatever he wills : in faét this never was the practice wit
“"the Englith Chiefs. A
| You and I are now remote from each other; but my bufinefs is with you, who are the._ -
AR head of all affairs.  Whomever you confirm as Chief, he is fo, and no other, ’chcrc'rgprﬁ?g" s
’ henfion is requifite in this matter, that in future any thing of the like nature may not hap-
pen, and that new matters contrary to agreements may not be fpoken of. 1 am’ perfetly
affured of your friendfhip, and to whatever agreements are between us am Vfirm, Itis
proper you repair this, {o that it will not again happen, and our friendthip will ‘daily in- -
“ereafe. Regard what you fay and do, ahd fpeedily fend me a reply, for from you am I
full of hope. Having related the whole diftinétly to Mr. Middleton, he will write i, -
: 4 %. I[:j. RSBERTS;‘; b ok
& erfan Interpreter,  ©
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g Extra& Perfian I reter’s Journal, 2d May 1774.
FPVHE Vizier tranfmitted the Colonel copy of a Letter, whichy if he approved of; No. 1, B, .
1 fhould be fent to the Governor. [ We were afterwards informed, that the original had it
been difpatched to the Governor two days preceding.]  The Colonel defired me to point out W
feveral mifreprefentations in it, which he directed his Moonfhee to alter while I remained. I i
affured him that he was quite miftaken in the converfation of which he complains, for that it

was neither paffionate or difrefpectful. ;

B e . R. E. ROBERTS,
: i Perfian Interpreter.

Extra& Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 6th May 1774

HE Colonel mentioned to the Vizier, that many poor Rohillas, who had been cruelly No. 1. €.
“uled by the troops, had applied to him for proteétion ; the Vizier Eonfented that it

might be given to their families' and perfons, but not to their effects, which were now his £

right. He mentioned that Nudjiff Khan had come down to affit him in this war, but y

fuppofed, as it was now over, that he would return. ~ The Vizier delired the night before thac

Buffunt’s battalion might be fent on to prote¢t Biffoulee ; on our arrival there we found

thefe very men had plundered it in the moft cruel and (hameful manner.

Nudjiff Khan vi(ll)ted the Colonel ; he expreffed his difappointment in not having been
. able to join us befote the battle; that the country was now quite fertled ; and that, by the
Vizier’s defire, he had confined Doondy Khan’s {ons.

»

R. E. ROBERTS.

Tranflation of a Letter from Fyzoolla Khan to Colonel Champion. Received
14th May 1774.

FTER the death of my father, thefe gentlemen (the Rohilla Chiefs) took poifeffion N, -,

of my ancient eftate, and gave me a trifle for my fubfiftence: this is as evident as
the fun ; furely it is known to you ; I therefore from neceflity fuppurted myfelf with difficuley.
The perfon who defigned the war is no more. . Regarding your facred friendthip and fin-
cerity, I requell, without other intervention, that the degree of friendfhip with you may be
confirmed. ~ Your goodnefs and celebrity is every where known, and that you difpoflefs no ; i
one, This trouble therefore is given, that in cafe I am reinftated in my ancient pofieflions,
whatever may:-be conferred upon me, I will pay youas much, without any damage or defi-
ciency, as any other perfon will agree to do; and in all matiers I will regard you as my
malter and benefator till death, but no other perfon. My agreements on no account will [
depart from, and, God willing, I will perform them with my heare and foul,  Whenever ye
require it I will attend ye, and perform my duty and my firm alliance, I hope in God
that by your means 1 fhall receive juftice, which goodnefs I fhall hold in remembrance while ol
I have life. I would have fent afaithful perfon to ye to have explained all particulars, but :
the roads not being free prevented me. :

If ye will fend a man te me, mine accompanying him fhall atrend you.

! R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

.

From Ahmed;Khan, Kbanfuman to Colonel Champion, Received 14th May i,774, i

~ ONG before this Furtah Khan Khanfuman, deceafed, performed his duty to the No, 3
2 Englifh Chiefs, At his death I was left fingly, and Hahz Rhamut Khan took that op-
portunity to feize half my country, and confer it on my brother Azeem Kbam, by which I

attained not-m'y'h'ctlcditk% eftate ; I therefore withdrew my connexion with him, but he
forcibl

cartied me with him forcibly. When the Nabob Vizier's Letter to confole me was received, % ﬁ
I wifhed to join him and youj 1 declared my ‘dﬁ%l 3 'but whit'could 1 do, for Hafiz 5
‘j{ il ‘; 4 ’ ! .'3,:‘ —l: l; ’ i;’ r‘; ;. y 5 o ) Av ‘~ ‘ g Y & 5, 8 = LA o by R Th woufd ; J/&,'
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would not let me go? This will have reached you from others throughqut Indoftan: there the
Englifh beneficence is founded, and it is manifeft to :_111 that they difpoffefs no one of his
right; it is therefore requefted, that in our (the Rohillas) Pamcuhr compaffion mmay be
fhewn, and whatever be thought juft beftowed. By God’s afliftance, from the dues of fide-
lity and duty I will never deviate the breadth of an hair. ~ As Fyzoolla Khan has true cfteent
for me I quitted him not, but accompanicd him to this fort. ¥rom your honor and clemency
areply to this Addrefs is intreated ; it was neceflary it fhould b¢ made. May you ever profper?

. R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian loterpreter.

From Colonel Champion to Fyzoolla Khan, 16th May 1774.

OUR Letter is received, and gives me pleafure. The particulars are clear. My reply is

this: this country is not taken into the poffefiion of the Englifh, but, in confequence
ot engagements, the Englifh army is come to the aid and affiftance of the Nabob
Vizier, who is now mafter of this country. Agrecably to your defire 1 communicared the
particulars of your Letter to the Vizier, and this is his reply, that he did not cbufe any
Patan Chief fhould have fettlement in this country ; I therefore faid no more: but if you
or Ahmed Khan fhould wifh to come to me, for ye and your family, and to Ahmed Khan
and his family, I will give protection, that no perfon fhall give you the fmalleft moleftation ;
but of your country and effects the Nabob Vizier is now mafter : your defires are made
known to him ; and if you can fettle your affairs agreeably to his pleafure, it will be very ad-
vifable, and in this agreement I alfo fhall be very glad.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

From Colonel Champion to Ahmed Khan, 16th May 1774.

OUR reprefentation is received and the particulars known. All that you have written

in excufe for your conduét 1 have communicated to the Nabob Vizier, and his deter-
mination is this, that no perfon of the Rohilla tribe fhall have refidence in this country,
1 write to advife you explicitly of the Vizier’s pleafure, that you may aét accordin%., to i,
Should you at any time wifh to come to me, for yourfelf and family I will afford tull pro-
tetion ; but your country and effects are now the property of the Nabob Vizier.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter,

Fyzoolla Khan to Colonel Champion. Received 24th May.

REVIOUS to this I addrefied you with a reprefentation of my condition, which
P from it will be evident to you. Juft now 1 have received a Letter from the Nabob
Vizier; I have returned in reply to it, that through your mediation I will come in to him.
This trouble therefore is given, to beg you will write me of whatever you have determined
in my favour, that acting agreeable to it, and arriving by your means, I may obtain an inter-
view. From whatever promifes and agreements 1 make I will not deviate the breadth of
a hair,

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

L

Extra& from the Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, the 24th May 1774.-

COLONEL Champion received a Letter from Fyzoolla Khan, intimating his having
before written that he had juft received a Letter from the Vizier, to which he had re-
plied, that through the Colonel’s mediation he would come in; he therefore begs the
Colonel will acquaint him what determination has been made regarding him, which he will

6 g act
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actconformably to; and declares the fteadinefs with which he will abide by any agreements
he may enter into.

In -confequence of the above Colonel Champion advifed the Vizier by Letter, that if
he would give an aflurance in writing, that Fyzoolla Khan fhould not be moleited by his
people on his way, he would fend for him, his family, treafure, and effects, and they fhould
remain under his proteétion until inftructions in this matter fhould come from below,
Elich Kban came to acquaint the Colonel, that if he would fend for Fyzoolla Khan hither,
the Vizier would promife not to moleft him in any way, but that he would not agree to his
remaining here; inftead of which he fhould go immediately to Calcutta, and there abide
by the Governor’s pleafure. The Colonel then mentioned his wifhes that the fituation
of the family of Hafiz and of Mabulla Khan were rendered eafier, which Elich Khan
promifed his endeavour to effect.

R. E. ROBERTS,

Perfian Interpreter.

From Colonel Champion to Fyzoolla Khan, 27th May 1774.

NOW advife you that the two following propofals are offered to you : firft, the Vizier No, 8,

will not confer on you, or any other Rohilla perfon, one foot of land in this country ;
but he will give you an equal quantity with what ye pofleficd bere in the country of the
Doab, provided you will now pay him twenty Lacks of Rupees: on this conditien come
fatisfied. The fecond propofal, fhould you not accept of the firft, is, that you, with
your family, domedtics, treafure, and effeéts, but without troops, come in and meer mej
after which you will proceed direétly into the Englith diftriéts, wherever may be beft, and
remain there till the pleafure of the Board in this particular is written to me. The rea~
fon of this is, that the Vizier does not chufe you fhould remain here. 1 now give you
my promife of proteclion, and fend ye a pafs under the Vizier’s feal, and one under my
own. ‘Which ever of thefe offers ye chufetoaccept, act agreeably ; but fhould neither of them
be agreeable to you, you are your own mafter, therefore fend the pafles back to me.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

From Fyzoolla Khan to Colonel Champion. Received 27th May 1774.

OUR gracious Letter is received and the particulars comprehended.  You write, that
this country is not come into the poficflion of the Englifh, but that, in confequence
ot engagements between the Lnglith and Vizier to give him affiftance, their troops
came into this country, of which the Vizier is now lord : that agreeably to the Letter, hav-
ing told all the particulars to the Nabob, his pleafure is this, that no Chief of the Rohilla
tribe fhall have fettlement in this country, therefore that in this matter I {hould attempt
no further. The cale is this : I bave never aéted in fuch manner that the Vizier thould have
taken hatred to his heart againft me, but it was the difturbances of other Chiefs which
afflicted his noble heart ; in that I am guildefs: therefore I trouble you, that if the coun-
try is not in your pofieflion, the management of it finally will be put into the hands of
others; it is better therefore to accept of it from me. 1f 1t is in the Nabob’s dominions,
foregoing every other connexion, I will take it through yourmeans.  Iam in hopes chat the
Nabob’s favour being regained, that this country will be put under my charge, and whatever
any others may offer for it 1 will bind myfelf to perform. In reply to Leiters reccived
from the Vizier, calling me in to him, I have replied, that whatever may be his pleafure
regarding me, he fhall advife you of it, that by your means 1 may come to his prefence.
Your bravery and generofity are as evident as the fun, and whoever lofes his country by
war is again replaced in it. 1 wifh to take it (the country) purely through you ; then by
your favour let us not lofe our country.  In the dues of friendfhip and fidelity 1 will never
fail, and while 1 jive thall be obedicntto your commands,  Abdulrhum Khan and Hudahmert
Qulla ] haye fent to you, In the matter of my offer for receiving the country of my father,
whatever is my ability to give they will reprefent to you; agreeably to that, thewing the
dues of lottlinels anz compaflion, your fame will refound through the woild.
T NS e

UYERPeR R. E. ROBERTS,
0 Perfian Interpreter,
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(mmwc -at this time. tbat L.e;cm nwariivcd with you from Jm Ma;eﬁy, whercn he

i&njoins ye to come to hioy without any npprehenﬁons 1 write ye, that having

ited your condition to. the Board at Calcutta, and-in a friendly manner hamg

regommended the fetclement of them to the Governor, 1 wait impatiently for replies. Ia'

this cafe 1 think it necefiary and advifable, that ye do not comply with the King's defites -

~ until anfwers come from"Calcurea; whenever they do come they fhall be immediately tranf~
mitted to you 3 in this matter thete {hall be no ncgle:& on my part,

+

12,

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Intérpreter.

I‘rom (.eloncl Champxon to Fyzoolla :khan, junc 2 5th 1 774
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in pofleflion of the Nabob Vizier, and he ruler thereof, whatever ke Ezcychu ‘to do
the fettlement of it, it would not be proper for them to interfere in. I in confequence

ry being

fe you, that as they have written that they cannot interfere, that without their concur-

n'.mél alone am not able to do it. T have exerted the cfforts of friendfhip and ability. in
our concerns, as Abdulchum Khan, who is here, is well convinced of : having now difmiffed
im, he will return to you, and, telling ye all particulars, will aflure youa that I have done

every thing I was able, but now can do no more.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.
~From Colonel Champion to the Nabob Zabita Khan, at Delhi, gth Ju!y.”._'-f;‘]f'?:‘
XXTHAT you have written regarding fending Mr. Redman is underftood. From the
friend(hip between us I doubt not but you will fend him, but to this time nothing
has been heard of him, nor have you wrote about him ; it is extraordinary too that erc this
he is not returned to Nejeebabad. I hepe that you will iffue the mofl pofitive orders in this L gt
matter, that, by whatever means he i§ taken, he may be fent to me, which will giveme * TR
'tldl u‘ufc. .. . h \‘. - 0

T have received advice that your officers in your diftricts fupply the camp of Fyzoolla - » 2 .,,-
Khan with grain and other neceffaries 3 the hearing this has difpleafed the Nabob Vizier and brhid
myfelf alfo. From the friendfhip and connexion between us it is not proper you fhould b

give affiftance to our enemies. If you value the friendfhip of the Nabob Vizier and of the
Englith, ye will give the moft pofitive diretions, thaton no account they fupply the camp
of - Fyzoolla with grain and other neceffaries ; and without the confent of your people they
could not fupply themfelves by force; you will therefore be pleafed to iffue the moft poli-
tive commandsthat they difcontinve this in future. 'Y ou write that Mr. Redman has quitted Ne-
jeebabad ; but he cannot get out of our country without the knowledge of your people, and
2 thercfore muft ftill be in it. Your own Vackeel will write you all particulars, I beg to be fa-
voured with your Letters,

R. E. ROBERTS, =
Perfian Interpreter, =~

Subftance of a converfation between Colonel Champion and the Vizier, 17th
g © July 1774. 3
' HE Colonel intimated to the Nabgb, that Mr. Middleton had been with him the pre-
§ ceding evening, but that in future, when he (the Nabob) wifhed to fee him on bufinets,
and was unable to come out, if she would acquamnt him, he (the Colonel) would attend him,
My reafon for fending Mr. Middleton, faid he, was this; Mr, Haftings has hinted to me to
\ | effeétually fettle the country as foon as T pofiibly can, that incafe another enemy fhould a
pear after the rains, and perhaps both the . Marattas and Timur Shah may, 1 may be able
to withdraw my troops from this country, without there being any rifque of its being at-
‘tacked ; and on this account, it the Colonel approves, we will now move towards Fyzoolla
“Khban, who cannot efcape, and may be got at without much difficulty. The nel . re-
plied, that as the featon was fo far advanced, and the camp equipage fo extremely bad; he
withed to avoid .moving now, as it would be attended with the lofs of a number of men ;
“ but he advifed the Vizier to fend more troops to Moradabad, faid he would order
. ovr battalions to be ready to march at 2 mom:nt’s notice, and that if the ene;
%, Arone their prefent fituation, he would march with the brigade to
" lonel addgd, if he remained there, he would move with the army
: fnd of the rains, and before they coulq get away,  Albthis
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To Colonel Galliez,

Dsar Cotonrr,
J T is very probable we fhall be under the neceffity of taking the ﬁe}d fooner than I ex-
I pected; you will therefore pleafe privately to direct the commanding officer of artil=
lery to have every thing ready in his department, as alfo the Contractor ; and what wax-cloth
you may think neceffary for the mens’ arms, and better fecurity of their ammunition, direct

it to be got in readinefs with all expedition.
Iam, &c.

Head Quarters, A. CHAMPION.

Camp near Bifloulee,
July 18th, 1774.

Extra& from the Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 24th July 1774.

N converfation this morning Colonel Champion ufed every argument, but in vain, to

diffuade the Nabob from marching ; repeating the mortality that would enfue to the Eu-
ropeans, &c. &c. that the Board would be difpleafed, and ftores fall fhort. He perfifted
in declaring it was abfolutely neceflary to march, and that when we were at Nigib-Gur
we could ftarve the enemy. The Colonel at length agreed, that if his Excellency would
write an affurance that the march was abfolutely neceflary, and would furnith the neceffary
conveniencies of tents, &c. he would move, though he knew not what to do with the fick,
nor approved of leaving the ftore-boats fo far behind. His Excellency promifed every
thing. On being afked, he faid he knew not Fyzoolla Khan’s intentions, but believed he
could not efcape any way, for that the Hill Rajahs would probably refufe all fupplies on the
approach of the army. -

The Vizier fent the Letter the Colonel had required.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

Extra&t fromeCaptain Shewin’s Journal, from 23d to 311t July.

July 23. H E Nabob's battalions of infantry broke ground this forenoon, and marched

towards Moradadad. ;

24. Attended by Perfian Interpreter I went this morning on particular bufinefs to the
Vizier Sujah-ul-Dowlah.

Iffued orders for the troops to hold themfelves in readinefs to march.

25. This morning 1 paid the Vizier a vifit.

2%. Ordered that the troops march off the 29th in the morning.

28. T went this morning to fee the Nabob. The order of march countermanded by an
after general order. .

29. Ordered that the troops march from their cantonments to-morrow morning at
three o’clock.

30. The army marched agrecable to the orders of yefterday, croffed a Puckah Bridge
contiguous to Biffoulce Fort, and reached near to the town of Chandoufy, our
courfe being W. N. W ; at ten o’clock diftance computed to be feven one
half Cofs. The tents having been fent on with the Quarter-Mafter General
two days previous to the marching of the troops, they were all pitched and
ready for their reception, in confequence of my orders te that purpofe. Re-

Col. Champion’s Anfwe to the Charges of Sujah Dowla. Appendix, N"XX“VI& ;

turns of the ftate of the regiment and the artillery were delivered in to me; . .
by the former it appeared, that when the regiment arrived at its ground two

hundred and forty-fix men had fallen in the rear on the line of march,®and
complained loudly of the want of water and of the heat of the weather. One
ferjeant and twenty-one rank and file were fo ill as to be fent immediately on
their coming to their ground to the camp holpital, and one private was fent
back to the hofpital at Piﬂbulec. Of the corps of artillery thirty-two rank and
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i) file were left behind on the march, not being able to keep up, owing to the ex-
treme heat of the weather. The brigade to halt to-morrow.

31, The army halted. I iffued orders for the troops to march to-morrow at three

o’clock, A, M.

EDWARD SHEWIN, Aid de Camp.

Extra& from Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, July z3.

OLONEL Champion advifed his Excellency, that in confequence of his Letter re-
C ceived laft night the brigade fhould be gotin readinefs to march as {oon as poffible.

The Colonel allo acquainted Fyzoolla Khan, that having already failed to fucceed in his

offers to ferve him, he therefore returns his Vackeel, and alfo the horfes, which he begs to

be excufed accepting.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

Extract from Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 26th July.

OLONEL Champion acquainted his Excellency, that both himfelf and Colonel Gal-

liez being ill, the march muft be deferred two or three days ; alfo that the brigade
being near three months in arrears of pay, it is neceffary to iflue their allowances ere they go
to prevent defertion,

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

Extra& from Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 2oth June.
P

OLONEL Champion attended the Vizier, and gave him for perufal the above Letter

of his Majefty’s, in which were enclofed a copy of his own agreement, and the Letter
of Nudjiff Khan, Before he opened the Letter he declared it to have been done with a delign
to prejudice Nudjifft Khan in the Colonel’s opinion, and the motive of the Letter to be very
different from a friendly one. On reading his own engagement he cdnfefied the authenticity
of it, but faid it was made on exprefs condition that the King joined him with his troops
in the war, for which purpofle he had advanced fifty thoufand Rupees; but that as his
Majefty had not joined him, and thereby departed from his agreement, it could not be ex-
pected that he could fulfil his,  Afterwards his Excellency mentioned, that Roganaut Row,
who had fled from the Deckan, had fent propofals to him, which he hoped the Englith
would concur in, as they would prove for the mutual advantage of both ; but he mentioned
not what they were. At taking leave he gave the Colonel the original agreement on the
part of the King, written alfo in a Coran ; but the tenor of it was not what the Vizier had
faid, being as follows : ¢ That the friends of the Vizier were his friends, and his enemies
¢« alfo hisj that he would never difmifs him from the Viziret and other offices while the
¢ empire endured ; that of whatever countries the Vizier thould fubdue, he (the King)
¢« would retain himfelf, and confer the other moiety on the Vizier; that he would protect
¢ no dependant of the Vizier, but be careful of his life and honor; and that having con-
« ferred the Province of Oude, as an eftate on the Vizier and his children, he would give
« to no perfons aflignments on that Province, or on the half of the conquered countries

¢ that were to be given to the Vizier.”

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

Extra& from the Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 12th June.

TAHE Colonel vifited the Vizier, and informed him, that the preceding day he had

B received a Letter from the Board, in which he is defired to advife him (the Vizier)
that the fervice for which the brigade was fent up being compleated, by the whole Rohilla
i d T \ country

.
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country being put into his pofffiion, they require a performance of his engagement, by the
paymcz;tb:;n fghep ‘f]ti;;:::red fﬁ(r)g Lacks of }i'(upccs to the Compa_ny. The Vizier aﬂcc,_d’., with
amuch furprize, if this was any new condition the Board had written about, asotherwife thgy
might be fenfible, that according to his engagements he was obliged to pay the afqrcfald
fum whenever he thought proper to difmifs the brigade, which was left entirely at his own
difpofal, but not before : that though the country was in his poffeffion, the engagements
ran, that the ercmy were to be expelled the country, which was not now the cafe, he faid,
they being ftill in it.  He then read a Letter from himfelf to the Governor in confirmation
of the above ; and the Colonel having previoufly obferved, that the money in queflion be-
came due if half caly of the country had come into his hands, he denied it, faying, ¢ The
<« engagement exprefled the Rohilla country from the borders of my country to the foot of
¢ the hills.””  On returning home, the Colonel finding the above Letter did not agree with

-the tranflation tranfmitted him, requefted the Vizier would give him a copy of the Letter he

had read in the conference ; he fent copies of two Letters he had written the Governor,
which on perufal Tfound agreed exaltly with the Colonel’s, and the Vizier had left out the
two conditions, of the forty Lacks being due when half the counrry fhould be fubdued, or
an accommodation take place.

R. E. ROBERTS,
LPerfian Interpreter,

Extra& from the Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 13th June.

IS Excellency waited on the Colonel on the fubjet of the converfation yefterday, and

repeated the fame arguments. The money, faid he, is now in my truft for the Com-
pany, and whenever I return the brigade it fhall certainly be paid.  He defired the Colonel
to acquaint the Governor, that whatever he had engaged he would ftri¢tly perform. He
added, that the Board might be affured he fhould not be at the expenfe of the brigade longer
than he conceived his affairs made its prefence neceflaty to their fecurity, and complained
of the Board’s being always ready to lay hold of any circumftance that would bear a difpute.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter,

Extra&t from.Captain Shewin’s Journal, from 1ft to 17th Auguft.

Auvguft 1. HE brigade broke ground this morning, conformable to my orders of
yefterday, marched five Cofs, and encamped on the banks of the Soat
river 3 our courfe about W. N. W, In this day’s march twenty-eight Euro-
peans dropped in the rear of the line of march, although the regiment reached
their ground before feven o’clock. A few topes on all fides of our encamp-
ment, but a fearcity of goad water. Violent rain fell this evening,

2. The army marched at three o’clock, and encamped three one half Cofs to
North and by Eaft of Sumbol ; diftance from our laft ground feven one half
LCofs. In this day’s march we croffed the Soat or Yarwaffadar river, and re-
croffed it by a Puckah bridge. The extent between the bridges the line were
overtaken by very heavy rain ere they reached their ground. Exceeding
good water at Sumbol, and fine topes furrounded our encampment. Received a
Letter from the officer commanding the brigade, reprefenting the want of
neceffaries for the regiment, and of the aveaknefs and infufficiency of the car-
riage, particularly of camels to carry the officers tents, which occafioned
many not reaching the ground till late in the afternoon. Received alfo a
Letter from the furgeons of the brigade, reprefenting the ill ftate of health
of the Europeans, and fetting forth what they imagined would be the confe-
quence of the troops keeping the field at this fcafon of the year, The fur-
geors likewife acquainted me with the great deficiency of Europe meficines of
every kind.  The army to halt to-morrow, ) o

3+ The brigade halted in confequence of my orders of yefterday, At ten o’clock
this morning the Vizier waited on me, he having advanced twoColxin ﬁ'o:;
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of his troops ; we had a long conference together, after which the Nabob
returned to his encampment.

he troops brgtc ground this morning at three o’clock, marched four Co's,
and encamped near to the town of Bachtah ; our route N. W, by W. nicfliy
through Jungle. An hour after the army marched very hard and fevere rain teli,
and continued the greateft part of the day, which rendered the camp equipage,
&c. inconvenient and burthenfome. In the courfe of this march thirty Lluro-
peans were left behind. When the line came toits ground ordered an additional
dram to be ferved to the regiment, the rain having affected them a good deal
ere they arrived at their encampment. By the morning report of the officer
commanding the brigade, it appears that there are no lefs than fitty-three
Europeans in the hofpital.

5. The army marched this morning at four o’clock, and arrived near to the town

of Poonpore at nine, being fix Cofs ; encamped on a rifing ground on the
banks-of an extenfive Jeel; lefc the village of Dedowly a Cols in ovr rear.
By the report of the officer commanding the brigade, there aie fifty-two Fu-
ropeans fick in the hofpital, and when the line came o its ground, it appearcd
that forty-two rank and file were unable to keep up.  Great fall of rain this
night.

The troops to halt to-morrow.
6. The army halted conformable to my orders of yefterday. This morning the

Nabob advanced before his troops to pay me a vifit.  Severe rain all the fore-
noon. It appears, by the report of the commanding officer of the brigude,
there are forty-five Europeans fick in the hofpital.  The brigade to march to-
morrow at the break of day.

7. The troops marched this morning at the precife time ordered, and reached their

ground about one-half a Cofs to the N. N. W, of Omroah at =ight o’clock 3
pafled the Nabob’s battalions of infantry that had marched from Biffoulee pre-
vious to the movement of the brigade, and left them encamiped a Cols in the
rear. The Vizier paid me avifit on my arrival at my ground. Maiched this
day five Cofs. The town of Omroah was in former days a well-built famous

lace, but is now in ruins; i’s extent near a Cofs in length ; the roads deep
and much broken. The grenadier corps to be formed to-morrow morning at
gun-firing, to be commanded by Major Hannay. The army to march to-
morrow at day-break.

8. The troops broke ground this morning agrecable to my orders of yefterday,

and marched fix Cofs ; encamped near the town of Sewallah. The line reached
its ground at nine o’clock, but owing to the extreme badnefs of the roads
thirty-two Europeans were unable to keep up. By the report of this day of

* the officer commanding the brigade, there are forty-five men, non-commiffioned

and private, fick in the hofpital. The brigade to march to-morrow at the
fame time and in the fame order as yefterday.

9. Thearmy quitted their ground this morning at the hour appointed, and reached

ncar to the town of Chanpore, where they encamped at eigit o’clock 5 dif-
tance five Cofs. The roads in this day’s march deep and very bad. Loud
complairts thefe three days of the fcarcity of grain of all kinds; and this day
in particular the troops were very clamorous, infomuch that, until a guard
was ordered to protect the grain brought into the Buzar at head quarters, they
would not allow the Chowdry time to weigh it.  When the line came to its
ground, many Seapoys had no fooner Jodged their arms, than they aflembled
in the town of Chanpore, and plundered it of a large quantity of all forts of
grain ; on intimation being brought me, 1 ordered a party of hotfe to the
town, who feized and brought in a number of rioters, Seapoys, followers
of the camp, &c. the Seapoys I fent under a guard to their different bat-
ralions to take their trials for their outrageous behaviour, and the followers
I ordered to be flogged. The Vizier came to my tents this morning to pay
me a vifit. The army to halt to-morrow.

" 10. The troops halted conformable to my orders of yefterday. By this day’s report of
* the officer commanding the brigade, there are fixty-five rank and file in

the hofpital.

11. The army marched this morning at day-break, and arrived at its ground at

nine o’clock ; encamped clofe to the village of Niffaporah, 1t being four Cofs;
pafled through the town of Sefowly, which I lefta Cofs in my rear; the roads
very tolerable in this day’s march. By the report given in this morning by
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the officer commanding the brigade, it appears five Europeans fell behind
on the line of march, and there are feventy-three fick in the hofpital. Our
route N. N. W. About fix o’clock this morn'xg extreme fevere rain fell,
which continued five hours without the fmalleft intermiffion. The Vizier
paid me a vifit immediately on my arrival at the ground.  Attended by my
Aid de Camps ] rode through and viewed the line of encampment at noon.
The troops to halt to-morrow. Complaints from all quarters of the want
of grain.

Aug. 12. The army halted in confcquence of my orders of yeflerday. For many hours
thic morning fucceflively very heavy rain. 1 paid the Nabob a vifi. The
troops to march to-morrow at day-break. _

13. The army was prevented from breaking ground this morning, agrecable to my
orders of yefterday, owing: to violent rain; but the weather clearing up at
fix o’clock, they marched off, and reached their encampment near to the rown
of Ganjour in four hours, being five Cofs; the route N. by E. The Nabob
Sujah-ul-Dowlah came to fee me this morning. The troops to march to-
morrow at day-break.

13. The order of march countermanded this evening on account of the fcarcity of
grain in the different Buzars.

14, The army halted in expectation of receiving a fupply of grain. Received a
Letter from the officer commanding the brigade, acquainting me that there
was deficiency of cvery article of provifions in the Buzar, and that many Sca-
poys have not been able te procure a grain of any fort thefe two days. A
fupply of provifions having arrived in camp this evening, the troops are to
march to-morrow at day-break.

15. The army marched this morning, purfuant to the order of ycfterday, and
reached its encampment at half paft nine o’clock. The tents for the troops
were pitched near to the town of Catelah ; diftance from our laft ground fix
Cofs; our courfe N. by E. The roads in this march very uneven, and in
many parts deep and much broken. About four Cofs to the northward of -
Ganjour the army crofled three bridges, which were thrown over the Choiah
Nullah by the Quarter-Mafter General, and at the diftance of a Cofs from
thefe it crofied over a Puckah bridge in a different part. The troops to
march to-morrow at the fame hour they did yelterday.

16. The line moved this morning at day-break, and arrived at its encampment,
within fight of the fort of Pattergur, at nine o’clock 3 the diftance fix Cofs
and a half from the laft ground, and our courfe N. E. by N. The roads in
general bad.  This morning the Nabob came to pay me a vifit, efcorted by
avery large body of horfe.  ‘The army to halt to-morrow.

17, The troops halted agreeable to orders of yefterday, 1 rode out early this
morning, attended by my Aid de Camps, to take a view of the ground and
of the Nuliah near to my encampment.

426

.
EDWARD SHEWEN, Aid de Camp.

Extralt from Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, Auguft 3d 1774.

No. 25, A, IS Excellency attended Colonel Champion, who mentioned his fears for the Europeans
if they proceeded ; on which his Excellency offered to carry cots for them. He men-
noned his expectations that the Marattas would foon be here, having been invited by the
King, but that the Rohillas would decline to fight. His Excellency told the Colonel, that
with his approbation he would write to Mr. Haftings, exprefling his fatisfaction at the conduét
of the army, and, with his confent, begging their acceptance of feven Lacks of Rupees, as a
teftimony of it, when the enemy was expelled. T'he Colonel exprefied his fatisfaction at the
offer, but defired a fmall feparate fum might be given for the feld officers, alfo a letter
fignifying his Excellency’s iutentions in order to be explained to the troops. All this
was promifed.

R. E, ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

Extratt
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»  Extra& from Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 12th Auguft and 13th.

12th, OLONEL Champion vifited his Excellency, who propofed to him to fend pro- no, 2;. B.
pofals for an accommodation to Fyzoolla Khan, The Nabob after his depariure |
fent the Colonel the following Letter, defiring he would write to Fyzoolla Khan to this §
tenor ; that of whatever effetts he (Fyzoolla Khan) might now be poflfefled, half fhould be :
given up to the Vizier, and he keep the other half; that friendfhip fhould take place between
them, and he (the Vizier) would confer a Tufficient quantity of country in the Doab, for the
maintenance of fifteen thoufand people, which he had taken from the Marattas. If thefe
propofals were accepted, he would bind himfelf to the performance during life ; and that if
Fyzoolla Khan would come in, and afterwards an accommodation fhould not take place, he
fhould be fecurely re-conducted to whence he came.
13th. Colonel Champion wrote a Letter to Fyzoolla Khan to the above purport, and ad-
vifing him by all means to accept of the Nabob’s propofals; alfo, that if he chofe to come in
to difcourfe on the fubject, perfons thould be fent to conduct him, and that if an agreement
did not take place, he fhould be fecurely conducted back.
The Colonel complained to the Vizier of the extreme fcarcity of grain, which was pro-
mifed to be removed direétly.

R. E. ROBERTS,

Perfian Interpreter.

Copy of a Letter from Fyzoolla Khan to Colonel Champion, 15th Auguft 1774.

O U R favouring Letter, accompanying copy of a Letter {rom the Nabob Vizier, being , ..
arrived gives me pleafure., I have the fincereft friendfhip for you, and efteem you '~
in all conditions as my firm friend. Our regard, and the zeal you have fhewn, are as clear
as the fun; and I never deviate from your advice. The fettlement for fifteen thoufand men
in the country of Doab, poffeffed by the Marattas, and now by the Natob Vizier, is ge-
neroufly beftowed ; but I forefee that whenever they come this way, being of force and
power, that country cannot remain with me. If I join them I muft break my engagements
(and I am not a breaker of my promifes) ; and if 1 do not I cannot ftay there. If the favour
of the Vizier and you are beftowed on me, fhew fo muchas to confer lands for fifteen thou-
fand people of my former country ; on this condition, by you, I pledge my promife ot
friendfhip to the Nabob; and between men there is no deviation from their word till death.
On your account, whoare a mediator, 1 will even preferve friendfhip for the Nabob Vizier,
and I will efteem his friends and his enemies as mine.  You write, that if I am willing to
come in you will fend a perfon to meet me, and that if this bufinefs fhall not be fettled,
that I fhall be faithfully conduéted to the place whence I fet out. T look on your houfe as
my own, and in all matters am perfeétly at eaf:; and fhould this bufiuels not be fettled,
and I return hither, it is not material, 1 fhall be favoured with meeting you 3 thus much
is befitting, that if you invite me, you thereby fhew fo much friendfhip, thar your name
will be celebrated through the world. In the copy of the Nabob Vizier’s Letter to you, it
is written, ¢ Whatever ¢ffects Fyzoolla Khan has, halt fhall be given to me, and half he
¢ fhall keep himfelf.”” If the Nabob will gracioufly beftow for the maintenance of fifteen
thoufand men of my former country, while I live I will never fwerve from friendfhip and
obedience to him and you; and whatever effects 1 have, on this condition, half fhall be
given to the Nabob ; but the firmly fettling all thefe macters is your charge.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

From the Nabob Vizier to Colenel Champion, 17th Auguft 1774.

particulars. Do you write him a reply to this purport ; that of whatever effeéts he has

will give me half, and that 1 will give him country in the Doab, which I took from the
Marattas, for the maintenance of fifteen thoufand men; and that him and me will enter

into mutual agreements, to which the Englith gentlemen fhall accede : that in future, if the
Marattas attempt to take the aforefaid country, I will join and affit Fyzoolla Khan to op-

i fafe them. This matter firmly agrecd on and determined I enter into by means of the Eng-

L : gentlemen. Do you write to this purport to Fyzoolla Khan, that he may be t'misﬁcd
R 5 A am

l HAVE perufed the copy of FyzoollaKhan’s Letter that you fent me, and I underftand the . -
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I am ready to give the aforefaid quantity of country, and to aid and affift him againft the
Marattas ; never, never will I be neglectfulin this mater. .

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

Extra@ from Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 15thand 17th Augutt 1774.

15th, REPLY was received from FyzoollaKhan, who exprefles his fincere gratitude to
the Colonel for the endeavours exerted in his favour. He objelts to accepting

country taken from the Marattas in the Doab, as in the cafe of their approach he obferves,
he muft cither break his engagements with the Vizier, and join them, or they will take the
country from him ; but he makes the firmeft declarations, that it the Nabob Vizier will
confer the like quantity of his former country, he will enter into the fincteft engagements
for his future loyalty, and accede to all reafonable demands 3 he adds, that on this condi-
tion the Nabob’s propofal fhall be dircétly agreed to. )

17th. A copy of the above having been tranfmitted to his Excellency, he this day fent
the follewing reply 5 that he adheres to his former propofal, and defires Golonel Champion
to acquaint FyzoollaKhan fo 3 and that the Englifh will be witneffes to the agreement be-
tween them, and alfo to his always crofling the river to his (Fyzoolla Khan’s) aid and
aflitance whenever the Marattas may attempt to attack him; and that therzfore he need
not hefitate to accept the country in the Doab.

Colonel Champion accordingly wrote to Fyzoolla Khan, enclofing a copy of his Excel-
lency’s Letter, and urging him to accept of the conditions; at any rate advifing him te
come here to difcourfe on the fubject.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpretes.

Extra&t from Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 2oth Auguft 1774.

REPLY to the laft Letter to Fyzoolla Khan was reccived, in which he returns his fincere

acknowledgments for Colonel Champion’s friendly and repeated offices in his faveur.
He adds, that being unable to write fo much as he has to fay, he begs Mt. Joho Murray
may be fent to him, to learn from him and relate to the Colonel all particulars,

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

Letter from the Nabob Vizier to Colonel Champion, 2oth Auguft 1774.

YZOOLILA Khan’s Letter, which came to you and was fent to me, 1 have perufed,

and clearly underftand the parriculars.  As Fyzoolla Khan has fent for Mr., Murray ic
15 well and advifable to fend him. Agreeably to what I have written, a Tuncaw for fifteen
thoufand men of any part of the country in the Doab, which I took from the Marattas,
that Fyzoolla Kkan may chufe, (hall be given. Of whatever effeéts Fyzoolla Khan may be
poffefled I will take half. It is neceflary to acquaint Mr. Murray of thefe particulars,
that, converfing to this purport, he may quickly come, and that afterwards whatever I and you
may think neceflary to be done we may do.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

Extract Letter from Lieutenant William Bruce, Ficld Engineer, to Colonel -
Champion, 21t Auguit. ‘ .

FTER croffing the Nullah at the village Beejoura, diftant from your camp about

four one half Cofs, we entered a low Jungle, in which are two deferted villages, the

wells of which afford plenty of good water. Continuing our route to the northward
three Cofs further, we arrived at the large village Ramnagur, to the northward of which is
an open fpace, 1 think fufficiently large to encamp the brigade on ; this mult be the lat

3 My ftace.
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flage. ing our route N. N. W. along the foot of the hills, an almoft impenetrable Jungle
lines each fide of the road. Another difficulty the troops will have to ftruggle with is the
want of water ; except at a river two Cofs to the weftward of Ramnagur, we did not meet
ith a drop of that clement during the diftance of e¢ight Cofs, when we arrived at the Ro-
illa encampment. The opening here is of vemy little extent, and muft have been cleared
by the Rohillas after their flight to Lall-Dang.

A. CHAMPION.

Extra& from Captain Shewen’s Journal, 23d to 31ft Auguft 1774.

Auguft23. J RODE out this morning with my Aid de Camp to view the bridges
I which I ordered to be thrown acrofs the fmall Nullah contiguous to my en-
campment,

26, I rode out early this morning, attended by my Aid de Camp and the Quarter-
Mafter General, and efcorted by the Company’s cavalry and three hundred
of Nudjiff Khan’s hotfe, to reconnoitre the ground leading to the enemy’s
encampmient, which for fix Cofs I found to be very good. The Vizier fol-
l(;wcd me, attended by {fome battalions of infantry with their guns and a body
of horfe.

2%, T l:]c Nabob waited on me this morning. The army to march to-morrow at

ay-light,

28, Theytro%ps broke ground at the time prefcribed in the orders of yefterday. The
brigade under the command of Colonel Galliez marched three Cofs and en-
camped on a rifing fpot. The advanced guard of grenadiers marched two
Cofs further, where it encamped, and my tents were pitched near to this
ground. When the brigade arrived at its encampment, purfuant to my orders,
the two grenadier companies of Europeans, the fele¢t picquet, anc! the battalion
of Seapoys next for duty, with one twelve pounder, were advanced to join the
grenadier corps ; and I appointed Lieutenant-Colonel Leflie to command this
divifion of the army. The Vizier paid me a vific this morning, after which
ceremony I rode out, attended by my Aid de Camp, ##d eicorted by twenty
of the Company’s cavalry, with Nudjiff Khan’s horfe, wnd advanced four Cols
on the road leading to the enemy’s camp, which is computed to be at the
diftance of fix Cofs from the fmall Nullah to which I went: paffed through
very deep jungle.  On my return to camp, and near to this rivulet, I was met
by the Nabob, who was advancing in his Pallankeen, efcorted by a numerous
body of horfe and foot, with two guns. The troops toshalt to-morrow.

29. The army halted. At day-light ] mounted my horfe, and, attended by my
Aid de Camp and Quarter-Mafter General, rode to Ramnagur, or Rampore,
which is feven Cofs from my encampment. This place is five diftant from

yzoolla Khan’s camp. On my arrival at Ramnagur met with two of my
fpies, who were returning with news from the enemy’s encampment.  The in-
telligence they brought was, that Fyzoolla Khan’s troops were delerting daily
and they alfo reprefented the fcarcity of all kinds of provifions, which the
enemy felt moft feverely. The roads pretty good, although art different
parts high Jungle grafs on each fide. Croffed many Nullahs, in which ap-
peared very clear drinkable water 3 and obferved a number of fpots of ground
. “which would ferve for encamping on.
30, The army vecupied the fame ground as yefterday. At eight o’clock this morn-
, - ing the Nabob Vizier paid me a vifit, and informed me the enemy were
- % dailydeferting from their Chief 5 that yelterday feven thoufand men had laid
down their arms, and made off to the hills,

31, 1 rode out this morning, attended by my Aid de Camps, to take a view of the

| fpot pitched upon for the brigade, which I had ordered yefterday to change

‘ground, to remove to. This evening I went, with my Perfian Interpreter, with

- \ap intention to pay the Nabob a vifit, but on my arrival at his tents found

‘he was gone abroad. :
i ' EDWARD SHE\*EN, Aid de Camp.,

Emi&t{mm Captain Shewen’s Journal, from 1ft to 12th September.

1. FP\HIS morning, at the invitation of the Vizier, T went, accompanied by the
L gentlemen of miy family, to the banks of the Ganges, which is three Cofs
om my encampment ; fpent tbeRday there, and regurned in the evening. In

y ! 5 i cafe
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cafe of an alarm I had ordered the grenadier divifion of the army to ad-
vance towards the Ganges. . i i
Sept. 2. Ordered two battalions of grenadier Seapoys to hold themfelves in readinefs to
attend me early to-morrow on a reconnoitring party. :
3. On account of the fevere rain this morning I countermanded the order of march
of the two battalions. , . :

At day-light I rode out, attended by the gentlemen of my family and the Quar-
ter-Mafter and Adjutant-General, and efcorted by two battahon§ o_f grenadier
Seapoys, with a divifion of the Nabob’s beft horfe, on a reconnoitring party.

1 went about feven Cofson the road leading to the enemy’s encampment, when
I arrived at a very thick Jungle, where only one horfeman could go abreaft.
Viewed the entrance into the Jungle, and found it almoft impenetrable ; or-
dered the Nabob’s people to detach a fufficient number of Bildars to cut a
road through. The two bartalions of Seapoys I had directed to draw up
with their guns at the diftance of five Cofs from my encampment, in order
to fecure a fafe retreat for the horfe in cafe of an attack made by the enemy,
Returned to camp at eleven o’clock.

. Severe rain this morning. In the afternoon the fky appeared very dark and

loomy, which was fucceeded by repeated hard fhowers.

I rode out, attended by my Aid de Camps, on the road leading to Pattergur, and
returned to my tents at feven o'clock. Very heavy rain the whole night.

Severe fall of rain all this morning.

I rode out this morning, attended by my Aid de Camps, to view the encampment
of the divifion of the army commanded by Colonel Galliez. Repeated
fhowers of rain all this forenoon.

10. Fine weather throughout the day. In the evening I went, accompanied by my

Perfian Interpreter, to vifit the Vizier, ;

21. Irode out this morning with my Aid de Camps to take a view of the encamp-
ment occupied by the grenadier divifion of the army commanded by Lieute-
nant-Colonel Leflie.

12. Thisevening I went, accompanied by my Perfian Interpreter, to pay a vifit to
the Nabob.

4.

o e A

EDWARD SHEWEN, Aid de Camp.

Extrac from the Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, September 2d, 1774

WNo. 34. Sept, 2d. IS Excellency tranfmitted the Colonel a Letter from Fyzoolla Khan that
he had received, wherein Fyzoolla profefies his obedience, and mentions
to have fent a trufty perfon to explain all macters,
‘ R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian ldterpreter.

Extra® from Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, September 7th 1774.

him to come 10 the banks of the Ganges, defending his former condu&, profefling

s fincere loyalty, requefting Nudjiff Khan may be appointed his Naib, and promi-
fing every thing in his power for his Majefty’s fatisfaction ir he will come to the
Ganges ; alfo copy of a Letter from Fyzoolla Khan, telling him he could not alter
the former offers, and if he could not accept of the former terms further difcourfe was

needlefs.
R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter,

No. 35. H IS Exrellency this day fent the copy of a Letter from him to his Majetty, inviting
1

Extra& fron*crﬁan Interpreter’s Journal, 1oth September 1974. ‘“
No. 36. H IS Excellency acquainted Colonel Champion, that the fituation of the Rohitlas m
very bad ; that after the rains ceafed, the water from the hills would kill them. He

alfo exprefied a furmife, that, perhaps, with thefe new gentlemen, new meafu ight

take place. g s e
9 ‘ R. E. ROBERTS,
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Extract Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, September r2th 1774.

YOLONEL Champion vifited his Excellency, who informed him the Rohillas were in No. 37,
C the moft diftrefled fituation ; that the Chiefs had told Fyzoolla Khan, as fo many of

their relations were in confinement, they were refolved at all hazards to throw themfelves

on the Vizier's mercy. On the Colonel’s advifing his Excellency to offer them fervice, he
replied, he had done it, and alfo fecurity to all who would quit the camp; and that the

Hill Rajahs had ftopped all fupplies of grain.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

g
Extra& Perfian Interpreter's Journal, 13th September 1774.

: N the Colonel writing to his Excellency for a party to go reconnoitring in the morning, No, ;8.
he returned in reply, that he had put himfelf under a courfe of phyfic, which would
continue fix days ; for which time, though he wifhed the matter, he begged the Colonel
would defer the attack, as after that he fhould be able to accompany him.—On the
Colonel rejoining, that he had no intention of attacking the enemy, but only to examine i
the road, and therefore defiring the elcort might be fent, his Excellency wrote that he had &
fully told his fentiments to Collichurn, who would explain them to him; and that he
requefted that he would be ruled thereby, and defer the intended expedition in the
morning. !

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

Extra@ Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, September 14th 1774.

PTNYZOOLLA Khan's Vackeel returned from their camp without any frefh propo- No. 39
I fals: he only obferved, that, conformably to their cuftoms, Fyzoolla Khan would not

come in till fomething was concluded ; not that he defired to try the fuccefs of a bartle, he

only wifhed to get acrofs the river and feek employment elfewhere : he added, that his

mafter had received propofals from the Nabob Vizier, but he chofe to truft to the Englifth

only. Colonel Champion, in reply, defired him to acquaint Fyzoolla Khan, that he had bet-

ter confider the offers maturely, as perhaps many days would not be allowed him for that
purpofe ; and that by all means he thoukl come in, as nothing could be effected while he re-
mained 10 -fa)‘diﬁant.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter,

Extra& Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, September 16th 1774.

THI S day his Excellency acquainted Colonel Champion, that he would agree to Fyzoolla 4,
Khan'’s remaining as a colle¢tor in the Rohilla country, with one or two thoufand

men as fervants, troops being ftationed with him for the colle€tions, and half his effeéts

being taken ; and that, from the collections of the country put under him, fifty thoufand
Rupees per month (hould be granted for his own expenies.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.
»
~ Extra& of a Letter from Colonel Champion to the Vizier, dated 18th Septem-
. ber 1774 .
» :a BEFORE mentioned to you that the brigade would be in readinefs in three or y,, .
Rt four days to march, or for any other duty ; I now acquaint you that it is ready.”
e 5 VI T R. E. ROBERTS,
B e Perfian Interpreter. il
|

Extraét
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Extral from the Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, dated 21t September 1774.

H E Colonel having tranfmitted a Letter received from Fyzoolla Khan to his Excel-
lency, he returned the following reply : “ As 1 defire not the death of any Muflul-
 man, I defire you will acquaint Fyzoolla Khan, that | w;ll fertle a Jaghire of ten Lac_:ks
« per annum on him of the Rohilla country, and allow him to keeptwo or three thoufand
“ men as fervants. I will ftation troops in the country, and take the Chiefs, &c. with him
“ into my fervice ; and after his coming in he fhall, if he chule, rent or fuper_vnte the Rohilla
« country, giving me half his effects, and difmiffing the troops now with him.”  Copy of
this Letter the Colonel fent to Fyzoolla Khan, at the fame time advifing him to accept the
offer, but to return his determination without dclay. '
R. E, ROBERTS,
Pétfian Interpreter.,

Tranflation of a Letter from the Nabob Vizier, 20th September 1774.

HE Letter of Fyzoolla Khan you fent me to perufe I have reccived and clearly un-

derftand. I defire the death of no Muffulman, and therefore have fixed upon this
plan which I now write. Do you acquaint Fyzoolla Khan from yourfelf, that the Nabob
Vizier will fettle a Jaghire of ten Lacks of Rupees per year on him of the Rohilcund coun-
try, and he fhall keep two or three thoufand men as houfhold fervants along with him ;
that troops of the Nabob Vizier fhall be ftationed in the country ; that the troops and Chiefs
of Khuttur Rohilcund fhall be taken into fervice, but fhall not remain with him. If this is
agreeable to Fyzoolla Khan, do you write him to come to you: when Le comes I will have
an interview with him ; and if he defires it, he fhall rent or fupervife the whole Rohilcund
country, which fhall be fettled face to face; but of whatever effects he may have, half fhall
be given to me, and the troops of Khuttur (or Robhillas) that are with him fhall not remain,

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

Extra& of Captain Shewen’s Journal, from 19th to 25th September 1774.

Sept. 19. ARLY this morning the Vizier came to wait on me. I was taken fud-
E denly ill after fupper.

20, The Nabob paid me a vifit this forenoon. Much indifpofed all day, and confined
myfelf to my fleeping tent. -Hard rain this afternoon.

21. I find myfelf by no means well, troubled with violent head-achs. Confined my-
felf all day to my fleeping tent. Inceflant rain this forenoon. i

22. Exceflive violent rain and much wind all the day. Heavy complaints of the
fcarcity of provifions ; and by the baggage-maiter’s report, there is not a
fingle article of grain in any of our Buzars.

23, 24. The morning cleared vp, and we had a very fine day, My indifpofition rather
abated, and I find myfelf better than I have been fince the attack of my dif-
order. I went out this morning to take the air inmy Pallankeen. '

25. Still confinec to my tent, and unable to receive vifits. Excecding fine weather,

EDWARD SHEWEN, Aid de Camp.

Tranflation of Colonel Champion’s Letter to Fyzoolla Khan, dated 25th Sep-
tember 1774.

WROTE you a Letter by Abdulhum Khan, and in it requefted that a reply nhglu{ s
be fent as fpecdily as might bey but as yet no anfwer is reccived ; 1 therefore tronble .
you, that whatever ye think advifable to do, it is proper, on receipt of this Letter, gou do-
dxrcgtelly;. Write a reply by the fame conveyance that brings it, in which 1 beg there may
no 7' 6 : R et A’v-.

W
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Tranflation of a Letter from Fyzoolla Khan to Colonel Champion, 25th Sep-
e tember 1774.

OUR favour, with copy of the Nabob Vizier’s Letter, is received, and the particu- B4
lars underftood. The Nabob Vizier will confer a fettlement of ten Lacks of Rupees o4 ‘

of the Khuttur country, and fays 1 fhall keep two or three thoufand men with me as fer-

vants, and that the remainder he will entertain in his fervice. Thecafe is this 3 ten Lacks

of Rupees will afford a fufficient maintenance for me, but I cannot feparate myfelf from

the people of my tribe. You have exerted yourfelf greatly in my favour, and I will remem-

ber the obligation while I have life. The Nabob has commanded, and I'am helplefs, I pro-

pofed before to end this bufinefs in two ways 5 the firft, by receiving a fettlement for fifteen

thoufand men in the country of Khuttur ; the fecond, that I would give twenty-five

Lacks yearly for the whole country : as both are unaccepted, 1 am remedilefs. 1 therefore

give this trouble, that ye will now intreat his Excellency to agree to my before written

offer ; if he will not, my fate is with God, who will difpofe of it as he fhall think proper.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perlian Interpreter, *

Extra&t from the Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 26th September 1774,

IS Excellency vifited Colonel Champion this morning, when it was determined to xo, 45,

move the army near to Lall-Dang, as the moft probable means of bringing the
Kohillas to terms.  The Nabob declared that the Rohillas were greatly diftrefled, and that
wheneverghe Colonel’s health would permit he was ready to go againft them.

R. E. ROBERTS.

Extra& of Captain Shewen’s Journal, from 24th to 3oth September 1774:

Sept. 27. HE pain in my bones much increafed, and I find myfelf greatly affected no, 5,
by them. Ordered the army to hold itfelf in readinefs to march the
2gth in the morning, and the divifion commanded by Colonel Galliez to
take up the ground now occupied by the grenadier corps.

28. The Nabob paid me a vilic this morning at eight o’cleck, A. M. The field
officers of the army affumbled at head quarters conformable to my fummons for
that purpofe.

29. At day-break the grenadier divifion of the army marched off its ground, and

*advanced four Cofs near to Laardpore, on the road leading to the enemy’s
encampment ; the path narrow, and almoft the whole covered with high jun-
gle grals.

30. The grenadier divifion of the army marched this morning at the fame time as
yelterday, and proceeded four Cofs further on the rogd leading to the

. Rohilla encampment at Lall-Dang.  After I had breakfafted I advanced a
Cofs to where two roads met, and here directed the field engineer to throw
up an intrenchment in extent about two hundred and fifty feet, behind
which | ordered a battalion of the Nabob’s infantry to take poft with |
agun on each flank. In the evening 1 vifited the works, and to my great fatif-
faction found that Licutenant Bruce had exerted himfelt to the utmoft in
performing this fervice.  The whole of the day repeated fhots fired at, and by
the enemy. The brigade marched this morning, and came to the fpot
which the grenadier divifion had quitted onits firft movement from Sammypore,

EDWARD SHEWEN, Aid de Camp.

Extratt from the Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, joth September 1774.

H E Nabob Vizier’s confent having been obtained, Colonel Champion wrote to N, 49.
-+ 4 Fyzoolla Khan as follows : :

MAENER. . -

" % 1 am arrived near you with the army, but, from the friendfhip fubfiting be-

tween us, apd an averfion 1o che fpilling of blocd, I acquaint you, you have
o L 58 o
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“ yet in your power to accept the Nabob’s offers, who has affured me, if you will

y your p P - - derahie
¢« come hither, the Chicfs with you fhall be provided for. It is my advice that ye
. “ come, and I will fend proper perfons to efcort ye; if you will mot, ye and- your
B « people are anfwcrable for the confequences : 1 defire your {peedy reply. - This day his
« Fxcellency defired the Colonel would not be over-hafty in his attack of the enemy, asthe
“ road was entire jungle, which had better firft be cleared away.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

From Colonel CBnmpion to Fyzoolla Khan, joth September 1774.

’
No. so. HIS day T am arrived with my army near the fort of the hills ; but as friendfhip has
been formed between us, I perform my part, and tell you, that you ftill have oppor-
tunity of coinciding to the Nabob Vizier’s «ffers which were before fent you, and of coming
hither 3 this is the beft advice you can follow.  There has been difcourfe berween the Nabob
Vizier and me, when th= Nabob faid and confirmed, that whenever you would accede to his
propoials, that fomething fhould be fettled for every Chicf with you : now the Nabob Vizier
has faid, and has writien this, conformably to your requeft. My advice 1sthis 3 do ye now
come here and azree to this, for I do not defire that the blood of the people be {pilt. Mo-
tives of friendfLip induce me again to write ye on this fubject. If ye will not accept of
this, and will not come, the fault is not mine, as I have done every thing in my power. Now
for what may enfue vou and your Chiefs are anfwerable. In cafe ye confent and come
in, write me, and I will fend a proper perfon to conduét ye 5 in this there is neither pre-
judice or danger.  1f you will not agree, let me certainly have your reply this dag.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter,

Extratt from Captain Shewen’s Journal, from 1t to 8th October.

No. s1. O&. 1. H I whole army halted on its refpeciive grounds., I went this morning, at-
tended by my Aid de Camps, to view the entrenchments, and then rode for-
ward, on a reconnoitring party, until I reached a thick Bamboo jungle, efcorted by
a battalion of the Nabob’s infantry and a body of horfe. Many fhots fired by
the enemy.” Jo the afternoon 1 revifited the works, and perceived that Lieutenant
Bruce had extended them greatly 5 fo much fo, as to admit two battalions to take
thelter under their cover, which 1 ordered immediately to be pofted, with the
guns attached to each.
3. Ordered the advanced poft of three battalions of Scapoys to be reliéved this after-
noon. ~

. Owing to the exercife I had ufed, this day my diforder returned upon me.

. Ordered the out-polt to be relieved this alternoon.

.} went this morning, attended by my Perfian Interpreter, to fee the Nabob,

. This forenoon the Vizier and Fyzoolla Khan came to my tents agreeable to ap-
pointment, when the negotiation between them was finally concluded on in the
prefence of my Perfian Tranflator ; after which Sujaheul-Dowla returned to

] his camp.

8. Crdered the advanced pofts to be recalled, and the army to hold itfelf in readinefs 9
to march,

N oy

EDWARD SHEWEN, Aid de Camp.

Extract from Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 3d O&ober 1774.

g

Wii?, - Nogge, OLONEL Champion carried Fyzoolla Khan with him to the Nabob Vizier to be i
R troduced 5 after which his Excellency wrote the Colonel, that in confideration’of Fy
zoolla Khan’s coming in, he would add two Lacks to his former propofals, andegrant b
Jaghir= of twelve Lacks of the Rohilcund country, including his fofmer poffeffions,
iy allowirg him to retain five thoufand people, fifteen thoufand more of whom he (the

B would entertain, and be would take half of his effects. In the afternoon Fyz:
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called. on Colonel Champion, who fhewed him the above Letter 3 he affured the Colonel he
did inet defire a provifion for all the Rohillas, but that he had a vaft number of relations,
for whom twelve Lacks would be infufficient, and requefted the Colonel would endeavour to
obtain more : the Colonel told him he would try, but gave him no hopes of fuccefs.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter,

From the Vizier to Colonel Champion, 3d O&ober 1774,

BEFORE wrote you, that if Fyzoolla Khan would come in and meet us, a Jaghire for No.s3.
ten Lacks of Rupees of the Rohilcund country fhould be conferred on him, that he
fhould keep two or three thoufand people with him as attendants, and that of his cffeéts hall
thould be taken. Now that he has come in, in confideration of his coming, 1 will prefent
him with two Lacks more, and twelve Lacks of the Rohilcund country, including his
former diftri¢ts, fhall be given as a Jaghire, and of his effects half fhall be taken. In this
eftate of twelve Lacks Fyzoolla Khan is at liberty to keep five perfons or five thoufand,
but he mufl not keep one more than five thoufand; and to content him, of the people
with him, I will entcrtain in my own fervice from ten to fifteen thoufand, and they fhall be
ftationed where he chules, and fhall rective their pay from me.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter.

Colonel Champion to the Vizier, 4th O&ober, 1774.

CONVERSED with Fyzoolla Khan laft night on the fubject of the Jaghire, and told

him ye had agreed to fettle twelve Lacks of Rupees on him, which it was advifable he
accepted 5 he replied, that he did not defire a fettlement for the troops with him, but that
he had a great number of relations and dependants, who had been with him from their
birth, and {rom whom he could not part, and that the twelve Lacks of Rupees you had
conferred would be fmall for the fupport of the whole ; he therefore intreated you would
gracioufly beftow what would be fufficient for their maintenance. He hopes you will be
pleafed to make fome addition 5 and I alfo give you this trouble, that if ye think it proper
and advifable to comply, that you will dofo; favour me however with your pleafure in reply.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter,

No, 4.

The Vizier to Colonel Champion. Received sth Oéober 1774,

REVIOUS to this you wrote me that Fyzoolla Khan would not accept of a Jaghire of
twelve Lacks of Rupees ;3 in reply it was written, that if he would not aceept of that
fum, you would return him to the entrenchment, as I could not give any thing more. After
thatI fent Elich Khan to you to learn the condition, &c. of Fyzoolla Khan, and from his
report I find that Fyzooila Khan defires a Jaghire of fourteen Lacks and feventy-five thoufand
‘Rupees ; I therefore give you this trouble to acquaint you, that that fum is not very great,
and in confideration of Fyzoolla Khan's coming in, a Jaghire of fourteen Lacks and feventy-
- five thoufand Rupees fhall be given him. Do you bring Fyzoolla Khan along with you hither
to me to-morrow morning, and I will give a Jaghire for fourteen Lacks and feventy-five
thoufand Rupees, and 1 will take half of his efiects. When ye come I will have further
converfation with you.

No. 55

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter,

Extra& from Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, 7th O&ober 1774.

~HE NabobVizter vifited Colone] Champion, and in Fyzoella -Kchn’s prefence the No. s6.
4§  mutual agreements were drawn out and executed, which Colonel Champion witnefled
fixed his {cal to.  His Excellency engages that Fyzoolla Khan's former country, with
‘ e other
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other diftrifts, to the amount yearly of fourteen Lacks and feventy-five thoufand Rupees,
fhall be conferred on him ; that he may keep five thoufand troops; and he ftipulates, that
their intereft {hall be mutual, and the friends and ¢nemies of either be efteemed as ot both 4
that Fyzoolla Khan fhall not conneét himfelf with, or correfpond withany power but the
Englith, fhall affift in time of any war with what troops he can fupply, and fhall go in perfon
to the war againft any perfon it he (the Vizier) does fo: thatif the five thoufind men al-
lowed are infufficient, more fhall be fupplied, who himfelf (the Vizier) will pay @ that he
will remain firm to his agreement, and do every thing for Fyzoolla Khan’s benefit; and
that all the remaining Rohillas fhall be put acrofs the Ganges. The obfervation to thele
conditions is fworn to on the Khoran, in the year of Hegira 1188.

His Excellency obje¢ted to Fyzoolla returning to his camp, but he confefled he had
effeéts buried, declared there was not the leaft rilque of being detained, and that he would
return without delay. In a counter-agreement Fyzoolla Khan engaged to abide by the above
article.

R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Tnterpieter.

O&. 13th. YZOOLLA Khan had a conference with Elich Khan at Colonel Champion’s
tent on the fubjet of the fettlement for the former: after much difvouric
they came to an agreement, adraught of which Elich Khan carried to the Nabob Vizwer,
that the funnuds might be made out agrecably 5 his Excellency however difapproved of the
agreement, and fent a draught of a frefh one.
14th.  The above parties had a frefh conference at the Colonel’s tent on the fame fub)=&l :
after a good deal of argument the Colonel prevailed on Fyzoolla Khan to clofe with the
Nabol's propolal, and he offered to pay fifteen Lacks of Rupzes in liew of half his effcéts.
There being fome difputes about the fpecies of Rupees, the Colonel deflired Elich Khan to
go over to his Excellency, who in the mean while had come to Cojah Luttafal’s tent, and
fetle it with him 3 he returned, faying the Nabob agreed to take 15 Lacks of Berelly
Rujpees in lieu of half the effects ; and at the fame time told the Colonel, that his Excel-
lency requefted he would now come himfelf, and bring Fyzoolia Khan with him to Luttafal’s
tent, that he might take leave of him, as he intended proceeding towards Fyzibad as the
next morning.  The Colonel accordingly accompanicd Fyzoolla to his Excellency.  In dif-
courfe there the Nabob mentioned that the funnuds fhould be made out immediately.  On
the Colonel exprefling his intention of carrying the brigade to Ramgaut, his Excellency de-
fired it might remain oppofite to Suckerral ; but on the Colonel oblerving that place wus
very diftant from the bomts with ftores, every kind of which he much wanted, the Nabob
defired he would leave two or three bartalions of Seapoys there; and on the Colond’s
further intimating that the troops by being divided loft their difcipline, he agreed thac the
whole fhould go.

(Signed) R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interprecer.

From the Nabob Vizier to Colonzl Champion. Received 15th O&ober 177.4.

HE pains and trouble you have taken in fetcling this bufinels of Fyzoolla Khan ig
beyond the power of writing to exprefs. In all refpeéts ye have acted to my fatif-
faction, and in no refpect contrary to it. 1 efleem this as pure friendfhip in you.

(Signed)  R. E. ROBERTS,
Perfian Interpreter,

Extract Perfian Interpreter’s Journal, July 29th. h
OLONEIL, Champion intimated to the Vizier, that, agreeable to his repeated dc@&, Mo
and to evince his inclination for his honor and intereft, the brigade was now.-rqﬁ&y'"‘i&‘ G
march ; though he repeated his high difapproval of the meafure for the beforementioned
reafons ; he allo obferved, for his Excellency’s information, that the brigade could mot pro-
ceed beyond Nejitgur, that being the frontier of the Rohilla country, BT S
. 7 e




[

L7

i,

Y w lay proper claim to, I will order it to be delivered to him ; but at the fame time muft

) g : .:4_.»% cH M‘R‘nwﬁw‘wm,‘ .J 't‘:k““r‘j"“i’zflw:""%i:‘l""3"7\ N F‘E‘qﬁ:ﬁ W
é«ﬂf"rdﬁmﬁoﬁ‘ﬁﬁnfwér to the Charges of Sujah Dowla. Appendix, No XXVI. A.

To this his Excellency returced his former arguments, that the road was perfeitly good,
and thar another encmy might appear ; alfo Mr. Haftings’s advice, &c. He alfo intimates,
that, he cannot difcharge his pecuniary agreements with the Company until this bufinefs is
fetrled, and that any delay will be their lofs alone ; that to retraét now would be very im-
prudent: he tells the Colonel, in a ludicrous manner, that the whole country between the
river and the hills 1s the Rohilla country, and fo ftiled in his agreements, and that there-

fore the troops may go without hefitation : finally he adds, marching is abfolutely re-
quifite.

(Signed)  R.E. ROBERTS.

To Captain Bevan (on the Service) commanding the roth Battalion of Seapcys. No, 6o,
SIR,

HIE Vizier this evening complained to the Commander in Chief, that your Com-

mandant or one of your Subahdars, took a Pallankeen from one of his people, which

wus the man’s private property and no plunder 3 the Commander in Chief therefore direéts,

that y-u will be pleafed to order it to be delivered to the bearer immediately, who is to go
with 1t to the Nabob,

Iam, &ec.

Head Quorters (Signed) ALLAN MACPHERSON, Aid de Camp.
Camp, Apnl 24, 1774,

To Captain Allan Macpherfon, Aid de Camp. {
SIR, !
A'Y Commandant yefterday took the thell of a Pallankeen cut in to or three places, No, 61,

from which circumftances 1 fhould imagine it is not the one meant ; however 1

have ordered him to delver it to the bearer, agreeable to the Commander in Chief's orders,
which you will pleafe to acquaint him of,

April 24, 1774 I am, &c.

A Copy (figned) A. MACPHERSON. (Signed) HENRY BEEVAN.
' Aid de Camp.

To Captain Henry Bevan (on the Service) commanding the 1oth Battalion of
' Scapoys.
SIR,
HE Nabob has again fpoke to the Colonel on the fubject of the Pallankeen I before
wrote you about, and perfilts that itis in the pofleflion of fome of your battalion ;

the Commander in Chief therefore directs, that you will be plealed to order it to be de-

livered to the bearer, who is to have permiiion to go into the lines of your battalion to fhew
you where it is,

I am, &c.

Head Quarters, Camp, (Signed) A. MACPHERSON, Aid de Camp. o
- April 29, 1774. :

- To  Captain Macpherfon, Aid de Camp.
51R, g

L FOU will plerfe to acquaint the Commander in Chief, that I have given the Nabob’s
J.  myn permiffion to go through my lines, and if there is any Pallankeen there, that he

§ & requelt,
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requeft, that as the Pallankeen 1 formerly fent was not the one required, that it may be re-
turned to my Commandant, whofe property it is.

29 April, 1774. I am, &c.
A Copy (figned A, MACPHERSON. (Signed) =~ HENRY BEVAN.
Aid de Camp.

INTELLIGENCE relative to his Excellency the Vizier’s treatment of the families of the
late Nabobs, Hafiz Rhamut and Doondy Khan, in their confinement. Taken down from
the accounts of trufty Hircarrahs ftationed with thofe families by order of th: Com-

mander in Chief.

HE Vizier fent Selybefheer Khan, with feveral eunuchs, to the palace of Hafiz, when

they fearched all the men and women, ftripped them of their jewels, gold and filver
ornaments, clothes, &c. except one fuit of clothes each, and then put the women, to the
number of near four hundred, including their maid fervants and {laves, into forty-five covered
Hackeries, and Hafiz's ten fons, with {ix Chelahs, or favourite men flaves, on hor{es, and car-
ried them all prifoners to the Nabob’s camp 3 where the men were put into one tent, and the
women into one large tent, and two Paals (or fmall open tents) furrounded with fome old
cunnottes 3 but no fattringes, carpets, or any kind of bedding, put into the men or women’s
tents, but reduced to the neceflity of fleeping on the ground, without any clothes to cover
them, except what they wore in the day. A little after 12 oc’leck at might four pots of
provifions were brought them, but fo infufficient for the number of people that they had not
above two or three mouthfuls each ; and they were equally diftreffed for water to drink.

In fhedding tears of grief and mifery they fpent the tirefome night, and the lamentable
cries of forrow and affliCtion brought on the morning.  Expofed to the intenfe hear of the
day and the fcorching winds.  Floorcloth they have not to defend them from the burning
fands, nor a fheet to fcreen them from the inclement chills of night. The Begum. and
daughter of Hafiz are in confequence taken very ill.

This morning the Vizier’s army marched, and Hafiz’s family were carried prifoners.
The horfes belonging to the Chiclahs were taken from them. On coming to the ground the
whole were confined in the fame manner as yefterday, and a fmall quantity of provilions and
water brought them, which rather excited than abated their hunger. About 12 at night
they received four pots with victuals, which they were anxious to eat, but a ftrong wind
blowing at that time, their tents were thrown down, and all their provilions covered with
fand ; a fhower of rain,, which then fell, wet their clothes. They endeavoured to cover
their heads, and fhelter themfelves from the cold, with the bedding of the hackeries, and in
that doleful Gruation paffcd the night on the damp earth.

No material alteration happened in the treatment of this unhappy family fince the 1ft in-
ftant. The Begum hus been much indifpofed with a flux. .

This morning fhe fent the following complaint by a Hircarrah, viz, ‘ .

That laft night the wind and rain blew down their cunnottes and one tent, and no per-
fons being at hand to put them up, almoft all the women were obliged to croud into the
one where fhe was daring the rain ; in this fitvation fhe catched cold, and the flux, of
which fhe was recovering, is again returned, aond fhe is now very ill : that after the rain was
over, Noor Mehomed, Chelah, made fhift to put up the tent, and fome perfons pafling that
way, pitying their condition, put up the cunnottes alfo, The Begum and the fons of Ha-
fiz deflired the Hircarrahs to conclude as follows :

“ This being our melancholy fituation, for God’s fake have compaflion upon us, and
«¢ give your affiftance, 1n releafing us from this difmal bondage.”’

Hafiz Rhamut’s family are reported to be in great diftrefs, not fupplied with half provifions,
and never chang:d their clothes fince they left Peelebut @ they have not the lealt covering
for themiclves at night, but cep in the fame rags they have on in the day-time ; the fons -
have not even a turban to their heads, ; ;

There are only two commen cotts for bedfteads) allowed the young men who zre fick, and
one cott for the Bogum,  When any of the cunnottes round the women’s tents are blown
down, the Seapoys are extremely infolent, and do not fuffer them to be put up bet at their
own time., ] '

When any of the women want to drink, an old woman brings a beaftly bag, to which hegt’ 45

generally pat their mouths, there being only one fmall brafs pot al'owed the whole, and one
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earthen pot in the neceflary.  This morning the fons of Hafiz got up to look at the Colonel
as he was paffing near their tents, but the centriesthreatened to beat them if they did not
immediately fic down.

Noor Mahomed, Chelah to the late Hafiz, brought a meflage from the fons, that they Bifoulee,
are fo clofely confined, that the Colonel’s Hircarrahs are not permitted to come near them to May 22d
fee or hear their diftrefles, but that the above Chelah would give an account of their unhap- '774

fituation,

Noor Mahomed then proceeds :

Mahubbut Khan, from the cating of gram and other unwholefome provifions, has for fome
days been very fick, and rolling on the ground, but fince yefterday he is a little better.  Tally
Eaar Khan, Omir Khan, Azimit Khan, and Mahomed aar Khan, his brothers, are ftill fick ;
notwithftanding of which the ten brothers are confined in one tent, without a cunnotte to keep
out off the hot wind, or duft, or any bedding to {leep on, except one fmall fattringhee, and
without clianging their clothes, or being permitted to call in a barber to fhave their
beards or heads, fince they left Peelebut 5 nor can they even go to the neceflary bue fur-
rounded with fixt bay()ncts.

The charitics which the Colonel and other gentlemen fent them were very acceptable ;
and their only hopes of being enlarged is from the Colonel and the Englith, whole flaves
they declare they would willingly be, on condition of being releafed from their prefent cap-
tivity.

A few days ago one routee, or fmall marquee, was added to the large tent,and twe Paals,
in which all the women are confined ftill without carpets, fattringhees, or bedding of any
kind, but all laying on the ground, except the Begum, who has the common bedftead already
mentioned. They have not changed or wathed their clothes fince they were taken out of
Peelebut, and they are now covered with vermin,

There is one maund of bread and thirty feers of boiled meat fent them daily, and about ;
two maunds of different forts of provifions at night, for men, women, fervants, &c. in 2
all near four hundred fifty perfons. *

a

There is only one jar of water, which affords them a very fcanty proportion ; and owing
to this the fhort allowance of provifions, the badnefs of what they receive, and their laying
on the earth, molt of the women are fick. The Begum alfo continues very ill.

The guard over Hafiz Rhamut’s family is increafed, and more ftrict than ever. All the Biffoulee
knives, fciffars, and beetlenut crackers are taken from the Begum and the reft of the wo- May z4¢h
men, and the fcheolmafter who attended the children ordered not to come near them 1774,
any more.

The Nabob has ordered Salarjing to be ready to march with Hafiz Rhamut’s family, &c. 25th.
to Fyzabad. .

Salarjing, with the prifoners, marched two Cofs from camp. 26th. ik

Yefterday and to-day the prifoners had only fome kedjeree, ordal and rice boiled in water 29,
and eat with ghee. _

The horlcs; or tattoos, belonging to the Chelahs, which were again returned, are allowed o
no gram, .

The fons of Faliz fuffer more than ever, there being only one fervant permitted to come
near them, and even he with great difficulty.

The Nabob Ebad ulla Khan, of Shawjahanpore, fent a doolie to Hafiz Rhamut’s Begum
to ride in. .

This evening Mahub ulla Khan, and Fitte ulla Khan, fons of the late Nabob Doondy
Khan, fent their Akhoond (or preceptor) to make the following complaint, viz.—‘ The
¢ Vizier, at the begining of the war, fent to comlort and inform us, that if we fhould re-
% main quiet at home, and not join Hafiz or himfelf, he would continue us in pofleflion
« of our country ; in confequence ot this, we alted agreeable to his defire, and now it is
s¢ plain how far he has adhered to his promife; for he has taken our country, our riches,
¢ and even our honor, and not fatisficd with that, he is going to fend us prifoners to Fy-
% zabad, ' '

¢ We defire no riches, no country, no houfes ; butat Biffoulee are the tombs of our noble
¢t anceftors, pear which, under fome fhade, we beg permiffion to fpend the remainder of our
« days as Facqueers,” )

The Vizier this morning fent elephants for us, which were again fent back, we fuppofe
by the Colonel’s orders, but we are informed they will be fent to carry us away to morrow,
which if the Colonel will prevent we will ever be his flaves, Biffoulee,

Mahub ulla Khzn, Fiwe ulla Khan, Azim ulla Khan, fons of Doondy Khan, and Syfe My 28th.
“ulla Khan, fon to Mabib ulla Khan, were,carried away from Biffoulee and delivered over to

 Salajing.

3

27th,

This




TR T

kit AU m-n.ﬂ i : PR
Col. Champion’s Anfwsrto the Charges of Sujah D

This evening the Nabob fent for Mirza Hauffin Reza Khan, and gave him orders to take
with him five old matrons to- morrow morning at dav-break to the palaces of Doondy-Khan's
Begum,' and Mahub ulla Khan, and there ware till his arrival,

N. B, Azim ulla Khan’s family lives in the Begum’s palace. : :
Biffoulee, This morning at fun-rife the Vizier, with Elich Khan, Behaur ally Khan, the Begum's
May 2gth. eunuch, Lettati] ally Khan, and another eunuch, went to the above palaces, where they met

Mirza Hauffin and the old women.

Elich Khan and Mirza | {auflin were left at the outfide, and the Nabob, with the eunuch
and old women, went into the Zenana, when he ordered them to take all the jewels, gold
and filver ornaments, &c. &c. from every perfon belonging to thofe families, taking care
to fearch them in fuch a manner that nothing fhould efcaje.

After they had performed this bufinefs in his prefence with the utmoft rigour, the bullocks
were taken out of the hackeries which were ready at the door, and the hackeries one after
another drawn into the compound of the Zenana, and the women put into them as they
were fearched, and not allowed to carry a fecond fuit of clothes with them.

In this manner one hundred and fifty women were carried in thirty-five covered hackeries
and one doolie, to a grove ol mango trees at a Imall diltance from the palace.

The Vizier ordered Buffunt ally Khan to get a battalion of Seapoys and guard the pri-
foncrs to Salarjing, to whom he fent orders to halt tll he thould hear frem him, as he (the

‘ Nabeb) purpoled next morning to fearch the family ot Fitte ulla Khan,

His Excellency then went back to fleep at the palace of Mahub ulla Khan, which gave
rife to a report fhocking to humanity, and which had fvme appearance ot truth, though it
cannot ablolutely be conhrmed.

The report alluded to 1s as follows, viz. Thatwhen the women of Mahub ulla Khan were
fent out of the houfc, his daughter, about ten or eleven ycars old, was detained behind 5 and
that when the Nabob returned to the palace and went to fleep, he took her to bed with him,
and foon aiter fent her to join the reft of that unbappy family in Salarjing’s camp, and to
proceed with them,

During the time that the hackeries with the women were in the grove, the wife of Azim
ulla Khan was reduced to fuch extremities of hunger and other diftretles, that fhe fent to the
Buzar for ophium, in hopes of putting an end to a life which became a burthen to her ; but
this relict was denied her, as they could not find any.

They then brought a fmall quantity of dried gram ard bread, which fhe and her children
were glad to cat. '

When the Hircarrahs brought the above account the following queftion was put to
them, viz,

Quellion.  You have remarked that the doors of the Zenana were fhut during the fearch,
i what manner did you become acquainted with thofe circumitances which paffed infide ¢

Anfwer.  When the hackeries were going along the ftreets, the women threw up the
purdoes, and complained loudly in the manner we have now related.

Riloules, Very early this morning, agreeable to the Vizier’s orders, Behaar ally Khan, with twenty

May joth.  old matrons, went to the palace of Fitte ulla Khan, where his Fxcellency foon followed them,
and all the womey belonging to that family were fearched and fripped of every thing, in the
lame manner with thofe of his brothers, &c. yeflerday, and they were then put into twenty
covered hackeries, and fent to Salarjing, guarded by two companies of Seapoys.

Juse 2d. A Hircariah canic from Mahub ulla Khan, and gave the following account, viz.

Yelterday Salarjing arrived at Aulah with the priforers in his charge.

Hafiz Rhamut’s family, and thofe of his {ons, — —_ 450
Doondy Khan’s Begum, Mahub ulla Khan’s and Azim ulla Khan’s ~ — 150
Fitte ulla Khan’s, ‘ ' 100

Tents in the ufval manner were pitched for the family of Hafiz, and one tent for Mahub ”
ulla Khan, his twe brothers and fon, with a {mall fatringhee put into it, large enough for
them to fit on, but no bedding.—Each of them has on cne ungha (or jacket),a pairof
long drawers, a cap, and a fheet, or white cloth, which were the only wearing apparel they
were fuffered to carry out of their houfes ; not even a turban to fhelter their\#u&ifmm the

- heat of the fun, or the cold at night. In this manner they lay on the ground without a cun-
notte to keep off the duft, which flew in vaft clouds, or prevent their being expofed to every

7
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perfon who chofe to infult them; and all intercourfe between them and their women, even
by meflage, was denied. The latter are confined in one large tent furrounded with cun-
nottes.

They beg of the Colonel, for the fake of the Almighty, to get them releafed, and they
would ever be his flaves, and that he might be affured God would be pleafed with his good
offices towards them : they hoped their enemics fhould never fuffer equal to their dil-
treffes.

1 this day received a Letter from Mahub ulla Khan at Berelly, which nearly corroborates
the complaint that unhappy family fent by their Akhoond on May the 27th.

The following account from Allahabad, where the families of aliz and Doondy Khan
are confined :

That the men are confined in feparate apartments from their women, and not fuffered to
go near them except very feldom, and then it is with grear difficulty they can obtain per-
miffion ; they are tull laying on the ground without carpets or fattringhees.

At firft they were informed that the Nabob ordered 150 rupees a-day for the fubliftence
of the above families, but that Rofhan Khan, the Commandaat of their guard, had reduced
it to half that fum, and even thut halt fo much curtailed by the manner of payment, that
they had not more than one cake of bread a-day to four people ; and thac they had no other
clothes than what th-y had on when they were taken from their retpective homes.

The Commandant of the guard being afked, why he did not give the prifoners their full
allowance, agreeable to the Vizier’s orders ? he replied, that the Nabob had not fixed any
fettled allowance for them, nor had he as yet reccived any money on their account, and that
what he had given them wasin advance ut of his own pocket; that he had frequently wrote
to his mafter on that fubject, but received no anfwer.

(Signed) A. MACPHERSON,
Aid de Camp to Colonel Champion,

Copy of a Letter from Captain Allen Macpherfon to Colonel Alexander Cham-
pion, Commander in Chief.

June oth,

July 13th
1774

PON my arrival at Allahabad, I fent for the writer and Hircarrahs flationed with No. 6z,

Hafiz Rhamut’s family, Mahub ulla Khan’s, &c. They informed me they were not
permitted to go into the fort where the above families are confined 3 and that the Com-
mandant of the guard even threatened to punith them for ftaying in the town, which
obliged them to remain in fecret, I then afked them particulars relative to the above pri-
foners 3 they informed me they were given to underftand, before they were {ent away from
camp, that the Nabob had ordered an allowance of 100 Rupees a-day to be delivered to Ma-
hub ulla Kbarr for his own family, his mother’s, and Fitte ulla Khan’s, forty Rupees to
Hafiz’s, and ten Rupees to Junaaid Khan’s widow, but that the Commandant of their guard
never paid them above half that fum, which reduced them to very great diftreffes by hunger,
not having above one cake of bread a-day amongft four, and forced to lay upon the damp
floor without as much as a (attringhee under them, I then afked the Hircagrahs how thiey be-
came acquainted with thofe circumftances? They replied, that Noor Mahomed, Chelih to
Hafiz, and Mahub ullah Khan’s Moolby (or Prieft) came cut daily, and informed them
what they related, and faid they would call them, which being done, tliey confirmed every
circumftance declared by the writer and Hircarrahs.
Hafiz fon, Mahub ulia Khangand Fitte ulla Khan, fent to beg, in the moft particular
manner, that I would reprefent t#eir unhappy and diftreffed fituation to you, Sir, from whofe
humanity they have the only hopes of relier,
Upon hearing this doleful account I fent my Moonfhee to the Commandant, with orders
1o afk him what allowances he was directed to deliver the prifoners under his charge : his
reply to the Moonfhee was as follows : _
. That he did not receive any money for their fupport ; that he fupplied them twice with
_all ie was able out of his own pocket, and applied to the Kellydar for further fubfiftence, who
gave him fome for them ; but on a fecond application he made anfwer, that the Nabob
: .j:d not'fent him any orders to that purpofe, without which he could not give him any more
»,.:EMFY.fW the prifoners; that he then wrote his mafter (the Vizier) reprefenting the diftrefled
fituation of the families under his charge, but has yer received no anfwgg.

_In regard to the Hircariabs, he told the Moonfhee that he had orders from the Nabob
. not to admit any Hurcarrahs whatéver near the families of Hafiz and Doondy Khan,

B &hﬁo I fent my Moonfhee to the Commandane, 1 defired him to acquaint him, that I

made no doubt
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but the Nal;éb'would be fpoke to ; this 1 did to put him upon his guard, and relate the

truth if poffible. The name of the Commandant is Rofhink Khan. ~
Ihope, Sir, you will pardon me by troubling you with this long narrrative,

I am, &c.

Benares, 20 July 1774.
A. CHAMPION.

Tranflation of a Letter, under the Seal of the Nabeb Vizier, directed to Mahub
ulla. Khan and Fitte ulla Khan, dated the 1oth of Mohurrum 1188,

or March 23, 1774.

s H AV E received your'Addrefs ; the particulars are clearly underftood. Ye are very

dear to me, and have long been imprefled on my heart 3 1 therefore write, that ye
may remain in your own poffeflions in Biffoulee in perfect fecurity, and raife no commo-
tions. To what I write hereafter you will aét conformably, and you will focthe and
fatify all Rohillas who are difpofed to obey me. By the favour of God no cne fhall receive
injury.  The families of Rohillas I regard as my own. Let all remain in their ha-

bitations.”
(Signed) R. E. ROBERTS.
Perfian Interpreter.

Tranflation of a Letter, under the Seal of the Nabob Vizier, dire€ted to Mahub
ulla Xhan and Fitte ulla Khan, dated the 22d of Mohurrum, or April 4,

1774+

REVIOUS to this Mier Golawn Mahomed Khan will have arrived with you, and
made you acquainted with whatever was neceflary. By the bleffing of God there is
not the fmalleft difference between us ; nay there is the firmeft friendfhip, and all will be
well. Regarding the devaftation of your country, 1 have avoided m arching tLroughit,
Remain perfectly at eafe where you are ; whatever is befitting will be performed on my
part, and all will be well. Itis neceflary you regard me as a friend in this affair. Whatever:

Mier Golawn Mahomed Khan has engaged for 1 will not depart from.
(Signed)  R. E. ROBERTS,

. Perfian Interpreter.

Tranflation of a Letter, under Seal of the Nabob Vizier, direted to Tohurol
Niffa Begum, Mahub ulla Khan, and Fitte vlla Khan, No Date.

OUR Addrefs is received. What you write, that Mier Golawn Mahomed Khan is

arrived, and has related all particulars, and that ye will at agreeably thereto, relying
firmly on my friehdfbip, is ciearly underftood. It is manifeft thar I have long had true
regard for your families, and now that ye renew our former union all will moft cer-
tainly be well : nothing fhall be wanting on my part for your benefit, for I with for your
good and profperity. 1 am now marching by your boundaries by way of Cundforoon,
and it behoves that you' remain at home in perfect fecurity and firm to your agree-

ment.
(Signed) R. E. ROBERTS.
Perlian Interpreter.

Tranflation of a Letter from Mahub ulla Khan and Fitte ulla Khan, to
Colonel Champion. Received 3 June 1774. R

]

N confequence of Letters from the Nabob Vizier, who promifed to bencfit us gmﬂy,va .
remained in this country, otherwife we fhould have fled as the other Chiefs did, and

have preferved our characters and honors ; thofe he has taken away with ourseffedts; and

bow be bas difhonored us is known to @ll; and baving confined us with our famhé;, fends
~who have

us to Fyzabad. They who have fled have preferved their lives and honors 3 we

relied on the Nabob Vizier, have loft ours. We thercfore intreat you to releafe us, and =

take us to yourfelf, and our whole exiftence fhall be employed in your fervice ; and it will
‘ 1 “dor. by

wiit o
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bJ ;;hg'a'nor to you too, that we obtain juftice, and be releafed. The Nabob knows notﬂf s

our writing 3 perhaps it is advifable that whatever you may think proper to do for us pro-
ceeds from yourfelf, ; , »

N. B. The original Letter is herewith produced. » : ofk |
A. CHAMPION, ~ % ot

Extract of a Letter from Mr. Nathaniel Middleton, Reflident at the Nabob
Vizier’s Court, dated 1oth May 1774.

have had fo many proofs of his Excellency’s deviating from truth, as well as violating No.67.
his promifes, that I know not how to believe his affurances.

Extra¢t of a Letter from Lieutenant William Bruce, Field Engineer, dated
4th Auguft 1774.

-y HE people we have been among are ftrong and robuft ; they feem not to be fa- No. 68.
¢ feed by their prefent fituation, are of a haughty and independent temper, and ,
¢ confider their Sirdars more as kin{fmen than commanders.”’ 4

A. CHAMPION.

Return of Mufket Ammunition in Camp, 4th Auguft 1774, -

Mufket ball’d cartridges 147,000 No. 6g.
Ditto, ditto, ditto, damaged — — — 20,214
Mufket balls — s —_— — 110,208

Total 277,414

CHARLES CLARK,
Lieutenant and Deputy Commiffary of Artillery:

N. B. The whole complement of fpare balls not returned from the regiment of
Seapoys.
The regiment and Seapoy corps compleated to ten rounds per man, included in the
above.
(Signed) =~ WILLIAM BAILIE.

A, CHAMPION.

To Licutenant-Colonel Muir, commanding at Chunagur. g i
NCLOSED I fend an indent for ammunition and ftores for the ufe of the brigade in No. 70,
the field, and you will be pleafed to comply with it fo foon as any of Mr. lg:lfer’s
contract boats happen to arrive at your ftation on their way up; when they reach Kenouge
. they are to proceed to Berelly, through the Gambery (alfo called the Ram Gunga) river,
% whi%h falls into the Ganges about two Cofs to the weltward of Kenouge on the oppo-
o fite fide. ’
. If there are any of Mr. Frafer’s Budgerows, or any return Budgerow at Chuna, pleafe .
1o order Captain John Macpherfon to join the army, and put the faid ftores under. his
f".’»,,char%:; but if there is no conveyance, he may wait till one offers.
T have directed the articles indented for from your magazine to be replaced from Patna -
- and Mongheer. |
*‘ ¥

S o T

Camy at Biffoulee, 17 July 1774.

Lam, &g ! s
(Signed) -~ A, CHAMPION,

TR
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No, 71.

No. 72.

Col. Champion’s Anfwer to the Charges of Sujah Dowla. Appendix, N°XXVI. A,

Exfra& of a Letter from Mr. Murray, Secretary to the Commander in Chief,
to Mr. N. Middleton, Refident at the \iizicr’s Court.

SIR,

’ I "HE Commander in Chief defires you will be pleafed to remind his Excellency of the
promife which he made to fupply lead for 100,000 mufket balls, and the fooner it is

fent the greater favour,
5 Auguft 1774. (Signed)  A. CHAMPION.

Ficld-Engineer Bruce’s Opinion of the Rohilla Poft at Lall-Dang, 21t Oto-
ber 1774, to Colonel Alexande: Champion.

S you have done me the honor to afk my opinion relative to the fituation of the Ro-
A hillas, 1 fhall attempt a defcription of their poft at Lall-Dang, which the accompa-
nying furvey may help to elucidate.

After leaving the lines where the part of our army intended for the affault was to take poft,
we pafs through an exceflive thick jungle, compofed of bamboos, trees, and long grafs, in
which the enemy lying concealed would have greatly annoyed our troops as they marched
on to the attack. Having paffed two entrenchments, where we could expect fearcely any
refiftance, as they were in no place mufket proof, at the end of about two miles we come
dire€tly under the hills, from which, as the afcent is extremely difficult, the enemy could
have fired with impunity ; at the foot of thefe a low hill extends parallel to the road, on the
fummit of which the Rohillas had a brealt-work which reached acrofs the Sewafla, 3 very
rapid river ; here they determined to defend the entrance into their camp, and here we muit
have loft a number of men by a galling fire from the contiguous hills. Having carried
that brealt-work, which, as no part of it was feen or flanked by another, mult have been
abandoned upon the firft affault, the next obftacle that occurs is the pafling of the river,
the banks of which are fteep and cafily defended. From this the road leads directly, under
the northern hills, to a fecond paflage over the Sewafla, where from the heights a hand-
tul of refolute men are capable of oppufing a confiderable army.

To the fouthward of the river lies the fpot where the families of the Rohillas refided ;
but before we could reath thar, it would have been ablolutely neceflary to have gained
the fummit of the furrounding hills ; the flaughter that would have been the confequence of
fuch an attempt, if we confider that the Rohillas were fighting for, and in fight of their
families, muft undoubtedly have been dreadful. '

Upon the whole 1 am of opinion that the army uncer your ccmmand would have fuc-
ceeded in attacking ‘the Rohilla encampment; at the fame time, from the natural ftrength
of the fituation, a number of men muft have fallen in the atiempt.

I am, &c.

A, CHAMPION. ;
WILLIAM BRUCE.

Ticld-Engineer Penman’s Opinion of the Rohilla Poft at Lall-Dang. Camp,
13th October 1774.

N obedience to your commands I have taken a plan of the Rohilla poft and outworks
I on the road leading to it. Their principal work is on the edge of a natural bank, which
forms the bafe of two hills that cover the flanks, and arapid river, called Sewa Sing, with
large ftones in its bed. In order to gain this poft it is neceffary to ford this river feveral
times; and as the banks are very high and fteep, and covered with trees and jungles, the
paflages might be difputed with great advantages to the Rohillas ; artillery might be.effec-
taal in diflodging the enemy from their entrenchments, but 1 do not think it would be of
any fervice furcher, as the valley is covered with trees, and fo narrow that it would be im-
poffible for the troops to advance in line, and mufketry from the hills would gall a columa
moft feverely. The natural ftrength of this poft is greater than can well be deferibed, and
I am confident that a handful of refolute men might baffle the attempts of the moft

" daning affailants ; nor could any thing in wy humble opinion be more dangerous than to

2



'to fuch an attack, as I have alwa! that it is almoft impof-'

le'to._prevent Seapoys from throwing away their fire, by which means they would of
: Wﬁ fall a aﬁiﬁée ) lhave,&c MR T G

(Nlwo) (S D, PENMAN, B e
(Brgint) b0 ACGRAMPTON, | <01 v 3 RV Sl s

el IO 4 A, ¥ el e ',":“,_"‘ g : ) : ;
Colonel Champion to the Honorable Wareen Haftings, June' 14, 1774. i
" HAVE been bonored with your Letters dated 27th and 28th, which will be an- 4,
fwered this day 5 bt 1 mult reply feparatel ;q that gart which regards Mr: Murray’s
conduét to the Vizier at Peelebut, by fg;ing 1 faw no difrefpeétful behaviour from him :
to the Vizier. If fpeaking to him is a fault, its what he Brought on himfelf, for it wasat v
bis particular requeft that thofe gentlemen were introduced 3 and as Mr, -Murgayw[p%& i
the Petfian Language extremely well, he endeavoured only to explain what was intended. i

by the gentlemen going into the fort, a meafure which I thought mylelf ablolutely necef-
{ary to quiet the mipds of the men that no fuch treafure exifted ; nor do I recolleét a word: o
of the Marattas being mentioned, or that the Seapoys would plunder the country if not
permitted to enter the fort, It concerns me much that you fhould ﬁ;}pofe Mr. Murray’s- g
conduét deferving fo {evere a cenfure as you have paffed upon him, for I am convinced =
that his Echaviour merits thanks more than otherwife, and I flatter myfelf, when he is. :
* known to you, sthat you will have no prejudice againft him ; for I do affirm it to be a ma-
licious and falfe réport, and what the Vizier would rever have done but by the advice of y
a particular perfon, His Excellency fhewed me the copy of the Letter which he faid was “
intended for you at that time, and as T could prove feveral parts of it to be falfe, he pro-
mifed not to fend it : ‘ J o it
In all my Letters 1 have firictly attended to fals, being very defirous of meriting your . ;
confidence with your friéendfhip ; and if others had been in my fitvation, perhaps they Vi e
would have confulted their own intereft before that of the public ; however I receive as : 4
much fatisfaction in the reflection of having done my duty as the reward for ill fervices, and ‘
fbould my conduék but meet with your approbation: fhall&'c better contented, With my beft

withes for your health, 1 remain, &, ‘

o e y

] e A,’ , 3'{" il , ; : ; ,'. \”‘ A-‘ \ e . ,";"’ ; : i
hampios ':@;ﬁbg@gggo;ab]c Warren I{%@ings, dated 14th June 1774.

8

Lo i

your, Letter of the 28th vltimo, intimating the Vizier's com
paffed at Peclebut. I cannet acquicfce in the opinion that
b’s argument on the fubjet of prize-money is unanfwerable,
o forcitile as you conclude it ; but as our fentimenis on that
ery us 1 cannotialter mine, and beingfully fatisfied that I have difch
= fop the fubject, left it may be thought chac felf-in

: o N ,'; ¢ y By A o
difference between: the Vizier’s and my account of

1 wrote you regar
: %unw.ahum fcruples
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ing it muft be to a man of any fenfibility or feeling, to think that you could for a moment
harbour thoughts of him which be is conicious are highly unjult, and which you in the end
‘muft find to have been fo 3 nor, high as your ftation is, can you eafily make up to a man
for the pain he feels on fuch an occafion. » fe 0y

Having faid this much; I am to inform you, that I have from the Arft |{1varxably fol-
lowed the very praciice which is recommended and prefcribed to me regarding my con-
fultations with the Vizicr ; for, excepiing the interpreter, nqnc.of ‘thc gentlemen of my
family have ever been prefent at any of my conferences with his Excellency, unlefs when
called upon to give information regarding matters belonging to the departments they
hold 3 and in this one inftance at Peclebut, the gentlemen, of whom he fo vehemently and
fo unjultly compluins, were called inat his own exprefs requeft. I am not entirely fo great
a flranger to the contents of the Nabob’s Letter as you may imagine ; he brought me a
copy ot one, which he faid he intended writing you ; it was replete with untruths, and
particularly contained a moft ludicrous one with regard to myfelf 5 but vpon my recom=
mending to him not to advance allegations which would fubject him to the mortification
ot much juft odium on account of their want of foundation, he foleminly faid he would
not fend it at all ; how well he has kept his word is mani‘eft. T afcribe your not fending a
full duplicate of the Lectter to a delicacy for which 1 heartily thank you; butas I can read
it without any other concern than that a man of his rank {hould render himlelf fo defpicable;
I requeft the favour of a full copy of the Letter in the original Perfian. ‘

With regard to what you have been plealed to fay of Mr. Murray, on the reprefentation
of the Vizier, though I have a diflike to the pen, I think it proper, in juftification of that
gentlerman, to addrefs you in my own hand ;5 and as I recoliet that, in the copy of the
Letter thewn me by the Vizier, he accufed the other gentleman alfo of rudenefs, 1 muft ob-
ferve, that I remember having remarked to my Sccretary in private the propricty of thefe gen-
tlemens’ condu¢t on that occafion 3 and 1 will add, but that for the moderation of the three
gentlemen comuwiflioned to go into the fort, it is more than probable the fearch would
have been cffectual, and of courfe very difagreeable to the Nabob, fince, inftead of 5000
Rupees, 1am well affured he has found near half a million fterling in it.

With regard to the order, prohibiting any officers from vifiting the Nabob without my
permiffion, 1 had always paid my predeceflor the like compliment ; and Iam perfectly con-
vinced that neither Colonel Galliez, nor the other gentlemen, lay the odium of that order at
my door, It was not iffued till feveral days after Colonel Galliez’s vifit, nor till after Mr.
Middieton fignified to me that he had received inftructions to inform you if any officers went
to the Vizier, which, as it feemed to carry with it a doubt of my attention to your requett,
determined me to take what appeared, and what I am certain was, the moft effeétual me-
thod of infuring ftrnié comphance with ir, as 1 know that gentlemen below the rank of
field officers had been to pay their compliments to the Nabob, and would probably be

troublelome to him.
1 am, &c.

(Signed) A, CHAMPION.

Tranflation of a Letter from the Nabob Mahub ulla Khan to Captain A.
Macpherfon. Received at Bifloulee, 7th June 1574, by the Hands of a Hir-
carrah, who brought it from Berelly. | ;

MERCIFUL and beneficent beftower of favouts upon the poor; God grant you
health! ; )
Beiore this we fent a humble Addrefs to the General, our Mafter [May the Almighty
preferve him in health 1) as yer we have not been honored by an anfwer.  The cafe is this
that on the earth we have no protection but him, and from his turning his face towards us do
we expect our enlargement. ‘The Nabob Vizier did comfort us, and then take our country,
our riches, and our honor, and more than that, e imprifoned us, and fent us on our way to
Bungleh, and we arc now arrived at Berclly, but know riot our future ftages; and on th
account addrefs you, that for the fake of God, and Chrift, ahd Mofes; and Mary, he
does (meaning the Colonel) releafe us, and, God willing, during our cxlftenc‘, we will 1
deparc from being his flaves, and our whole lives thall be devoted to his fervice and fame 3
will make it known in the feven divifions of the earth, that the Nabob Vizier, after shaving
pledged his promife, treated us in this manner, and that the European ngm"beﬁom ;
life upon us, for which God 'will in the end reward them, . ol ol BT
My kind patron, who knows the meafute of my fituation on the earth, I have no other

fopporter, and whatever can be done for us will beall from you, e

Ve
+

. A of 1551 Fipey RIS
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For the fake of God let the fubject of this Letter be kept fecret, as it might expofe us
to flill greater hardfhips, but after reading it tear it in pieces * and ‘more what have 1 to
addrefs you on? ‘ :

O my guardian turn your faceto the bufinefs of a flave, and have us enlarged, and it
will not go unrewarded. i Wil S g e ‘

My #riend, whatever the General or you may fay to the Nabob in behalf of your fervants,
let it be from yourlelvés, that this flave may not appear in it, for if the Nabob Vizier
knows it is from me, it is uncertain what he may do.

A. MACPHERSON.

To Colonel Alexander Champioh.

N confequence of the ftrong injunctions laid upon me by Mahub ulla Khan, it is with

great reluctance 1 give up the above tranflation of his Letter ; indeed nothing fhould
induce me to doit, but your affurances, and my own belief, that it is meant for the good of
that unfortunate Chief and his family ; for I fhould be extremely unhappy were I in the fmalleft
degree inftrumental in making their fituation more difagreeable than it already is, by in-
creafing the Nabob’s refentment againft them.

I have the honor, &c.
(Signed)  A. MACPHERSON.

Tranflation of a Letter from Jowkeroon Neza Begum to Colonel Champion.
Received about the 6th of May 1774.

"HAT has happened, and will happen in our affairs, is entirely owing to the Com- Fo, 1007. E.
pany and to the Englifh commanders, who are pofieffed of the beft afylum ; there-
fore, thus diftrefsful, I claim the fhade of the Company’s flag for protetticn to my virtue,
my honor, my offspring, Mahub ulla Khan, 8&c. and my property, and 1 am hopeful that at
all events they will take me by the hand.

My virtue, my honor, my life, and wealth, I put in charge of the Company, and under the
kind fhade of the Company Iam arrived : if they deviate from the path of righteoufnefs, I
‘will in the end, before God and the Prophet; return it on the Company, whofe garment
1 grafp. .

gMypcxpc&ations are not for ah Anfwer to thi§ humble Addrefs; I am arrived under the
fhade of the Company’s flag, and lay hold of their protection, and it is neceffary that the
Englith gentlemen turn their countenance towards our folicitations.

N. B. The above tranflation is made from a.copy which was taken when the Letter was

received, but the original Letter is miflaid.
(Signed) A. CHAMPION,

Copy of a Letter from Mr, M‘Kenzie to the Commander in Chicf, dated
2d Augullt 1774. "

A A AJOR Stainforth has juft now reported to me that the regiment is totally in want
of thoes. By the Surgeon Major’s report, juft now received, there are now fifty-
three m the hofpital, and one man dead. Many officers tents were not up to-day till late
in thg‘l:ﬁcmoon, oecafioned by the weaknefs of the cattle, particularly the camels. ’

, '. (Signed) ~ A. MACKENZIE.

]

"i"o Major M<Kenzie, commanding the fecond Brigade.

APTAIN Edmondfon has juft now informed me, that one hundred Seapoys of his pe1, s007,
batralion were without a fingle grain of provifions yefterday, and as yet they have

not been able to purchafe any ; near the fame number of my battalion have had no pro-

vifion either Lc&erd:w or to-day, nor can they purchafe any in the Bozars. I cxpeég to

reteive complaints on this fubject from the Caprains of the different battalions every moment.

None ot the officers, fervants, colics, 8c. can ger any provifions,
: ; iy TRER 7", : ol I 'm, &&
' A.CHAMPION. (Signed)  CHARLES IRONSIDE, Captain.

o7 (LA
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B mmu + Latter to. the Nabab Vmwm Colonel cmmprm, 12th
: July 1774~

CCOMPANYING a man who was feized in uteaﬁpung to kill anozher. He
. confelfes 10 have murdered three men within thele two. moﬂhs; ‘but having be
without the limits of our camp, Colonel Champum does not, chuﬁ‘. L phmlh hxm,
and therefare fends him to the Vizier fqr that purpofe. P

(ngned} - E‘- R IC?SI;E;RT.S,‘; o

" \

Copy of 4 Note from Mr. Nathamcl dedlcton to Mr. Murray, Sccretary to
the Commawder in Chxcf Aol '?r“ b

TAINED yourHu:amh fince yoﬁerday, in order that’ I ‘might have a unity
?Ffpcnkx to his Exceliency refpecing the lead, and that T might w myﬁf with
certainty how far it might be in my power to comply with the ’Q&Om‘l‘i requeft with
regard to the purchafeof wax cloths bor on neither of thefe fiibjects can I yet anfwer you
with precifion.—~The lead, bis Excellency fays, is with his amah behind, and "t:annot
be here before to-morrow's - perhaps he fpeaks truth'; “however I fhall know this evening,
and will at the fame time let you me whether it is pomblé ‘to  get the wax cloth made
while we are on the march: procuring it ready prepared is out of the queftion, “for 1 was
under the neceffity of fetting my people: to wark to mnke“a few ﬁmﬂ*fw my own nﬂ:. none

being to be found in the Buzars, - , ; ;
T am} 8 v Wik ¥ it ,.*
: : (Sigmd) N. MIDDLETON.

A. CHAMPION. s 3 e P

The Governor-General remarks on, the above !Eatmﬁs ‘ﬁﬂ% ﬁogﬁe fime quc(hons to
Colonel Galliez and ‘the other Field Officers” of the fecond brigade, which he mtcads to
deliver in wrxtmg to the Sccmary

A

1
f

The Gover.  He alfo now propofes that Colonel Champm bc «n,d Wﬂ? laie
nor will pro- aljuded to in his Letter, and referred b ¥ ‘marginal note to the 7th Ju
0

| P ey declaration which, the Vizier required 51“1 for the vindication
bt officers of the

2dbrigade. Resotvep, That the following Letter be wémdmsly wtmn o0 Colonel Champmn. %
4l i | “ K‘“,,"'“‘ b i e ‘»K: M' b ;‘ . ' ' y
¥ ,as I R‘ O

Col. Cham. a S'in your Letter to us, m ;efunuog"o A'

pion called on
tor an expls- gan.,?c"fu?d "f‘?w uén“ Q*
nation of one NOVANAING "ex}ﬁ‘ in thc

reference.  We are now'to defire that you mform us r
e alludes, and on whar obcgﬁon the V'mgr hou
it adcclaunen ftm ‘in, vindication of hi

his moft urgent
for thcm '
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To Mr. John Briftow, Refident at the Court of the Nabob of Oude.

SIR,

MMEDIATELY on your arrival at the Court of the Nabob of Oude, we defire

that you enquire carefully into the prefent circumftances and fituation of the furviving
parts of the families of Hafiz Rhamut, and the other Rohilla chiefs,. who were taken
prifoners by the late Vizier, and to interpofe your moft urgent and ftrenuous good offices
with the prefent government of Qude to obtain for them freedom, united with fome certain
and honorable provifion and maintenance, and to report the facts, and the confequences
of your folicitations, as foon as poffible.

We are, &c.

The Governor-General propofes, that fuch parts of Colonel Champion’s Letter, and of
the vouchers which accompanied it, as contain any fpecific charges againft the late Vizier,
be copied, and fent, with tranflations in the Perfian language, to the Refident at the Court of
Oude, with orders to deliver the tranflations to the Nabob, that he may reply to them, or
take fuch meafures as he may think neceflary for the vindication of his father; and further,
that the Refident be directed to take all proper means to inform himfelf of the real ftate
and truth of the facts alluded to, and that he advife the Board of the fame]; and alfo that
he communicate the extracts to Colonel Galliez for the fame purpofe.

Orperep, That the proper extracts be aceordingly taken by the Secretary, and that
tranflations of thefe be made by the Perfian Tran{lator for the purpofe mentioned in the
Governor-General’s propofal.

APPENDIX, No XXVI. B.

Extract of Secret Confultations, Fort William, 24th February 1775.

The Governor-Geéneral lays before the Board copy of a Legter which he lately
wrote to Colonel Champion, with the Colonel’s anfwer thereto, and requefts
that copies of both thefe papers may be fent home numbers in the packet,
acquainting the Board, that he means, after the difpatch of thefe fhips, to
proceed on the examination of Colonel Champion’s Letter (in reply to the
Vizier's) in' terms of the notice given him.

Copy of a Letter to Colonel Champion, dated Fort William, the 16th
February 1775.

S IR,

N the vindication of your conduct, which you lately dclivered to the Board, you have
I thought proper to advance feveral heavy accufations againft me and the late Adminiftra-
‘tion, ‘from which it is incumbent on me both to exculpate myfelf and them ; but the fhort
time remaining between the delivery 6f your vindication and the departure of the Pacific,
and the load of other bufinefs which neceffarily engages my time, will render it impoflible
for me to prepare my reply to your vindication before the departure of that fhip in which
you have taken your paffage: 1 therefore think it neceffary to inform you of my intention
of replying fully to your vindication, not only in defence of my own and the conduét of
the late Adminiftration from your accufations, but alfo in examination of the charges which
the late Vizier preferred againft you, particularly that of the long inaction of the brigade
before Lall-Dang. As thefe accufations were addrefied to me by the Vizier in my capacity
of the firft Member of the Adminiftration, it became the duty of m.y'ﬂ‘a!{”pn”;o fubmit them
to enquiry ; and the method I preferred was to give them to your perufal, never doubring but
your promifed vindicationwould contain an ample refuration of them ¢ but it does not appear
to me that you have refuted them.—I now acquaint you, that | fhall fubmit thefe matters
- to the examination and decifion of the Board, 1imd make a very free enquiry into fuch part;
B 5 J : G

The Refident
at the Court
of Oude to
enquire after
the Rohilla
families,

e
pi tter

to be fent in
Perfian to the
Nabob.

The Gover-
nor to Col.
Champion.
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of your condu® as have been arraigned by the Vizier : and T give you this notice, -to pre-
vent a foppolition of my taking advantage of your abfence in the profecution of thefe
enquiries, that you may, if you think it neceffary, defer your departure, for the opportunity
cither of fupporting the accufations you have brought againft the late Adminiftration and
me, or defending yourfelf from the charges which- may appear againlt you. The delay

" which has taken place in this enquiry, muft be attributed to the length of time which has

paffed before the delivery of your vindication.
Iam, &c.

(Signed) WARREN HASTINGS.

SIR,

Have your favour,‘ dated the 17th inflant. In my fate Addrefs to the Board I advanced
nothing mew ; it is only the fubftance of ‘what 1 had before faid in the courfe of

oy er- correfpondence collected into one view, with a few obfervations which naturally arofe

from the fubjeé : thefe were infeparably connected with my vindication ; and I beg leave to
be of opinion, that they are fully {upported by the fatts premifed.

It may be convenient to endeavour at making the gentlemen of the late Adminiftration
confider the caufé a commen one, in order to engage their fupport ; but 1 hold them to be
in a very different predicament,

Do you mean to apologize for producing the Vizier’s Letter, when you fay it was a
matter of duty? I grant it was; but I cannot admit that it was any part of your duty to
with-hold, asyou did, that Letter from me for a whole month, when you knew I had
taken my paffage on the Pacific, and that if fhe thould fail at the time it was then intended
to difpatch her, it would have been morally impofiible for me to have prepared my
vindication. .

With regard to your intended freedom of enquiry, 1am fo confcious of the entire propriety
of every part of my conduét, fo felf fatisfied of its being-invulnerable, that I fecl myfelf ac
perfect eafe in fuffering you to take advantage, not only of the influence which your ftation
gives you, but alfo of my abfence, relying on the honor of Adminiftration for impartial
difquifitions.

You have already had my Addrefs fixteen days, therefore the delay in your enquiries
muft not be imputed to the time which I, of neceflity, took to lay my vindication and
the immenfe volume of correfpondence before the Board ;, be pleafed to acknowledge, that
it muft be attributed te the extraordinary circumftance of your having kept vp the Vizier’s
Letter from the 28th of November till the 28th of December,

I am forry you profefs an opinion that I have not refuted the late Vizier’s charges, but
I firmly hope and believe you will be thought fingular in that refpect. It is not, however,
your opinion or mine that can be the criterion of paifing judgment on the parts we have
refpectively acted. I am on the eve of embarking for the place where all muft be
ulumately determined, and I go with chearfulnefs to ftand the decifion, fully convinced that
J fhall carry with me documents that muft infallibly render abortive the moft rigorous
enquiry it may bé in your power to make,

I am, &c.

~ (Signed) ‘A. CHAMPION,

Bute’s packet, agreeable to the defire of the Governor-General,
; .

Orperen, That Copies of the above Letters be fent to the Court of DireCtors in the

APPENDIX, No. XXV C.

Extraét of Secret Contultations, Fort William, zoth March 1775

Py

Thc following Minute' and ’Qg,cﬁioné; propofed by *thc"','Gc‘:fernor-Gcneral,

-~ having been fent in eirculation to the Members of the Board, they were
- received back, with their obfervations mwpon them, which follow the

P A
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The Governor-General, agreeable to his intimation in Confultation of the 14th
February, now delivers the following Queftions, which he propofes to be
put to the Field Officers and others who ferved in the laft campaign, for the
clucidation of feveral matters which he thinks it will be neceflary to afcertain
in reply to Colonel Champion’s Letter.

Queftions to be propofed to Colonel Gailiez.

QeesTION 1. DO you think our army could have attacked and forced the Rohilla poft
at Lall-Dang at any time while they lay before it ? ‘

2. Had you any account, or did you know how the Rohillas were armed and furnifhed
with ammunition at Lall-Dang ?

3. What works had the Rohillas thrown up at Lall-Dang ?

4. Were there any roads to the enemy’s poft, and of what nature ?

5. Did you view them? did you conceive them to be practicable, or the camp eafy of

accefs 7 and did you report your opinion of thefe matters to Colonel Champion ?

6. What was his reply ?

7. In cafe i had attacked the Rohillas, and forced their poft at Lall-Dang, bad they any

retreat |

8. Was the Rohilla poft clofe invefted, and how long ?

9. Do you know why it was not earlier clofely invefted ?

o. How were the Rohillas fupplied with provifions? and had they any opportunity of

drawing them from the neighbouring country ?

11. Do you know, or have you caufe to fufpect, by whom the enemy were fupplied with

' provifions from your army ?

12, Did you ever intimate fuch an opinion to Colonel Champion ?|

13. What was his reply ? _

14. Was there any Vackeel or meflenger at any time fent exclufively to Colonel Champion,
and not to the Vizier ?

15. What was the flate of the army when it marched from Biffoulee ? was it fickly ? was
it in a condition to take the field?

16. Did their ficknefs increafe, or did the fick recover after their march?

17. What ammunition did you carry from Biffoulee? "

18. Was that fufficient for the campaign ?

19. Was there any left at Biffoulee, or on board the ftore boats, and could it have been
carried with you ? i

20. Do you know why it was not ?

21. What was the nature of your progrefs from Biffoulee towards Lall-Dang until you arrived
at your laft ground before that poft ? was it uniformly expeditious, or at any time
attended wirh what appeared to you unneceflary delay ? )

22. What do you conceive was the diftance between Pattergur and the Rohilia poft ac
Lall-Dang ?

23. How long was it from the time of your arrival at Pattergur until the furrender of
Fyzoolla Khan? &

24. Did you fee the Rohillas after the pacification, and what was their condition ? :

25. Had a more adtive conduét been purfued, and the moft vigorous meafures taken, in
how long a time do you conceive the war might have been concluded from the
time of your arrival at Pattergur ?

26. What was the general opinion of tiie amount of Fyzoolla Khan’s treafure ?

2. What was the general character of Collychurn, and in what capacity was he employed
with Colonel Champion ? ¢

28. Do you know, or do you believe, he had any intercourfe with Fyzoolla Khan, or any

‘ of the Rohilla Sirdars ?

29. Where were the Rohilla prifoners at or about the 31ft May ? '

30, How were they were carried on the march ? RS DRy

31. Do you know whether any of the women of the Rohilla chiefs were fearched for

: jewels in the Vizier’s prefence at or about that time? -

32. Do you know of any inftances of violence or cruclty wantonly exercifed upon the

p |

LA b

. Rohilla captives? vi ik, R i
.33 Was it, do you fuppofe, in confequence of inftructions from the Vizier, or with his
privacy ? :
!l.

i ’“‘\ ‘ 3 34" W”

“?43"
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20, Do you know why it was n

Queries by the Governor-General to Field Oficers. Appendix, No XXVL C.

34. Was Mahub ulla Khan engaged in the war? E Ty o ..

35. Do you know whether he had given the Vizier any caufe of refentment againft him ?

:36. Have you reafon to believe, from the knowledge you had of the Vizier, that he was
of a fanguinary or cruel difpofition ? :

37. Inwhat light were the Englith troops confidered by the natives and people in general,
compared with former campaigns, wherc our troops and the Vizier’s have acted in
conjunétion? o f e

38. Do you know, or have you ever heard, what were the Vizier’s fentiments and inclina-

. tions refpecting an attack upon the Rohilla poft at Lall-Dang?

39. Do you know, or have you ever heard, that his Excellency at any time affigned the
caufe of the delays which occurred in your united operations againft the Robhillas at
Lall-Dang, and what was it?

40. Do you believe, or have you reafon to fuppoft, his Excellency was inclined to have

put an earlier period to the war ?
41. Do you know, or have you ever heard, what were the Vizier’s fentiments on the

meafure of deputing Mr. Murray to treat with Fyzoolla Khan?

42. Did you ever hear what were the Vizier’s fentiments with refpect to the diftribution
of the plunder, which, in cafe of an attack by our united forces, thould be taken
in Lall-Dang ?

43. Did you fee any villages fet on-fire in the Rohilla country after the action of the
23d April ?

44. Do. you fuppofe it was in confequence of inftructions from the Vizier, or with his

privacy ?
(Signed) WARREN HASTINGS.

ueftions to be propofed to Colonel Leflie.

at Lall-Dang at any time while they lay before it ?
Had you any account, or did you know how the Rohillas were armed and furnifhed
with ammunition at Lall-Dang ? ,
. What works had the Rohillas thiowa up at Lall-Dang ?
. Were there any roads to the enemy’s poft, and of what nature ?
. Did you view them ? did you conceive them to be pralticable, or the camp eafy of accefs 2
and did you report your opinion of thefe matters to Colonel Champion ?
. What was his rcp’;'?
. In cafe you had attacked the Rohillas, and forced their polt at Lall-Dang, had they any
retreat ? 4
Was the Rohilla poft clofe invefted, and how long ?
Do you know why it was not earlier clofe invefted ?
. How were the Rohillas fupplied with provifions, and had they any opportunity of
drawing them from the neighbouring coantry ?
. Do you know, or have you caufe to fufpect, whether, and by whom, the enemy were
fupplied with provifions from our army ? ;
12, Did you ever intimate {uch an opinion to Colonel Champion ?
13. What was his reply? N ' : |
14, Was there any Vickc‘cl or meflenger at any time {ent exclulively to Colonel Champion,

QuEsTION 1. DO you think our army could have attacked and forced the Rohilla poft
2.

OV & yoy & 2w

-
e

and not to the Vizier? L bR T W%
15. What was the ftate of the army when it marched from Biffoulee?  was it fickly, was
it in a condition to take the field ? FR R ‘
16. Did their ficknes increafe, or did the fick recover after their march ?-
17. What ammupition did you carry from Biffoulee ? , '
18. Was that fufficient for CRMMBRIIRE Ot 4, Wi
' on board the ftore boats, and could it have been

19. Was there any lefe at Biffoulee, or on |
carried wich you? 0 o

# AN

21. What was the nature of your p
~ arrived at your laft ground before
~ time attended with what : (
22, What do you conceive was the diftance b
~ Lall-Dang ? g B

‘R
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g Av what time did the army arrive at Biffoulcc, and bow long did.
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23. How long wis it from the time of your arrival at Pattergur until the furrender of

"' |Fyzoolla Khan? R _ : TN

24. Did you fee e..Rol'ﬂ:s after the pacification, and what was their condition ?

25. Had a more active conduét been purfued, and the moft vigorous meafures taken, in

, how long a time do you conccive the war might have been concluded from the time
of your arrival at Pattergur ? ; s b

26. What was the general opinion of the amount of FyzooMa Khan’s treafure?

27. What was the general character of Collychurn, and in what capacity was he employed
with Coelonel Champion ? :

28. Do you know, or do you believe, he had any intercotrfec with Fyzoolla Khan, or any
of the Rohilla Sirdars ? i W L

29. Where were the Robhilla prifoners at 6r about the 3‘1(’: May ? -

30. How were they carried on the march? : ‘

31. Do you know whether any of the women of the Rohilla chiefs were fearched for jewels
in the Vizier’s prefence, at or about that time? :

32. Do you know of any inftances of violence or cruelty wantonly exercifed upon the
Rohilla caprives? i

33. Was it do? you fuppofe, in confequence of inftructions from the Vizier, or with his
privacy , ,

34. Was Mahub ulla Khan engaged in the war 2 ‘

35. Do you know whether he had given the Vizier any caufe of refentment againft him ?

36. Have you reafon to believe, from the knowledge you had of the Vizier, that he was
of a fanguinary or cruel difpofition ?

37. Inwhat light were the Englith troops confidered by the natives and people in general,
compared with former campaigns, where our troops and the Vizier’s have acted in
conjunction ? ‘

38. Do you know any thing, or did you ever hear of a Letter received by Colonel
Champion from the Rohilla Sirdars collectively on or about the day preceding the

_. attion of the 23d April ? :

39. Do you know, or have you ever heard, what were its confequences ?

20. Did you ever hear of a Fitte-Nama faid to have been publithed in the Vizier’s
dominions upon the defeat of Hafiz Rhamut.

41. What was the ftyle and purport of it ?

42. Did you ever hear in what manner, and in what terms, the viftory was proclaimed
at the court of Delbi ? :

43. Do you know, or have you ever heard, what were the Vizicr’s fentiments and incli-
nations refpecting an attack upon the Rohilla poft at Lall-Dang?

44. Do you know, or have you ever heard, that his Excellency fr any time affigned the
caufe of the delays which occurred in your united -operations againft the Rohillah
at Lall-Dang, and what was it?

45. Do you belicve, or have you reafon to fuppole, his Excellency was inclined to have
put an earlier period to 'the war ? :

46. Do you know, or have you ever heard, what were the Vizier’s fentiments on the mea-
fure of deputing Mr. Murray. to treat with Fyzoolla Khan?

47. Do you koow, or have you ever heard, what were the Vizier’s fentjni'tniq with refpeét
to the diftribution of the plunder, which, in q:_tfc of an attack by our united forces,

- fhould be taken in Lall-Dang?

48. When did Colonel Champion fignify his intentions of moving the brigade from Patteggur
towards the enemy? AN e

49. Were any of the Vizier’s troops advanced at that time ? .

50. Did you fee any villages fet on fire in the Rohilla country after the aftion of the

; 23d April? ? Al
51, Do gou l?:ppofe it was in confequence of inftructions from the Vizier, or with his

knowlcdgt? o fens g .
_ ‘ b (Signed) = WARREN HASTINGS. , -

. Additional Queftions to Colonel Leflic. %
Qig.f.'rtbﬁl."‘;f H'Y did not the army purfue the Ro}nllasmeﬂﬁy’ after they
e ROTRRR Y 1%&(&“&“ at Cutterah ? 5 it "& T

"2, Was the army in a condition to follow the Rohillas? =

A, t k s ~
< . ok oy e W!" there before




©Queries by the Governor-General to Field Offiers, Appendix, NXX V1.,

4 What was the-diftance between Biffoulee and Lall-Dang? . - ;
5. Was it pot the received opinion in camp, that the Rohillas in their fetreat had thrown
.. -away their arms and ammunition ? , ; : _

6, Provided the Rohillas had been purfued immediately after the w;lé'tory to their retreat at

" Lall.Dang, do you think they would have been able to lay in a magazine of provi-

. fions fufficient for their fupport, and that of their followers, for any length of time?

. 7. How long do you fuppofc ? .

%, ‘What was the diltance between Biffoulee and Pattergur, and how long did the army
take to march that diftance ? ) Gy ¥

9. Were any partics fent out to intercept the fupplies of provifions, which it was reported
the enemy daily received from various quarters ?

10. Had Fyzoolla Khan any astillery with him at Lall-Dang ? ‘0 .

11. When Lieutenant Bruce, the Ficld-Engineer, returned from viewing the Rohilla lines
at Lall-Dang, did he deliver, to your knowledge, any opinion as to the ftrength of
their works, the nature of the approach to the lines, and the practicability of at-
tacking them, and what was it? ;

12. Subfequent to the Engineer’s report, had you any grounds for believing, or even fup-
pofing that the Rotillas had any place of flrength to retire to beyond thofe works
which had been feen by Lieutenant Bruce ? j

13. What do you fuppofe was the ftrength of the Rohilla forces when the treaty of peace
was proclaimed ?

14. What was the ftrength of the united forces of the Englith and the Vizier at this period ?

(Signed) WARREN HASTINGS.
Queflions to be propofed to Major Hannay.

at Lall-Dang at any time while they lay before it ? .
. Had you any account, or did you know, how the Rohillas were armed and furnifhed
with ammunition at Lall-Dang ? :
. What works had the Rohillas thrown up at Lall-Dang?
Were there any roads to the enemy’s poft, and of what nature ?
Did you view them ? did you conceive them to be practicable, or the camp eafy of
accefs ? and did you report your opinion of thefe matrters to Colonel Champion?
. What was his reply ?
. In cafe you had attacked the Rohillas, and forced their poft at Lall-Dang, had they any
retreat ?
. Was the Rohilla poft clofe invefted, and how long ?
. Do you know why it was not earlier clofely invelted ?
How were the Rohillas fupplied with provifions, and had they any opportunity of
drawing them from the neighbouring country ? ,
. Do you know, or have you caule to fufpect, whether, and by whom, the enemy were
{upplied with provifions from our army ?
¥2, Did you ever intimate fuch an opinion to Colonel Champion ?
13. What was his reply? \ '
14. Was there any Vackeel or meflenger at any time fent exclufively to Colonel Champion,
and not to the Vizier ? :

QuEsTION 1. DO you think our army could have attacked and forced the Robilla poft
2

SO N Vaew

~
—

15. What was the ftate of the army when it marched from Biffoulee ? was it fiekly, was V

it in a condition to take the fisld?
16, Did their ficknefs increafe, or did the fick recover after their march?
- 17. What ammunition did you carry from Biffoulee ?
18. Was that fufficient for the campaign? =~ LA ;
19. Was there any left at Biffoulee, or on board the ftore-boats, and could it have been
carried with you? 3y ;
20. Do you know why it was not 2 e ;
21. What was the nature of your progrefs from Biffoulec towards Lall-Dang until you
+ arrived at your lalt ground before that poft? was it uniformly expeditious, or at
any time attended with what appeared to you unncceflary delay? 3
22. wﬁl?})) you ’conccive was the diftance between Pattergur and the Rohilla poft as
- Lall-Dang ? bt A : |
23. How long was it from the time of your arrival at Pattergur until the furrender of
' Fyzoolla Khan? i it e 5 8
ity 24, Did

8
Tl s
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54. Did you fee ithe Rohillas afier the pacification, and what was their condition? R
Q Had a more aftive conduct been purfucd and the mo(t vigorous meafures taken, in
. how long a time do you conceive the war xmght havc been concluded from the

time of your arrival at Parttergur ?

26. What was the general opinion of the amount of Fyzoolla Khans treqfurc’ .

27. What was the general character of Coliychurn, and ih what capacity was he employed
with Colonel Champion?

28. Do you know, or do you believe, he had any mtercourfc with Fyzoolla Khan, or
any of the Rohilla Sirdars ?

29. Where were the Rohilla prifoners at or about the 31t May

30. How were they carried on the march?

31. Do you know whether any: of the women of the Rohilla chnefs were fearched for
jewels in the Vizier’s prefence at or about that time ?

32. Do you know of any inftances of violence or cruelty wantonly cmerc:fcd upon the Ro-
hilla captives ?

33. Was it, do you fuppofe, in conf:qucncc of inftrultions from the Vmer, or with his
privacy

24. Was Mahub ulla Khan cngaged in the war ?

‘35, Do you know whether he had given the Vizier any caufe of refentment againit him ?

36. Have you reafon to believe, from the knowledge you had of the Vizier, that he was of 4
fanguinary or cruel difpofition ?

37. In what light were the Englith troops confidered by the natives and peoplc in general,
comparrd with former campaigus, where our troops and the Vizier’s have alted in

. conjunttion ?

38. Do you know any thing, or did you ever hear of a Letter teceived by Colonel Cham-
pton from the Rohnua Sirdats collectively on or abouc the day preceding the action
of the z3d April?

39- Do you know, or have you ever heard, what were its confequences ?

4b. Did you ever hear of a Fitte-Nama faid to have beén publifhed in the szxers do-

" minions upon the defeat of Hafiz Rhamut?

41. What was the ﬂylc and purport of it?

42. Did you ever hear in what manner, and in what terms, the viétory was proclaimed at |
the court of Delhi? .

43. Did you at any time hear the Vizier exprefs ‘an ‘mclmanon to attack the Rokilla poit
at Lall-Dang?

44. Did he ever amgn to you diretly, or to any other perfon in your prefence, the caufe
of the delay, and what was it ?

45. Do you belitve, or have you reafon to fuppofe, he was inclined to have put an earlier
period to the war?

46. Did you ever hear the Vizier declare his fentiments on the meafure of deputing Mr.
Murray to treat with Fyzoolla Khan?

4%: What were they? and how far did he confider Mr. Murfay as afting by virtue of an
authority, or under inftraétions from him ?

48. Did you at any time hear the Vizier exprefs his fentiments with rcfpc& to the diftribu-
tion of fuch plunder as fhould be found in Lall-Dang, and what were they ? :

49. When did Colone] Champion fignify his intentions of moving the brigade from Patter~
gur towards the enemy : 2

50. Were any of the Vizier’s troops advanced at that time ?

51. Did yon fee any villages feton fire in the Rohilla country after the ation of thc 23d

April ?
52, Do yz)u fuppofc it was in confequcncc of inftruttions from the Vizier, or with his
privacy ?
(Signed) WARREN HASTINGS.
Additional (Leﬁnons to Major Hannay.
QuesTioN : rHY dld not the army purfue the Rohillas xmmcduﬁely aﬁ’er they

' were defeated av Curterah ?

2. Was the army 1n a condition to follow the Rohillas ?
3. At what time did the army arnvc at Biffoulce, and how long dnd l&halt tbetc bcfm zhe
periodical rains fec in ? : ok
4. What was the dx&mcthetmn Bxﬂ'oulce and Lall. Dang? { A ™ s

-
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5. Was it not the reccived opinion in camp, that the Rohillas in their retreat had thrown
~, away their arms and ammunition ? ; ; ;
6. Provided the Rohillas had been Eurfued immediately after the viftory to their retreat
~at Lall-Dang, do you think they would have been able to lay in a magazine of pro-
* vifions fufficient for their fopport, and that of their followers, for any length of time ?
. How long do you fuppofe ?. :
Z. What was the diftance between Biffoulee and Pattergur, and how long did the army
* take to march that diftance ? : ; £
9. Were any parties fent ouf to intercept the fupplies of provifions, which it was reported
the enemy daily received from various quarters ?
10. Had Fyzoolla Khan any artillery with him at Lall-Dang ? Ol
11. When Lieutenant Bruce, the Field-Engineer, returned from viewing the Rohilla lines at
Lall-Dang, did he deliver, to your knowledge, any opinion as to the ftrength of
their works, the nature of the approach to the lines, and the prafticability of at-
tacking them, and what was it ? g
12, Subfequent to the Engineer’s report, had you any grounds for believing, or even fi
pofing that the Robhillas had any place of ftrength to retire to beyond thofe works
which had been feen by Lieutenant Bruce ?
13. What do you fuppofe was the ftrength of the Rohilla forces when the treaty of peace
was proclaimed ? :
14, What was the ftrength of the united forces of the Englith and the Vizier at this
period ?

(Signed) WARREN HASTINGS.

.

Queftions to be propofed to Mr. Nathani¢l Middleton.

QuEsTION I. A D you any account how the Rohillas at Lall-Dang were armed and
furnifhed with ammunition ? .

2. How were the Robhillas furnithed with provifions at Lall-Dang, and had they any op-
portunity of drawing them from the neighbouring countries ?

3. Do you know, or hawe you ever heard, if Vackeels or mefiengers from the Rohillas
were at any time fent exclufively to Colenel Champion, and not to the Vizier.

4. What was the general opinion of the amount of Fyzoolla Khan’s treafure ?

5. 'What was the general character of Collychurn, and in what capacity was he employed
with Colonel Champion?

6. Do you know, orde you believe, he had any intercourfe with Fyzoolla Khan, or any
of the Rohilla Strdars ?

7. Where were the Rohilla prifoners at or about the 31ft May?

8. How were they carried on the march ? _

9. Do you know whether any of the women of the Rohilla chiefs were fearched for jewels

r in the Vizier’s prefence at or about that time ? :

10. Do you know of any inftances of violence or cruelty wantonly exercifed upon the Ro-
hilla captives ?

11. Was it, do you fuppolfe, in confequence of inftructions from the Vizier,or with his privacy?

12. Was Mahub ulla Khan engaged in the war ? :

13. Do you know whether he had given the Vizior any caufe of refentment againft him ?

14. Have you reafon to believe, from the knowledge you had of the Vizier, that he was
of a fanguinary or cruel difpofition? ' 4 :

15. In what light were the Englifh troops confidered by the natives and people in general,
compared with former campaigns, where our trcops and the Vizier's have acted in
conjunttion ?

16. Do you know any thing, or did you ever hear of a Letter received by Colonel Cham-
pion from the” Rohilla Sirdars colleCtively on or about the day preceding the ac-
tion of the 23d April ? '

17. Do you know, or have you ever heard, what were its confequences ?

18. Did you ever hear of a Firte-Nama faid to have been publithed in the Vizier’s domi-
nions upon the defeat of Hafiz Rhamut ? ;

.

19. What was the ftyle and purport of it? e ‘ '

20. Did you ever hear in what manner, and in swhat terms, the victory was pr(\;clai'lned at the
i . court of Delhi? ~ 4 . W ‘
21. Did you at any time hear the Vizier exprels' an inclination to attack the Rohilla
poft at Lall-Dang? ! - . Gkl e R O ;

.

22, Did
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2 ;‘; d{d he ever aggn to youdlre&ly. or to any ot!m pufouin'ym prefence, thc cau&

, and what was it?

23 Do you be e, or have you reafon to fuppofc hc wu mdmod to luvc put an carhcr 3

__period to the war?
24. Did you ever hear the Vizier declare his fentiments on- the mcafu!e af d:pmmg Mt,
... Murray to treat with Fyzoolla Khao ? .
25. What were they ? and how far did he confider Mr. Mnmy as alting hy virtue of an
authority, or under inftructions frombhim ?
26, Did you at any time hear the Vizier exprefs his fentiments with rcfpe& to the diftribu-
tion of fuch plunder as fhould be found in Lall-Dang, and what were they ?
9. Do _you know, or did you ever hear, of a treaty of partition entered into between his
Majefty Shah Allum and the Vizier, for the country conquered from the Rohillas,
. _and what were the conditions ?
3 38 Was there any condition, either written or verbal, which ﬁlpulatcd that his Ma;cf’cy was
- to take the ficld to entitle him to a fhare of the Rohilla conqueft ?
What was d;c fuppo{cd amount of the Vizier’s acquifitions in the plundcr of the Rohilla
.~ eountry
30, Did yoi; iee any villages fet.on firc in the Rohills country after the action of the 23d

31, Do you fuppole it was in confcqucncc ofinftructions from the Vizier, or with his privacy ?.
(Signed)  WARREN HASTINGS.

Queftions to be propofed to Captain Mc: Pherfon,

QuazsTion 1y O you know of any Hircarrahs having been placed upon the families
: of Hafiz Rbamut and Doondy Khan by ordcr of the Commander in
Chief,

2. For what purpofe were they ftationed there ?

3. Under whole immediate directions did they a, and to whom did they make their
report ?

4. Could you rely.implicitly upon the faith of thefe Hircarrahs ?

5. What were their names, and where are they ?

6, Did you immediately, upon receipt of the intelligence from time to time brought you
by thefe Htrcarrahl, minute it, and are thofe minutes to \vhxch you have affixed your
fignature exact copies of thole taken at the time, or have'they been fince revifed
and methodized by you or any other perfon ?

' (Signed) WARREN HASTINGS.

Qucfhons to be propofcd to C'aptam Anneﬂ?’ Baillie, commanding the. fecond
Compang of Artillery, attached to the fecond Brigade, and to Lxeutcnmt

Clark ommxﬁ'ary of Stores to the (amc Company. ‘ :
Q:ns-rww 3 HAT ammumnomdod yon carry from Bxﬂ‘oulec when the bng:dc
marched againft Fyzoolla Khan ?
2. Wasthat for the fervice of the.

cam
3. Was there anykftatﬁtﬂ'wlce or onbomrrhc ﬂorebom, and could it bave been
: carried with you ?
4. Do you know. why it:was not ?
§. When was the arrival of the ammunition from Chumrgur at Ramgaut nporzcd o

you %; g (Signed) WARREN HASTINGS
! 1 &‘; " DA A |
' i Qeihons to be propofcd to Mr. Roberts, *

szs'mow R fﬂ' it remember the receipt of a Letter from :he Rolnlh Sirdars col-
vely by Colonel Champxon on or nbontthe day ptecedmg the

' a@tion'of the 23d A £
ke N Haveymtboﬁﬁml. or nopyof that Letter ? xfyouhve, pmduecit if not, rev
4 thc fnbhnu ofit. & ; : Wn'
o 3' 4

]

o ,' Kr.lmbcm mrmmnmow&am '

»
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Queries by the Governor-General to Mr. Roberts.  Appendix, N XXV C.»

3. Was it Thewn to the Vizier, and did it feemn to have 4 eoncllistibg effe®; or ctherwife

4. What was the chara@er of Collychurn, and in what capicity was he employed: wich
Colonel Champion ?

5. Do you know, or have you reafon to fulpect, that he maintained any ifitéreourfe with
t¥1e Rohillas,

6. Was you prefent at every converfition betweeft the Vizier and Fyzoolla Khan ? if you
was, be pleafed to refate, to the beft of your recolleélion, the particular oceurrénces
of the icveral meetings between thofe two chiefs. .

7. Were there any other agents emplojed in the adjultment of affuirs between the Vizier
and Fyzoolla Khan ?

8. Was Coliychurn at any other time employed in public negotiations, or in affuirs rela-
ting to the public fervice ? , )

9. Was you prefent at a converfation between Colonel Champion and thie Vizier, prior to
the furrender of Fyzoolla Khan, ih which the Colonél eéxpreffed his apprehenficrs
that our troops (meaning the Englifh) would not be kept from plundering,  fhould -
they, in conjuntion with his, attack and force the Rohiila poft &t LallDang ?

10. What was his Iixcellency’s reply, and his oblervations upon the intination of thefe ap-
prehenfions ¢

1t. Did Mr. Middleton ever intimate to you the Vizier’s fentiments upon the deputation of
Mr. Murray to treat with Fyzoolla Khan, in confequence of a reference made by his
Excellency to that gentleman ?

12. What were they, and why did he through Mr. Middleten cemmunicate them to you ?

13. Do you know, or have you caufe to fufpec, that any Vackeel or meflenger was at any
time fent exclufively to Colonel Champion, and not to the Vizier ?

14. Where were the Rohilla prifoners at or about the z1ft May ?

15. How were they carried on the march ?

16. Do you know whether any of the women of the Rohilla chiefs were fearchied for jewels
in the Vizier’s prefence at or about that time ? -

17. Did you ever hear of a Fitta-Nama faid to have been pullithed in the Vizier's do-
minions upon the defeat of Hafiz Rhamut ? '

18. What was the flyle and purport of it ?

19. Was there any Vackeel or mellenger at any time fent exclufively to Colonel Champion,
and nct to the Vizier?

20, What was the general opinion of the amount of Fyzoolla Khan’s treafure ?

21. Do you know of any initances of violcnce or cruelty wantonly exercifed upon the Ro-
hilla caprives ?

22. Was it, do you fuppofe, in confequence of inftrutions from the Vizier, or with his privacy?

23. Was Mahub ulla Khan engaged in the war?

24. Do you know whether he had given the Vizier any caufe of refentinent againft F'm ?

25. Have you reafon to believe, from the knowledge you had of the Vizier, that he was of
a fanguinary or cruel difpofition ? )

26. Do you know, or have you ever heard, what were the Vizier’s fentiments aud incl.na-
tions refpecting an attack upon the Rohilla poft at Lall-Dang ?

27. Do you know, or have you ever heard, that his Excellency at any time affignad the
caufe of the delays which occurred in your united operations againft the ouullas ac
Lall-Dang, and what was it ? ) :

28. Do you believe, or have you reafon to fuppofe, his Excellency was i: clined to have
put an earlicr period to the war ? d

29. Did you gcc any villages fet on fire in the Rohilla country after the attion of the 23d
April ?

30. Do you fuppofe it wasin confequence of inftruétions from the Vizier, or with his privacy?

31. Where did the Rohilla Vackeel live while he was with Colonel Champion at Biffoulee ?

y (Signed) WARREN HASTINGS.
Additiona] Queftions to Mr. Roberts, ;

QuesTioN 1. H AD you any converfation with FyzoollaKhan’s Vackeel at Biffoulce ?
_ be pleafed to relate the particulars of fuch converfations, fo far as they had
relation to the public fervice and the Rohilla war.

2. Did you, in your official capacity, ever remonftrate againft Collychiuin’s bdncm ed
in political or public buﬁ::z, and what wete the réplies you reccived in confequence

)’ of fuch remonitrance ?  a
(Signéd)  WARREN HASTINGS.
| it .~ 1PER"
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Minutes of Cou?cil refpe&ting the foregoing Queries, Appendix, N° XXVI, C: 459

PERCEIVE that marly of the queftions are foreign to the fubject which Mr. Haftings

had acquainted Colonel Champion was to be the object of his enquiry.  They ought either
to be confined to thofe objects, or they fhould be fent to thofe whom Colonel Champion
has left here to take care of his interefts in his abfence, that they may have it in their power,
tither by queftions to the fame perfons or to others, to contradiét or to explain the anfwers
that are expected to be given by the gentlemen who are to be quelNoned. If this is ac-
ceded to, and the gentlemen who are prefent at Calcutta examined at the Board, I fhall

acquiefce to the feveral queftions as they ftand.
(Signed)  JOHN CLAVERING.

I think with the General.
(Signed) GEORGE MONSON.

I agree with General Clavering and Colonel Monfon.
(Signed)  P. FRANCIS.

HEN a formal propofition is made by any Member of the Board, I will give my

opinion on fuch propofition, and be guided by whatever the majority of the Board
may judge to be expedient, for averting the confequences of the queftions propofed by the
Governor-General, or for obtaining fuiler information on the fubject. At prefent the quef-
tion is imply, whether the Company thall receive precife and pofitive anfwers to the various
enquiries the Governor makes touching the Rohilla war ¢ moft certainly the Company fhould
be informed, and that as early as pofiible,

(Signed) R. BARWELL.
Thefe obfervations being now read, the Governor-Genceral makes the following motion :

I have no objection to a copy of the queltions being delivered to Colonel Champion’s
agent or agents, nor to their propofing any others on his part, but I defirc that my queltions
may be fent jmmediately to the feveral perfons whofe names are inferted 5 in the mean time
any other queftions which are to be put by Colonel Champion’s agents to the fame gentle-
men may be prepared,” and no delay in their delivering them in 3 and anfwers to the whole
will be delivered in in an earlier period of time than it the whole are delayed till che latter
are prepared.

Mr. Francis, T agree tothe Governor-General’s propofal, od' the condition that copies
of the queftions be immediately tranfmitted to the agents of Colonel Champion, in order
that they may alfo propofe fuch other queftions as they think proper on his behalf, to be an-
fwered by the gentlemen to whom the Governor General’s queltions are fent 5 and 1 think
that, in juftice.to Colonel Champion, all the queftions thould be tranfmitted together,

Mr. Barwerr. | think that the Governor’s queftions certainly thould be fent to the
gentlemen to whom they are propofed immediately 5 1 likewile affent tp the General’s pro-
pofition of copies of the Governor’s quettions being fent to Coloncl Champion’s agents,

Colonel Monson. I think the moft candid mode of proceeding with regard to Colonel
Champion will be, that the Governor-General’s queftions thonld be fent to the different
perfons accompanied by thofe which may be propofed by Colone! Champion’s agent.

General Craverine. I muft obferve, that the perfonsto whom the Governor-General
has chofen to propofe queftions, are almoft all of them thofe whom he knows to be in en-
mity with Coloncl Champion. The queftions themfelves are moft of them very captious
and foreign to the objects on which the Governor General means to ground his own juftifi-
cation. What other anfwer can be expeted of the queftion upon the character of a gen-
tleman's Banyan, but that he is an infamous rogue? Were queftions of a fimilar nature to be
efked, 1o any man in Calcutta relating to the Governor’s own Banyan, the anfwer moft pro-
bably would be, that he was rapacious and tyrannical : I am told that he holds a Court of
Caft Cutcherry within the Governor’s own houfe, where, availing limfelf of the prejadice of
the Hindoo refigiony he tries, judges, and condemns, I am told, to fines and imprionments :
whercfore, if a queftion of the kind be propoled, .it is proper that Colonel Champion’s agent
give full info‘;tmauon of the Gov:rnaﬁry’i;a;{tan, an'c:b obtain wh:;t nc;:ems b;:‘c:n of hisftéa,,f.

. aftions in Cdleutta. Befides, it s ent with juftice, eftions propofed on
' one fide by che Govettior, and on the other by Colonel Champion, thould be ermfm::}::q
o 1 - together,
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“commonly called the Jatmally Cutcherry, itis of as ancient inflitation
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ifhes of the gentlemen who rule the Adiniftration
y this is introduced ‘in a minute in the -i,ix&ibn before us,

itfelf, and the procefs of it isas regufar,as that of any court of jultice in the' have
never yet heard a fingle complaint again®t any of its decifions, except one, in which it appeared
that t{e court had afforded protection to a woman againft intended violence. I any
ypole the abo=
General’s nbs

of the Board conceives the Court to be an im one, let him pre

. an improper one, |
lition of it; I.Mﬁbeu‘hcmil glad to be frccf;i frorl? it. "#ﬁg&f& 0 the G
je€tions to the queftions, I take upon me tofay, that they are neither captious nor
Ji:}in.échobje&,‘ bu:1 directly tend to the purpofes which flﬁ?\ge?edmd fmw 1 Ch
himfelf, in a letter on record, Ifhould.aim at in the profecution ‘oﬁ‘dﬁw" |
help it if the gentlemen, to whom 1 have propofed theie queftions fhould be fen
Champion’s enemies 3 1. propofed the queftions only to thofe whom | belicved capab
of giving me information 3 his Wipay propofe any queftions to be put to thofe th

they efteem his fricads, no objection to it. s R g

Orverep, That copies of the féveral queftions be im'medintd)"' iﬂt{ftﬁﬁttd‘;to 'tﬁe'jagentl
of Colonel Champion, that they may propofe any which they fhall judge neceffary on his

part, and fend them in, to be put at the iame
them, ‘ 2. o b
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APPENDIX, No XXVL Divdi
Extra& of Sécgct‘”Cdnfultati.dns, Fort W;Iham, 24th Ma’yc‘h;'l_yfyzg.“

The Secretary lays before the Board the following Anfwer from the Attorney of
‘Colonel Champion to his Letter accompanying copies of the queftions pros
poftd by the Governor-General at the laft Council. . ,

e & i o O e :

3
§
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‘ " HAVE received your Letter ‘6£ ;].:(¢ q.oth vkhgbe feveral papers wlnch I thall forward‘:
. ‘I“m"M:. Murray at Burrampore by this d;y'q'ﬂad;g e being one of Colonel Champion’s
atcornies, and the only one acquainted with thefe matt _ i e

vy Mgy O e 'f).ﬁ ¥
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March 22d 1775 ., £
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time as the above to the perfons propofed in




Col. Champion’s Anfwer to the Governor-General, Appendix, N° XXV]Q‘

*¢ the fhort time remaining between the delivery of your vindication and the departure of

the Pacific, and the load of other bufinefs which neceffarily engages my time; will rendet
it impoflible for me to prepare my reply to your vindication before the departure of that
fhip on which you have taken your paffage: I therefore think it neceflary to inform you
of my intentions of replying fully to your vindication, not only in defence of my own
and the conduct of the late Adminiftration from your accufations, but alfo in examination
of the charges which the late Vizier preferred againft you, particularly that refpecting
the long inattion of the brigade before Lall-Dang. As thefe accufations were addrefled
“ to me by the Vizier in my capacity of firt Member of the Adminiftration, it became the
¢ duty of my ftation to fubmit them to enquiry ; and the method 1 preferred was to give

them to your perufal, never doubting but your promifed vindication would contain an
ample refutation of them ; but it does not appear to me that you have refuted them. [now
acquaint you, that 1 fhall fubmit thele matters to the examination and determination of the
Board, and make a very free enquiry into fuch parts of your conduct as have been ar-
raigned by the Vizier: and I give you this notice, to prevent the fuppofition of my taking
advantage of your abfence in the profecution of thefe enquiries, that you may, if you think
it neccffary, defer your departure, for the opportunity either of fupporting the accufations
¢ you have brought againft the late Adminiftration and me, or defending yourfelf from the
¢ charges which may appear againft you. The delay which has taken place in this enquiry
¢ muft be attributed to the length of time which has paffed before the delivery of your vin-
¢ dication.”
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In anfwer to this Letter I did myfelf the pleafure of addreffing Mr. Haftings as follows :

‘¢ I have your favour dated the 17th. Inmy late Addrefs to the Board I advancednothing
new; it 1s only the fubftance of what I before faid in the courfe of correfpondence col-
¢¢ lected into one view, with a few obfervations which naturally arofe from the fubject : thefe
« were infeparably conneted with my vindication 3 and I beg leave to be of opinion, that
¢¢ they are fully fupported by the faCts premifed.
¢ It may be convenient to endeavour at making the gentlemen of the late Adminiftration
confider the caufe a common one, in order to engage their fupport ; but I hold them to be
¢ in a very different predicament.
“ Do you mean to apologize for producing the Vizier’s Letter when you fay it was a
matter of duty ? 1 grant it was; but I cannot admit that it was any part of your duty to
¢« with-hold, as you did, that Letter from me for a month, when you Knew I had taken my
¢ paffage in the Pacific, and that if fhe fhould fail at the time® it was then intended to
¢ difpatch her, it would have been morally impofiible for me to have prepared my vindi-
“¢ cation. ¢

“ With regard to your intended freedom of enquiry, I am fo confcious of the entire pro-
< priety of every part of my conduét, fo felf-fausfied of its being invulnerable, that I feel
¢ myfelf at perfeét eafe in fuffering you to take advantage, not only of the influence which
“ your ftation gives you, but alfo of my abfence, relying on the honor of Adminiftration
¢ for impartial difquifitions. 3

“ You have already had my Addrefs fixteen days, therefore the delay in your enquiries
“ muft pot be imputed to the time which I, of neceffity, took to lay my vindication and
¢ the immenfe volume of correfpondence before the Board ; be pleafed to acknowledge,
¢ that it muft be attributed to the extraordinary circumftance of your having kept up the
¢ Vigier's Letter from the 28th of November to the 27th of December.

“ 1 am forry you profefs an opinion that I have not refuted the late Vizier’s charges, but’
« 1 firmly hope and believe you will be thought fingular in that refpect. It is not, how-
¢ ever, your opinion or mine that can be the criterion of paffing judgment on the parts we
¢ have refpectively acted. 1 am on the eve of embarking for the place where all muft be
¢ ultimately determined, and 1 go with chearfulnefs to ftand the decifion, fully convinced
« that I fhall carry with me documents that muft infallibly render abortive the moft rigorous
“ enquiry it may be in your power to make.” W

[

"

c

-

- Mr. Haflings would perhaps with to pafs off his Letter as an inftance of eandour ; I muft
be Ezrdon:d“for not receiving it as fuch : I will however acknowledge that the defign was
§ a lY' ¥ % RN, H . ‘&‘,"{‘
. Accofations againft me, of as deep a dye as it was poffible to commit to paper, have been
~ tranfmitted to England, without giving me an opportunity of fay‘in{;fy able in my own
vin ~and 1 am even now ignorant of the particulars of what has been written to my

6B The

1

% firation, from which it is incumbent upon me to exculpate both myfelf and them 5 but

i
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Letter from
theGoverner,
¥5th June,

Late Board's
mftruétions.
Par. 1.

Ditto. Par.6.

Letter from
the Scle@
Commirtee,
gfh May,
etter from
the Board,
gth May,
congratula.
tory on the
Victory.

Letter from
M, Hattings,
6th May. .

i ?’P{“’ to bave been fo much neglested at bome. :

ke
3

Col. C‘hanipion’s Anfwet to the Governor-Genetal.  Appendix, N* XXVL E.

The great end therefore of the laft Addrefs with which I was honored would have been
anfwered, had I been induced to have negleéted the fupport of my reputation in England.

1 am fenfible that the mode of attack which has been adopted would embarrafs 2 man lefs

conicious of the rectitude of his conduét. : ;
It is patural for Mr. Haftings to endeavour to fupport his meafures, but I cannot difcover

the propricty of his declaring himfelf a party to the Vizier’s accufations ; and I have to beg
that the inferences arifing from his declaration may be added to and confidered with the cir-
comftances mentioned in my Addrefs to you of the goth January. :

1f Mr. Haftings had really wilhed, or had been difpofed to have given me an opportunity
of being prefent at his intended enquiries, he would have entered upon them immediately
on receipt of the Letter of the goth Janvary ; inftead of which, though it was produced
twenty-five days before the packet for the Pacific was clofed, he thought proper to excufe
himfelf from undertaking them till after my departure.

It is very remarkable, that although Mr. Haftings complains that a period was not put
to the war fomewhat earlier, yet he has not been able ro condefcend upon any public dif-
advantage that arofe from the meafures which were followed ; indeed it is impoffible he
fhould : Whete then is the caufe of complaint? Is it that T conducted and terminated a war
{peedily and fuccefsfully ? or do we trace the fource of it in the following notable paffage ?

“ [ cannct fuppofe that you mean the reafoning which you have at prefent adopted on
¢ this fubject, as a reproach to the Board for having formed a defign which, by your argu-
¢ ment, muft defeat ifelf, even with all the fuccefs that can attena it 3 but it s afonifbing that
““ 1his confideration fhould bave efcaped you, fince, by the frequent reiteration of this argument,
“ you have undoubredly been cafting the fevereft refletions on the meafures of Government,

 which, right or wrong, we mufi now maintain.”

~

The laft requeft made of me when T went upon the expedition was, that 1 fhould cor-
refpond freely, and not conceal a fentiment 5 yet it appears, that in doing myfelf the honor of
giving compliance to this requeft, I was fo unfortunate as to difoblige by a difference in opi-
nion. My difpofition and principles did not prove flexible enough ; hence the violent at-
tack which has been made upon me ; hence, it is manifeft, proceeds every exertion of ma-
nagement that can be devifed. “* The meafures of Government, right or wrong, we muft now
 maintain.” :

Mr. Haftings is pleafed to forget himfelf when he talks 8f enquiring into my condutt re-
fpecting the operations in the field. T fo totally differ from the opinion he profefies regarding
the juftification which 1 have offered of my conduc, that 1 am humbly confident it is un-
neceffary to add any thing farther in fupport of it ; but as the writings before you are vo-
luminous, and as the Governor-General has'been pleafcd to point particularly at the operations
toward the lutter end of the war, T fhall take the liberty of juftifying myfelf, not only under
his own authority, but alfo under that of the whole Adminiftration. '

“ Wejudge it neceflary, for your more particular guidance in the general line of your
¢ operations, to give you the following inftruétions, trufling the particular condui in the

‘¢ field to your military /il and capacity.”’
“ The military condul? of the expedition is entirely left with you, €&¢.”

i
We have only on this occafion to exprefs our fincere fatisfaction at the decifive advantage
gained over the Rohillas, which we a}fn‘be entirely to your good condui, &c.

¢ We canpnot on ;his_ocu’ﬁdn negleét e&prcﬂing as early.as poffible, the great fatisfaction
“ we received in the news, and the bigh fenfe we ;nm‘taid of your abilities and conduéi, both
““ in the operations which preceded, and im the aiion itfelf. _ Vi

“ We are happy to find ¢that your refolution and military fkill wese fo well feconded by the
*“ valour of the troops, 8ec.”’ 2 fas i o il Pl 4 v g

“ 1 am happy in the profpe t itiaffords of future fuccefs; and allow me, good
¢ friend, to {'ay?that 1 feel an e‘:&l pleafure in the opportunity whichhs-heeniﬁ'& you
“ of difplaying your abilitics, and of acquiring am importance at a period in which Sour merits

el &

- % It is trom the fulnefs of my heart 1 declare to you, that none
friends will rejoice more atany acceflion to your reputation, or wo




Col. Champion’s Anfwer to the Governor-General. Appendix, No XXVI. E:

(14
“ to farnifh you'with the means of it. On this occafion I cannot omit to take notice of
“ the fenfible and humane counfel which you gave to the Vizier on the orders iffued by
¢ him for laying wafte the Rohilla country; a meafure which would have refleted
¢« equal dithonor on our arms, and reproach on his authority, had it been continued.”

I cannot help again repeating, that the Honorable Governor, owing we may prefume to '
his * multiplicity and load of bufinefs,” muft have forgot himielf when he addreffed me o
with his favour of the 17th,

“ I have again written to the Vizier on the fubject of the immediate payment of the forty 1 .ver from
¢ Lacks, &c. but if he perfifts in refufing the claim, it will then be proper for you to in- theGovernor,
“ fit upon his fulfilling the agreement. An acknowledgment that the forty Lacks are nowy dated 16th
¢ due, and an affurance of the payment, you muff obtain from the Vizier.” ; :‘.""';\':;:’1‘."’"

¢ T repeat my congratulations to you on the confequences of your victory, which bas {euer from
¢ compleatly reduced the Robilla country, and fully accomplifbed the fervice propafed by the Ad- the Gover-
““ miniftration in their adoption of this enterprize.” nor, May 21

‘¢ Zabita Khan being perfonally fecured by the Vizier, Iconfider his country as equally
¢ fubdued with the reft of the Rohilla dominions.”

I fhould be glad to know therefore, what farther bulinefs we had to concern ourftlvés with

the Rohilla war, and that too without ftipulating any additional advantage to the Com-
any ?

d Mr. Haltings is pleafed to find fault with me, becaufe I thought it moft advifable to

bring the enemy to fubjection by blockade. He would, perhaps, have attacked them, but

he has not done me rhe favour of demonftrating how I fhould have exculpated myfelf, if I

had anneceflarily, without the profpet of reaping the fmalleft advantage to the Company, huc-

ried the army to deftruction, or even put it in the power of chance.

I have already given fuch reafons as will, I am hopeful, perfeétly fatisfy every unprejudi-
ced perfon, whois a proper judge of military operations, that my condu@ was fuch as be-
came an officer of long fervice and experience ; and, independent of the eftablithed cus-
tom of every nation, independent of the abfolute neceflity that every Commander in Chief
fhould aét according to the beft of his judgment, 1 will prove, from other refpectable
authority, to which I t.g Mr. Haftings may be fpleafcd to pay due regard, that I was
the fole and only judge of the meafures to be purfued in the field.

¢ The power which was exprefsly given to you in your firft inftru&tions for conducting Letter from
¢ the operations in the field, fully authorifed your conduit in engaging, or declining to engage ¢ GOZ"‘;]
¢ the-enemy, under what circumjiances you approved or difapproved.” not, 18k

If thefe authorities, and the powers infeparable from the ftation of every general at
the head of an army on aétual fervice, do not fully and amply juftify my conduét, I know
not what can be a fufficient authority for the guidance of any Commander in Chief. - But,
Gentlemen, I have to requeft g:u may be pleafed to remember, that but for the late
Vizier's treachery, in remaining behind with between twenty and thirty thoufand horfe, be-+
fides the Burruk Fultan, confifting of abourt five thoufand men, and fix or feven battalions
of Seapoys, with a large train of his beft artillery, the war would have infallibly been finith-
ed on the 23d of Aprii; fince it was morally impoffible that Fyzoolla Khan and the other
chiefs could have efcaped, had the Vizier’s cavalry and the whole of his infantry been up
to have done their duty. R

His Excellency promifed to be in the alion with all his army, as appears by the ac-
companying extract of my interpreter’s journal ; and the Veranda of his Houder was agreed
to be the mark by which I fhould diftinguifh him, in order to convey my advices to his Ex-
cellency in the courfe of the engagement. i

‘Yetnot only did he, with an army of more than treble the number of all the troops we had

in battle, remain in the rear of the ground from which we decamped to engage, but even a

. part of his troops who were in the field of action refufed to do their duty ; and we had
" proof three days before of the daftardly behaviour of fome of his chofen horfe. = After
 convition tha: neither his Excellency nor his troops were to be trufted to, or depended

- upon, it cannot be wondered that [ had little or no reliance upon them, and that I became

_ cautious of embarking with them in any dangerous undertaking without an indifpenfable

Int=




Letter from
the late Ad.
miniftration,
Muy gth.

** has made to us, that you have in the whole courfe of the campaign been fe attenti:
*“ maintain the fricteft order and difcipline among the troops, and that you from the b
# ning oppofed, and at aft obrained a ftap to be put to the devaftation of the Rohilla coun-
% aryby e army of the Vigier  mifsken policy, altopether incompatbe with th de
*«af the war, and repugnant 19 humricy 3 0 we have 8 nible ying

Col. Champion’s Anfwer to the Governor-General. Appendix, Ne XXVI. E.

In cafe any farther lights on thefe fubjecs, or regarding the treatment of the Rohilla
prifoners of diftinction, fhould be thought neceflary, 1 have committed {ome queliions to
writing on a feparate paperf herew{;‘thl 1er‘1_a'lo}f]gdi( and 1 defire they may be put to the feveral

entlemen therein named, if you fhall {o think proper. ;

. Captain Wroe was wimcfs)of an affecting fcene in the houfe of the Nabob Mahub vlla
‘Khan, of which he gave me a particular account upon honor; but the paper has been
miflaid ; however, as he is now at the Prefidency, you can, if you pleafe, avail yourfelves
of his information, ;

That gentleman, with another officer, happening to pafs through Biffoulee foon after our
arrival near that town, he was defcried by the Nabob Mahub ulla Khan, and invited into
his houfe : he can acquaint you with the deplorable fitvation inwhich he faw that family.

“Thus much may be obferved, that 1 believe he is the firft European, or perhaps the firft
man of any nation, that ever was invited by a Muffulman prince or chief into his Zenana.
He will inform you how the miferable women threw themielves proftrate at his feet, and
grafped his boots, fupplicating protection to their honor.

The Nabob and the unhappy women ntreated that he, and the officer who was with
him, would take charge of fome jewels and money, in order to afford them relief in the
event which they forefaw, and which has fince happened, of their being in want of the ne-
ceflaries of life. ‘

Caprain Wroe’s humanity prompted him to receive for that purpofe a {mall quantity of
gold ornaments belonging to the women, of which, having perfonally informed me, I re-

ucfted he would give them up, that they might be prefented to the Vizier, who, from the
Rory of the Pallankeen, elfewhere related, I knew would make ufe of this circumftance in
declaiming ' againft and degrading the honor of Englith officers.

Captain Wroe acquiefced in my defires the articles which he had received from Mahub
ulla Khan were delivered to the Vizier in the prefence of Lieutenant Roberts, my inter-
preter, and his Excellency defcended to accept of them.

I have introduced this circumftance in order to prepare you for another which muft
greatly aftonifh you ; it is this: a Member of the late Adminiftration, who, if report
ipeaks truth, is extremely induftrious in his lucubrations regarding the late war, advifed
Captain Wroe to profecute me for the value of thefe gold ornaments ;  obferving, that though
be was Colonel Champion’s friend, and wifbed bim well, yet he could not help thinking there
was a great hardfhip in Captain Wroe’s being deprived of thefe valuables, and that he
thought it very proper and juftifiable that he fhould avail himfelf of the affiftance of the
law to obrain redrefs. ' : :

Captain Wroe knew, that, as an officer, the confequence would be the forfeiture of his
commiffion ; but, befides that confideration, he was too much of a gentleman ot liften to
fuch infidious advice.

It had been much to the credit of a certain officer of high rank that he had been equally
watchful of his reputation, '

The advice given to Captain Wroe fhews the fpirit of the times ; it, will account for
the behaviour of the other officer, and convinces me how happy it is for me that I have been
uniform in my conduct, and that truth and honor have been its bafis.

Supported by thefe, I have much pleafure in committing my defence to the candour of
the Adminiltration, and I firmly rely on their juftice to prevent any advantage being taken
of my abfence, .. ' A b L /

1 cannot however take my leave without bringing the following ‘paragraphs under review.

¢¢ So decifive an inflance of the fuperiority of the Company’s arms cannot fail of reviv-
“ ing, in all its force, the reputation they formerly acquired in Indoftan, and which
“ ten years of peace had doubtlefs, in fome degree, weakened in the minds of the princes
“ of the country. £ R o Sl

“ We are happy

to find your refolution and military fkill were fo well feconded by the
« valour and dilcipline of the troops; and while we defire you may receive perfonally the
“ thanks of the Board for the /ignal fervice you have on this occafion performed, we requeft
“ you may in the like manner convey to the officers, foldiers, and Seapoys, our fenfe of cheir

¢ behavioar,. &e," 1

“ We are alfocxwedinglyhuppyto learn, from the communications which the Preﬁdmt

e
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w entire approbauon of: your condut':'t vim%is refpedt: your p 'efcmng fuch ﬁehay okt and by
¢ difcipline on entering the Rohilla cam.af{er vitory equally i merits our applaule, &c.* B

“The vx&ory you have obtained,and its confcqucnces to the Company, have appeared t6 Letter fwnt
¢« ‘me of fuch'importance; that I have fent accounts of them by an’ exptrfs to. the Court of theGovernary |
< Directors, as well, by the earlieft advice, 10 claim that atiention to Jour. merit. which this it Mage S
& increafe.of your reputation will demand, as to give mformaucn of the fncccfs and adv.mtagcs '
¢t of this meafure of the prefent Admini Rration.

* And we rely on your conduct and firmnefs, and that fubardination and ftriét dn[cnphac Letter from

4 “ cwbich expericnce bas taught us it bas always been your pride 10 intain, &c, the Board,
‘ We have had the pleafure to receive your Letter dated the xjth ultimo, and we con- f‘clj‘zf v
s« gratulate you upor. the entire reduction of the Rohilla couniry to the Vizier’s govern- the Selest
¢ ment, which we confider as rﬂemd by the Yurrender of Pattergar, and the mextncablc dif- Committce,
< trefs to which the Rohilla army is reduced.  Our htlsfafbon is mcreafta on th:s occa- 8h ispt };"
¢ fion, by the Vizier's intention of terminating the war ‘i the mannet ygu mcntjon b PR T3
¢ accommodatian with the Rohilias, which muft be eafily fettled ip’ their diflrefsful ﬁcuatwn.
“oand we bope bis Excelléncy will be d:fpofed to conciliate tb;xr ﬂftimn 10 bis gawrnmt by
¢ acceding to lenient terms. )
“ e fervice bemg camplcted wherein the brigade was cngagé undcr your command 8

¢ repetinon of our thanks is dué to'you and the ;troops who ¢ c&cd xt. whuh we rcqucit ‘
“ you to accept, and make known to them.”’ = i : i
, After fixch warm commendauons of the late Admmzﬂrauon, afcer fnch repeated reftimo-
' nics of their hearty approbation of my, conduct, it would have been nghiy fancfx‘lory to

me, Gentlemen, that Y had been allo honored with {omc mark of youl‘ 8 am. 1 ftill Hatter

myleif with receiving 1t at fome future period.

The rank which I had the honor to hold, the rrpumlon thh which T had ‘the good S|
fortune to ferve the Company for many years, gave me rgafon to hope at Ieaft tor anac~ %
knowledgment of the letter of refiguation which 1 had the honor of addrefiing to you,
more efpecially as it covered fome papers of confequence.

The oply intimation given to me of the receipt of it, though it was_approved of by the
Honoravle the Governor-General before it was prefented, came accxdenta"y through the

. Fort-Adjutant, to whom the Governor was plcaip ed to tranfmit the minute or refolution of
council to be iffued in orders, which was accordingly done without any previous commu- .
nication to me.

This. much I thought it nes:cﬂ'ary to trouble you with, in confcq‘ucnce of the Governor-

General's letter to me of the 17th palty and Ihave only to add my requeft, that you will i
be pleafed to order the copy, with- which you have promifed to furnifth me, of the proceed- i
ings of the late Adminiftration regardmg ‘my conduct in the Rohﬂla war, to be delivered
to Mr. chry Gram, my auomcy, under a fealed q?v:r, gy ‘ ‘

P i N T

. ‘ . Inglee Roid, B T i \fhavc the hg,ncp to be, &c.
*.  .on board thq?mﬁ(f,, q g e v b
7 L il (Slgncd) A CHAMPION
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.carly. . The Congeﬁrcd he would order all . .
‘ in thei_turbans to diftinguifh them’ from che
| nel (h ‘the march ncxt'cfz Bllows Wi o it
ur&,, all, the Enghﬂ\ troops in a column on_ the nght*, ; s battalions in a ﬁm&&
bis other battalions to follow equally in the rear of ‘uss and Bﬁﬂ‘nné’ 3
k battalions equally dmdcd on. the ngh; q '

ering the whole of it: this he’ag
. marched, fought, md cbnqgcrtd th
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Q{% ph!t"by the chﬁcﬂ of Col. Champion: Appenﬂnx.

neftions referred to in Colonel Champion’s Letter to the (}ovcmor-_Gencrai
' and Council, under date 2d March 1775: Ve

O you recolle@ being prefent at a {kirmifh between fome Robilla villagers and the
Commander in Chief’s body guard, confifting of a troop of the Vizier’s cavalry, on

the 20th of Apuil latt, near the village of Retah ? '
What do you fuppofle might be the number of the villagers, and how were they armed ?

© How ftrong was the troop of horle, and how did they behave ?

Do you recolleét having endeavoured to rally and lead them to the charge, and did they ‘

accordingly charge ?

What number of troops, cavalry and infantry do you fuppofe the Vizier’s army con- -

filted of; and what artillery had he ? " ; :

Do you recolleét Colenel Champion’s mentioning to you, on the mprning ‘of the 23d
April, that the Vigier promifed 1o fend 2000 of his beft cavalry to the front of our line to
receive his orders, and that his Excellency would himfelf march with the whole of his
arnty clofe in the rear of the brigade, 8cc. and did he perform either of thefe promifes?

Do you recolleét Colonel Champion having fent you feveral times to the Commandant of
the fmall body of the Nabob’s horfe, who were at the head of our line, to order them to
advance to cover the flank nexe the enemy, and did they perform, or attempt to perform
the duty which you required of them? :

Did that body of cavalry betray figns of fear, and crowd in wpon the line as you ad-
vanced towards the enemy, and did the Commander in Chief dire&t you to defire their
Commandant to get about his bufinefs with his-cavalry fince he would not obey orders ?

Do you recolled that Colonel Champion made application to the Vizier for fix brafs
cannon the day preceding the bartle, and did his Excellency aecordingly fupply them?

When the grenadier corps halted near the fmall grove, was you fent by the Commandet
in Chief to the eminence in front to téke a wiew of the enemy, and were they then formed,
or did any confiderable number of them appear to be mounted ?

Suppoling all the Vizier’s cavalty 6 have been then up, do you imagine that by a brifkc
charge they might have been in the Rohilla camp before the enemy could have been formed,
and what do you fuppofe would have been the confequence?

What number of the Vizier’s horfe and foot do you fuppofe to have been in the bartle ?

Suppoling the whole of the Vizier’s army and artillery to have been in the action, and
all bis cavalry ready to have purfued the engmy after they gave way, do you think it pros

able that Fyzoolla Khan and the fugitives would have efcaped, or that the enemy would
“have been able to make head again ? P s i :

" Do you recolleét having fent information to the Commander in Chief, in the courfe of the
engagement, that the divifion of the Nijib Fultan on the right of the grenadiers refufed to
advance upon a body of the enemy who were marching towards that flank ? Did you not ule
your endeavour to foufe.them to a fenfe of their duty, and did they vbey you?

Do you recolledt carrying a report 10 Colonel Champion from Major. Hannay of the
mifbehaviour of the divifion of the Nijib Fultan on the right, and did the Commander in
Chicf in conlequenice order a battalion of choyi from the rear-line to cover that flank ?

Do you recolle@ how the 20th battalion of Seapoys behaved when they were detached
and repulied the above body ‘of the enemy who attempted to enfilade the right flank ; and

’

did they, ordid they nor, | ; mm,m purfae e enemy in great confufion,

-

and tlmw ‘“y mif &gl R ) o X W '."v, X & “ gh 71 ki g it e 1vig 4
Was you and Enfign Alexander Murray (with one or two other officers) repeatedly fent
up to the 2oth battalion w mhc’aﬁﬁm.mmmwcmm vancing too

¥

far, and to affift in b
" Do you recollect Major
difapprobation of the Vizier

i M, T villages, and the trestment e
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b mgm; !




Qqériu put by the Requett of Col. Champion: Appendix, NeXxXVLE. i

Do you remember receiving advice of a procurefs of the Tate Vizier's being employed to Captain
bring him Rohilla women for proftitation, and in particular, did fhe not forcibly carry off M ¥herfon:
eight young women from Berelly or-its neighbourhood ?

Did you hear that a complaint was made by their relations to Rajah Soorit Sing, who then
commanded at Berelly, and did he ventute to interfere or refcue any of the women?

From the opportunity you had of knowing Calonel Champion’s fentiments, and from the Enfign J,
confidential communications he made to you as his Secretary, of the motives which actuated Motay.
him in the courfe of the Rohilla war, and in particular after your arrival at Pattergur, and
the army ‘advancing towards Lall-Dang, did you or did you not believe that he aéted ac-
cording to what appeared to him confiftent with his inftructions, the honor of our naticnal
character, and the prefervation of the Company’s troops ?

Do you recolleét the converfation that paffed between you and the-Commander in Chief Colonel
immediately after the aCtion of the 23d April, relpecting the conduét of the Vizier on that {{:ﬂ“ Majof
day, and the behaviouir of Caprain Ironfide’s battalion? Did you not exprefs your indigna- — *"
tion at- the Vizier’s conduc, and the danger the 2oth batralion run of being all cut off by
the enemy in their diforder ? :

When the ¢nemy were in diforder and giving way, and the Commander in Chief gave Captdin
orders for the line to advance, did not even the Vizier’s battalions of regulars break and'go M'¥ herfon,
in fearch of plunder in the moft diforderly manmer? En e

Do you recolleét having been fent by the Commander in Chief togndeavour to make thefe Enfign J.
battalions preferve order, and was you fuccefsful in your endeavours? Murvay

Did you not go to head quarters after having vilited the Rohilla poft at Lall-Dang, and Colongl
did you not congratulate the Commander in Chief with a bended knee on the narrow efcape Lellie
of the army from the imminent danger to which'they would have been expofed by an attack
upon the enemy’s poft, owing to its great natural ftrength, and did you not declare that
with five thoufand men you would defend it again(t all Indoftan? Were not thefe your words,
or did you not exprefs yourfelf to that purpole? = - ;

After you vifited the poft which the Rehillas had occupied at Lall-Dang, did you not ac< pajor Has-
quaint the Commander in Chief at his tent, that you would with five thouland good men de- nay.
fend it againlt the whole combined armies 3 and did you not obferve to him that it was the
ftrongeft natural poft that you ever beheld ? :

Do you recolleét having heard Colonel Leflie and Major Hannay talk of the ftrength of Enfign J;
the Rohilla poft at Lall- Dang after they had vifieed it? Murray,

(Signed) * A. CHAMPION.

OrpErrep, That the queftions here propofed be diftributed to the different perfons for whom
they are intended, with the Governor<General’s, and {uch as may be propofed in confequence
by the Attornies of Colonel Champion,

APPENDIX N° XXVi F
Extract of Sccret Confultations, Fort William, 2oth April 1775

The Afiiftant-Secretary lays before the Board the fpﬂowing Letter, which hé
has juft received from the Attorney of Colonel Champion, with the Queftigns
to be propofed on his part.

To J. P. AURIOL, Efy; Afiiftant-Secretary to the Supreme Cotincil of Tndia,

. S1IR, :
AVING this day received the enclofed queftions from Mt. Murrdy on the part of

» Colonel Ghampion, I requeft you will pleale to lay them before the Board, to be put

to the digw perfons after they have replied to the ones given ont he part of the Vizier,—
1 muft obferve, tht it is entirely out of the power of Mr. Murray, as well as the other At
;T:f:’ q;;- propofe crofs-queftions to the purpofe equally with the Colonel himfelf was he
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. Q}eﬂxons to fundry Gentlemcn. "

Champibn.
_ Colonel

Petaidiiid

-FTER you advanced from Pattergur, did you command tbt dmﬁcm of ﬂ:e army

iy eft, nearer the Ganges, and towards Chandy-Gaue?

that command ?

3 Did you command the grcnadler corps whilft the army lay before Lﬂl Dang ?

. 4, Had you, or the officers commanding under you, picquets and out-pofts advanced
towards the enemy by day or by night after your arrival at Pattcfgur. and what orders
were given to them ?

5. Were they direted to fuffer grain or provilions of any kind to pafs their rcfpc&lvc pofis

‘ towards the enemy ?

6. When was it furmifed that natives had been feen carrying provxﬁons to the enemy by
night > and were orders then iffued to your feveral out-pofts to prevent this prafhcc,
and were any perons apprehended ? Did you mention this mrcumﬁance to Colonel
Champion, and when?

What were the prices of ¢ gram, &, in our camp. end in that of the cncmy‘

. From the opxmpnﬁéh you have'of the natives; do you believe that the extraordinary
difference of the prices of provifions would be a temptation fo. the Boutique men to
endeavour at taking fecret advantage of it?

on 3

e i SRS 9. Do you believe that it was poffible for frequent or confiderable fupph:s of provifions to
N have elcaped the vigilance of your out-poﬂs and of all the out-poits of the
Bl army ?

g ' 1o, If there were any provxﬁons qpnvcyed to the encmy, can you take vpon you to fay, shat
1“ : , t\*;cy w;:fc furnithed from* the Buzars of our troops, and not from thofe of the
) izier i

: attached to the divifion of the army you commanded ?

12. If you fay that any ‘Vackeel was fent exclufively to Colonel Chnmpnon, and not to thie
Vizier, exprefs the caufes of. your knowledge?+ =~

13. Had you fo much of the Colonel’s conﬁdcgoe as to know tlw: he did not mfurm the
Vizier of every geflenger or Vackeel wlﬂm’w him? %

44. From whom bad you your information re 2

y Hafiz? e
15, When and where did you receive that mformauon g g i ‘
«16. Are you certain that the Fiue-Nama publithed at Delhi, and that cxrculated in the
e Vizier’s dominions, were of the [amqm or was there any differente, and what ?
" Capt Shewen, 17 ‘Did Colonel Champxon fmquend’, ride pm: to remaim w&:lﬁ the army lay before
: Lneu Roberts, Lall-Dan s . / g
- Mr. Thomas. 18, Were not ﬁck af the'

gy 4’;»

theace ?
W) Gadlicz, 10
W R, Lc‘i‘li:? '9 &ﬂf?“tht:‘cc?mm LA
B Majtlannay. lti \IlPal g"

which lay towards the hills, with the corps commanded by Cofoﬁél Le&c on your .

. Did you command the advanced divifion of the army, and whcn was you appomtcd to’

11. Had you authority over the Cutwaﬂ and over the Boutzque men of the Buzar which was A

tug Flm—N’amn faid to have becn pub-
- lifhed in the Y:zxcr s dommlom and wdﬁmun of‘ Dcl‘hs, rclanvc to the dcfc.xt of .
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Q”nes put to fundry Officers by Mr. M Aurray. Appendxx, Ne XXVI. F.

28. Do you know, or did you hear, that Elich Khan, the Vizier’s minifter, was in great fa- Col

vour with his Excellency, and had much of his confidence ? Col. Leﬂl'- o

29. Did it appear to you, or have you ever heard, that a friendfhip and intimacy fubfifted be- ,],\:;.Jo';“ﬂd"'
tween Elich Khan and Collychurn ? Did you ever hear or fec that they rode fome- Capain
times together in the fame Houder ? M*Pherfon.

20. Do you think the Company’s officers and troops were treated with a becoming degree of Dito, and
refpect and attention by the Vizier and his troops, and did you underftand that that every officer
was the general {enfe of the army ? of the army

31. Where were Hafiz Rhamut’s Begum and family taken prifoners ? i the fele,

32. Were they continued prifoners in Peclebut, or were th.y tranfported to Biffoulee with the
army ?

33. Is Biffoulee in the common road to Allahabad from Peelebut ? and was it neceffary to
carry Hafiz’s Begum, &c. to Bifloulee in order to fend them to Allahabad ?

34. Did you not underftand that it was the general fenfe of the army, that thefe prifoners
were treated with inhumanity and indignity ? and did not the prifoners confilt chiefly

of women ?
35. Do you know whether any, and what qu:mtnty of mufket ammunition was left at Bif- Col. Galliez,
foulee, and how much 1n the ftore-boats ? C°1l IJI"[L':'
36. Do you know the number of men Ieft at Biffoulee and with the ftore-boats ? :_;';nm;,{

37- Do you know the quantity of ammunition that was in the field preceding the battle of
the 23d April ?

38. Preceding the battle did you think that quantity fufficient for the fervice of the cam-

ign ?

39. Do you recollect to have heard, that the Commander in Chief gave orders, during the Ditto,and the

: courfe of the engagement, 1o abate the fire of our artillery from an apprehenfion of Alddetamps
a fearcity of ammunition ? of the day.

40. From your own knowledge, or from the accounts you have received from others who Col. Galliez,
had acce(s to know, did you believe the late Vizier to have been a man of abilities S0l If“H““"
in bulinefs ? ::;{oéa o

41. Was he a man in authority over his fervants and dependants, and in ufe of exalting M.pherflon,
obedience to his commands ?

42. Do you think that if he had made it a point to have treated the Rohilla prifoners with
humanity, and fuitably to their rank, that his fervants would have dared to have
counteracted his pleafure, efpecially after repeated remonftrances had been made to
him that thefe prifoners were very ill treated ?

43. How do you know whether Mahub ulla Khan was in the war, or r whether he gave the Vi- Ditto, and
zier any caufe of refentment againft him ? Pleafe to mention the particulars, and the t::;‘ e
czufes of your knowledge, and when, and by whom, you was lo informed ; and ’
whether he was in the battle of the 23d April.

44. 1f you know, or ever heard, any thing of a Letter received by Colonel Champion from Col. Galliez,
the Rohilla Sirdars colleétively, preceding the 23d of April, be plealed to inform Col. Leflie,
from whom you received your information ? 21‘1‘" FHan-

45. From whom did you receive your informdtion regarding the caufes which you may "
have been told the Vizier amgncd for Colonel Champion’s conduct before Lall- Dang,
and when did you reccive it?

46. Did you communicate that information to Colonel Champion ?

¢7. Who informed you of what were alledged to be the Vizier’s fentiments regarding the
meafure of deputing Mr. Murray to treat with Fyzooila Khan ?

48. Do you not think that a man’s writing one thing, and faying the contrary on the very
« fame fubject, is a mark of duplicity ?

49. When did you hear, and who informed you, of the Vizier’s fentiments with refpect to
the dx&nbunon of plunder which, in cafe of an attack, fhould be taken ; and when
were thefe fentiments faid to have been exprefled ?

50. Do you recollet the late Commander in Chief having affembled the field officers at
head quarters about the 28th September, and converfing with them regarding plun-
gop . ¢

51, ‘Where did the army march to after the battle of Cutterah ?

52 Was not Peelebut Hafiz's capical, or place of refidence, and efteemed the moft confider-

- able place in Hafiz Rhamut’s, or the Rohilla country ?
53. If all the Vizier’s cavalry had been prefent at the battle of the ngd, and had purfued Ditto, and

(Y

. treat ?
'y‘i:d ht:‘c Vwer remain behind, and kecp fo hrge a pan of his army and artillery '

55. Did

the Rohillas, do you not think that th®y might have cut off the enemy in their re- em{e :f:;' e
zhcfuld A
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Col.Gallicz, 55, Did the enemy retreat by the way of Berelly ?

Col. Lellie, 8- Or did our army take the rout of Prelebut, and the enemy that of Berelly ?
m‘yf" Fa 57. As thefe two roads are diftant from each other, upon wht grou 'ds was it faid that the
enemy threw away their arms and ammunition in their @ght ? and is it probable that
an army not clolely purived would have thrown away their arms ? ‘
58. Did not you perfonally wait upon Colonel Champion, to inform him of a report that im-
menfe trealure was fecreted in Peelebut? and from whom had you the information ?
59. Did you inform Colonel Champion that the report had reached the troops ? and did
you repretent the right of the army to a proportion of thefe riches, and the ne-
ceflity and propriety of fearching for the trealure ? iy
, 60. Do you think the Vizicr had any caule of complaint on account of Colonel Champion’s
3 d fending the gentlemen into the fort on that occafion ? )
) 2‘:;?;: 61. What did you underftand to be the gencral feiie of the army, and particularly of the
a3t M Pherfon. field officers, with regard ro the Ronilla war 2 did they efteem it juft or unjuft ?
Col. Galliez, 62, Did you ever fee the inftructions which Colonel Champicn received from the late
i Col. Lellie, Adminiftradon for the guidance of his condudt in the Robiila war ! _ 0
i E‘;-l;’j:é{“” 63. Do you know, or have you heard, what the annual revenues of the Rohilla dominions
Major were preceding the Jate conqueft of that country ?

. MWKenzie, 64. Doyou kuow, or have you heard of the co ditiens upon which the Company’s troops
were fent to aflitt the Vizier in the Rohillaconqu-ft, an ' what were they ?

65. Do you know, or have you heard, that the 40 Lacks flipulated to the Company for the
aid of their forces fhould become due when the whole or when half of the Rohilla
country fhould be put into the pofieffion of the Vizier, or when an accommodation
fhould take place ?

66. Did the whole Rolilla country, Zabita Khan’s diftrict excepted, fall into the Vizier’s
pofltffion immediately upon the defcat of IHafiz Rhamut in April i774?

t”‘l &.:“f"' 7. Was Zabita Khan in the Vizigi’s Camp at the commencement of the war, and how long
Maior Hlan- did he remain? Did yo# underftand that he went to Delhi with the approbatibn of
iy, the Vizier ? or could he have left camp contrary to the Vizier’s pleafure ?

Majors €8. Suppofing yourfelf commanding officer of a body of trocps fent upon a particular ex-
W beazicand pedition to perform a certain fpecified and defined fervice, and fuppofing that fervice
{jf,", tf:ll accomplithed, would you think yourfelf authorifed to engage in farther fervice (un-
Muir. lefs defenfive) without receiving orders from Governuient for that purpofe ?

D uwoandary 69, Suppofing the Adminiftration who employed you had declared the fervice upon which
other Ficld you were fent fully performed, would you think yourfelf authorifed to undertake
z?x::“" o farther fervice without their fanétion ?

' 0. Suppofing the Adminiftration had dire¢ted you to make formal demand of the fum fh-
pulated for the fervice which you had performed, would you or would you not con-
fider fuch inftructions as a pofitive declaration on the part of your fuperiors that
fuch fum was become due?

71. And after fuch declaration of your fuperiors, that the fervice upon which you had been

i fent had been performed, and that the fum for which they had engaged in it had
become due, would you, as commanding officer, think yourfelf juftifiable in enter-
ing upon larther hoftilities without apprizing the Adminiftration, or giving them
opportunity of making new conditions for the advantage of the State or Government
you ferved?

72. Do youthink any general or commanding officer would be juftifiable in expofing, of
his own adthority, the whole or any part of the troops under his command to
danger, without the leaft profpect of any advantage to the State he ferved ?

73. Would you take upon you to employ the Company’s troops in putting an innocent
people to the fword unneceffarily and unprovoked, without receiving the moft pofi-

tive and explicit orders from thofe whom you believed were invefted with the power

of commanding you to give obedience to their orders ?

74. If you ventured upon fuch an aftion without proper authority, do you not think that.
the commiffion of it would be deemed a ftate crime of the moft heinous putiire, and
that you would be liable to'the fevereft refentment of Government? .

75- Did you not impute the condition in which you faw the Rohillas after the peace,® to th

effects of their beingcut off from the means of fupplying themfelves with,provifions?
Cols, Galliez, 76, From the condition in which you faw them, or from what you heard of them, and =
[Upton, Lef- ~ from the accounts you had of the fcarcenefs of provifions in their camp, how much
2 oagaan VR longer do you fuppofe it would have been poffible for them to have held ou: ? b
MKeazie, 77+ Suppofing the blockade had been continued, do you think the enemy would have been
Hannny, ber. mifhed, or under the neceffity of furrendering at difcretion in a fhort time?
. 78, How foon, in your opinion, would either of thefe events have happened ?

W b
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79. 1+l you hear that the eaemy were very fickly, and that they and their cattle were dying
in great numbers, particularly towards the end of the war ?

8o. Do you not think that the cnemy would have been eafier vanquithed in proportion as
they became emaciated by the want of provifions ?

81. Did you ever fee an army or people fo exceedingly reduced and broken in perfons and
{pirits as the Rohillas appeared to be atter the peace?

82. Did not the condition in which you faw them demonftrate to your convi&ion that the

blockade had the effect intended ?

Suppoling yourfelf commanding officer of an army, and exprefsly invefted by your
employers with the fole direttion of military operations in the field, would you not
confider yourielf at liberty to purfue fuch meafures as appeared to you the moft ad-
vifable, whether to attack or retrear, whether to blockade or ftorm the poft of an
enemy ? :

84. Suppoling the Rohilla country to yield a yearly fum exceeding or even equal to that

which the Vizier engaged to pay to us for the conqueft of it, and exclufive of the

_ plunder he and his troops may have got, doyou think he had a bad bargain ?

85. Do you think the Vizier, it he was obliged to pay us the forty Lacks for half the Ro-
hilla country, has reafon to complain when he has got the whole of it under his ab-
folute domiuion and government, and all the revenues, except the Jaghire fettled on
Fyzoolla Khan, who is his vaflul, and is in return under obligations of military fer-
vitude ? or would it have been for the honor of our nation to have put the Rohillas
to the iword rather than that matters were fo fettled ?

86. Suppoling you had commanded the armyat or beyond Pattergur, fuppofing the Admi-
niftration to have known perfeltly, from information tranfmitted by yourielf, that the
enemy were at Lall-Dang, and granting that they had, notwithftanding their
knowledge of that circumftance, addrefled you with a Lewter of thanks to yourfelf
and to the army under your command, informing you that they confidered the fer-
vice wvpon which you had been fent as fully accomplifhed by the reduction of
Pattergur ;3 would you naot, after the receipt of that Letter, have been ferupulous of
acling offenfively with the army under your command ?

8;. Suppofing you, as commanding officer, had received a Letter from the Adminiftration
about the 28th or 3cth of September, when you was clofe to Lall-Dang, expreflive
of their real fatisfaction ac hearing that the war was likely to be rerminated by an ac-
commodation, and expreffing alfo their hopes that his Excellency would conciliate
the affeftions of the Rohillas to his government by acceding to lenient terms
would you not (efpecially if you confider the Rohillas an ihjured people) think it
incumbent upon you tou forward the withes exprefled by your employers, by pro-
moting fuch pacific and conciliating difpofitions in his Excellency ?

88. Do you think that any officer unacquainted with, or who is not perfetly and intimately
in the knowledge of the inftruétions and orders under which another officer atts, is
{ufficiently qualified to judge of that officer’s conduct, or of the motives of it ?

89. Didyou ever declare it as your opinion, that the late Adminiftration had o right to hire
out Britifh {ubjeéts as they had done to the Vizier ?

-]
v

-99. Do you recolle¢t having avowed an opinion, that the Crown had a 'right to the forty

Lacks ftipulated to be paid by the Vizier for the fervice of the Englifh troops ?

g1. Did you ever declare that the army had a better right than the Company to the forty
Lacks ?

g92. Did you ever declare that you would be one of thofe who would profecute for your
fhare of the faid forty Lacks, and that if no perfon joined you, you yourfelf would
profecute, or be the means of the Crown’s laying claim toic?

‘ 93. Did you vilit the Vizier, or did he vifit you, during the whole courfe of the campaign ?

L
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K
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if not, who informed you of his fentiments ? condefcend upon his or their names.
94. Did you not frequently complain, that you thought his Excellency and his minifter, &c.
very deficient in the attention which you confidered due to your own ftation as an
\ officer of rank ? _ o ; .
5. Did you apply to Calonel Champion for his influence in procuring you a brigade ? if
"~ *you did, pleafe to condelcend as nearly as you can on the time you did fo.

. 96. Did the Colonel accordingly comply with your requeft ? Was an‘??fﬂ_ouun' given you

. of taking copies of the Letters which he wrote in your favour
. pleafe 1o produce fuch as you have. i i ; : )
97. Did you confider thefe recommendations as obliging and friendly in Colonel Champion?
98. Do you think it would have been inconfiftent with guchufnmdﬁup to have informed
B Cmel C::nlxlpioq wlr)hgt l{i(;;'l :’adfblcfm totlgct:'\e Vimcr ‘had alledged to his disfavour,
%m er that he might ju imfelf on pot :

I

if you have copics,

99. When
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Queries put to fundry Officers by Mr. Murray.  Appendix, Ne XXVI, F.

99. When Major Hannay was firft appointed to the commanc'} of the gre_nadier.corps before
the army arrived at Belgram, did you not confider it as a partiality in the Com-
mander in Chief to that officer, and did you reprefent by Letter on the occafion ?

100. Was you, orany of the Quarter-Mafters who were fubject to your orders, under the
heceflity of fending the whole or part of the carriage cattle to make two trips in order
to bring up the camp equipage berween Biffoulee and Chandoufy, or was you in-
formed of fuch a circumftance ? | _ .

101. Did you ever {erve a campaign in which the Company’s army a&ted in conjunttion
with the Vizier’s troops betore the Rohilla war, or was you ever in actual fervice in
this country before, and with native troops ?

102. Did you vifit the Rohilla poft after the peace, and did you there fee many graves and

a great quantity of carrjon?

103. Was the effluvia of thefe putrid bodies exceedingly offenfive to yourfelf? ‘

104. Do you not think the cffects of fuch a caufe would be a dreadful mortality amongt
the enemy ?

105. Did not the number of prepared graves, and the general appearance of the enemy’s
camp, lead you to belicve that fuch fatal confequences had actually happened, and
that they would have every hour increafed, to the entire deftrution of the enemy
if they did not foon furrender ?

106. Did you ever make reprefentations to Colonel Champion in favour of the Rohilla

rifoners ¢

107: Di% the family of Hafiz, when you went firft into the fort of Peelebut, beg your
interceffion with Colonel Champion in their favour ? and did not the eldeft, or one
of the fons, then complain that he was denied accefs to Colonel Champion ?

108. Do you recollect Colonel Champion’s having informed you, at the works etablihed
near Lall-Dang, that the Vizier had refufed to give a farthing in lieu of plunder ?

109. Was this foon after the conference which the Commander in Chiel had with the field
officers on that fubje& ?

110. Was Colonel Champion inftrumental in obtaining for you the office of Adjutant-General
immediately before he went up to the army ?

111. Was you in intimacy and friendthip with the Colonel at that time ?

112. Did heatterwards intereft himfelf by Letter to obtain the rank of Lieutenant-Colonel
for you as Adjutant-General ?

113. Did he on any fubfequent occafion recommend you by Letter, and endeavour to render
you effential feryice? -

i14. If he furnifhed you with copies or extralts of thefe Letters, pleafe to produce
them.

115. In whofe fervice was Collychurn immediately before he entered into Colonel Cham-
pion’s employ, and when did that happen ? Was he in your brother’s fervice ?

116. Did you caution the Colonel againft receiving him into his fervice fo foon as you knew
of the circumftance, or did you think it neceffary ?

11%. Did you hear of the manner in which the families of Mahub ulla Khan were plundered
and fearched for jewels, &c. before they were fent from Biffoulee, and are you
certain the Nabob was not prefent or in the houfes at the time? -

118, What number of troops of the Vizier’s were advanced before the brigade moved on
from lzixiuagur, how far advanced, and where and how long before the brigade
marched ¢ :

119. When the army was at Biffoulee, from whence was it faid the enemy drew their
fupplies of provifions ?

120. Was you the firft who brought that intelligence from Rampore and Moradabad,
and when?

121. How far were thefe places of refource from Biffoulee ?

122. Do you know that Colonel Champion did not advife the Vizier to fend out detach-
ments to intercept thefe fupplies ?

123. Would not you as a commanding officer think yourfelf well entitled to judge of
the propriety of fending detachments or not from any body of troops you com-
manded ? , :

124. Suppofing a commanding officer, having an imperfec account of the fituation, or
being miftaken in his idea of the pofition of an enemy, fhould attack them, do
you believe that the want of fuch perfet knowledge, and his being miftaken or
uninformed of the real ftrength of their fituation, might be the caufe of greater

*  danger, embaraffiment, and flaughter to the affailants ? MR B P
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- yourfelf or through Collychurn? ’

16@;&&3 put to fundry Officers by Mr. Murray. Appendix, NeXXVI, F, 453

t25. When the advanced diviflon of the army was ftrengthened, and the com
‘it given to Colonel Leflie, was you diffausfied with Colonel Champion on that
account ?

§26. When you got the command of the Seapoy grenadiers how many and what officers
were fenior to you with the army ?

12%. When did you join the army in the field ? - Maj, M*Kena

128. What did you underftand to be the general fenfe of the army at that time of the zie. ‘
Vizier’s condut in the war, and towards the Rohilla prifoners ?

129. Did you think the Company’s officers and troops were treated with a becoming
degree of attention by the late Vizier and by his troops ?

130. Did you command the Seapoy corps after your atrival at Biffoulee, and did you
find it neceflary to forbid or puta reftraint on intercourfe between the Company’s
Seapoys and the Vizier’s?

131. Be pleafed to affign the reafons which induced you to iffue that order for the good of
the fervice,

132, When you joined the army, did you not underftand that it was the general opinion
that Colonel Champion was thought rather too pliable and fubmiffive in his conduék
to the Vizier ?

133. What did you underftand to be the general fenfe of the army, and particularly of the
Field Officers, regarding the Rohilla war ?

134. Did you command the brigade when the army marched from Biffoulee ? Were our
troops well fupplied with neceflaries for undertaking fuch a campaign, or had you
occafion to report a deficiency in that refpect on the march? and was the camp
equipage in good order, and had the army the ufual compliment ?

s35. Did the Quarter-Mafters of corps, or any of them, complain of the want of a
fufficiency of carriage cattle for the expedition ?

136. Do you know, or did you hear, that the Vizier expreflfed a with, before Mr. Murray

. was [ent to the Rohilla camp, that an Englifh gentleman (hould be fent to treat
with Fyzoolla Khan ? .

137. About the time that Mr: Murray was fent to Lall-Dang by the Commander in Chief;
did you underftand or hear that any field officer was dilcontented or diffatisfied thae

he himielf was not pitched upon for that fervice ? , .

138. Do you know, or did you hear, that that officer exprefled himfclf to this purpofe, that

~ the rank of a field officer would have given or added dignity to the embaliy ?

139. Who was thatficld officer ?

140. What were ydur fentiments regarding the Addrefs preferred by the Field Officers on ;rlt
fubject of prize-money ? did you exprefs your opinion to the other fublcribers ?

141. Who framed that Addrefs, and why was it not addrefled to the Council in general ?

142. Did Colonel Champion affemble the Field Officers feveral times, and read to them
the Letters he reccived from. the Prefidency on the fubject of the rights of the
army? .

143. Did thyc ftate and purport of thefe Letters, in your opinion, encourage fuch an Addrefs
as was made on that fubject ? ; .

144. Since your arrival in Calcurta, did you fubfcribe a tranflation ofsthe joint Letter
received from the Rohilla Sirdars, and of the Letters which paflcd between Colonel
Champion and Hafiz ? . ;

145. What day was it reccived and fhewn to the Vizier, and at what time of day ?

146. Did the Vizier ever abate of the demand of two Crores of Rupees which he made
upon Hafiz, or authorize the Colonel to write Hafiz to that purport ?

147. Was the notandum fubjoined to the tranflation of the firlt joint Letter inferted in
your journal regarding it, taken down by you at the time, or as foon aftcrwards
as you could bring up your journal ? : . L

148. Did the Vigier declare before the aétion, at the time the Lietters were paffing between Lieut, Ros
himfelf and Hafiz and Colonel Champion, that he wanted at all rates to have the berts.
country, that it belonged of right to the Vizierue? o i

149. If you recollet a converfation between Colonel Champion and the Vizier, prior to
_the peace, regarding plunder that might be taken in cafe of an attack, pleafe to

% mention the day on which it pafled. ; i
- 150, Was theré any other gentleman prefent at the conyerfwon excepting yourfelf?
151, Are you certain whether Colonel Champion received Vackeels or meflengers from

1,

‘Fyzoolla Khan, of which he did not give information to the Vizier, either through

i

g2, Did you communicate to him the caufes which you might Bave heard it faid the Viziet
b § ,h“{/;ﬁgnedfor your Commander in C‘.’hgf’i mm;:g? Did
ok i S OB vl 155 i
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Queries put to Mr. N. Middleton by Mr. Murray. Appendix, N*XXVI. F,

153. Did Colone] Champion mention to you the doubts and uneafinefs he was under on
account of the want of explicit inftrutions from the Prefidency ? ‘

154. From whence, do you fuppofe, did the informations originate, upon which the queftions
have been put, regarding the converfation faid to have pafled between the Vizier
and the Colonel regarding the plunder which might be got at Lall-Dang in cafe of
an attack, and the queftions relative to converfations between Fyzoolla Khan and
the Vizier, and between yourfelf and the Vackeel, &c. &ec. ? ; e

155. Did you obferve that Colonel Champion had much trouble in adjufling matters
between the Vizier and the Rohilla Chief after he came into camp ? did you not
exprefs yourfelf to the Colonel to that purpofc?

156. Was you of opinion that the Vizier was a man of abilities in bufinefs ?

Col. Galliez. 157, Has application been made to you at any time, directly or indirecly, to enquire

after or to give intelligence of caufes of complaint or accufations againtt Colonel
Champion before or fince he left the army ?

Queftions propofed to Mr. N. Middleton.

OES it confit with your knowledge, and are you certain, that
Colonel Champion at any time received Vackeels or meflengers from
the Rohillas of which he did not give intimation to the Vizier ?
2. Did Colonel Champion at any time require of youto condefcend upon any mifcondu@
or improper action of Collychurn?
Did he, or did he not, inform you that he would difcard Collychurn, if you or any
other perfon would particularize an inftance of his bad cunduct during the cam-
ign?
4. Did you think the Vizier had fufficient authority over his fervants or dependants to
enforce his orders ? )
What opinion did you entertain of the Vizier’s abilities in bulinefs ?
Was you ever in the Vizier’s dominions when any other army of the Company’s
ated in conjunction with the Vizier’s army ?
7. Did you underftand that the Englifh officers of the army in general confidered them-
felves properly treated by the Vizier ?
8. Where was the Vizier in the morning of the 23d April, when the ation was fought
between the brigade and the Rohillas ?
9. Had he a large tzain of artillery and a large body of his army with him?
10. Did you ever inform Colonel Champion of the caufes to which the Vizier imputed his
conduct before Lall-Dang?
11. Did Colonel Champion ever inform you that he laboured under great doubts and

difficulties with regard to inftruftions ?
. Has the Vizier, or has he not, frequently prevaricated with you, and told you untruths,

QuesTION 1.

3.

S

12
and have you not declared yourfelf to that purpofe in writing or otherwife to Colonel
Champion ? ;

13. From whont had you your information regarding the treaty between the King and

the late Vizier for a partition of the Rohilla conqueft, and the condition by which

it was alledged the King was bound to go in perfon? Did the Vizier tell you fo,

or whoelfe, and upon what authority ?

14. From your own knowledge, and what you have heard of Fyzoolla Khan’s yearly in-
come and revenues previous to the late war, what do you believe his treafures
could really have amounted to at the time of his retrear, and at the couclufion of
the war? :

Have you a copy of the Fitte-Nama faid to have been publithed in the Vizier’s do.
minions ? from whom did you reccive it, and are you certain that it is a genuine
copy ?

16. 1f the Rohillas had no opportunities of defawing fupplies of provifions from the
neighbouring ‘countries, do you not think the blockade muft have been the more

effectual on that account ?

17. Do you know that Mahub ulla Khan was in the battle of the 23d of April, and if he
went from home did he atually join Hafiz ? or do you certainly know that it was
nut in confequence of a confent with the late Vizier?

18. Upon what grounds was the fuppofition founded, which you have mentioned, of the

Vizier’s acquilitions in-plunder, and what information had you on that head ?

i b 96 " ~ 19. Do

15.

s




Queries put to fundry Officers by Mr. Murray. Appendix, N°XXVI. F,
19, Do you think, if Colonel Champion was at pains to get a knowledge of thefe par-
+ ticulars, he could not get as good and authentic information of them as yourielf, or

any other perfon ?

20. Do you recollect having mentioned, or having heard, that the meffenger who carried
the news of the defeat of Hafiz to the Vizier exprefled himfelf to the Nubob
to this purport; ‘¢ There never was fuch a victory fince the days of Timur; and
“ what rendered it moft glorious is, its having been obtained entirely by your
¢ Excellency’s own troops.”

21. Do you know, or did you hear, that his Excellency reprimanded and recalled a French-
man who attempted to advance or crofs the river which was in front the morning
of the altion with fome guns, the ufe of which had been promifed to the Com-
mander in Chief ?

22. Did the late Commander in Chief apply to the Vizier through you, or with your
knowledge, for lead to make 10,000 mufket balls? was 1t often promifed, and
ever furnifhed ? .

23. When, or about what time, was the firft application made?

Queftions to be propofed to Licutenant-Colonels Wilding, Muir, and Upton,
and Majors Mackenzie and Blair, and Captain M'Pherfon.

QuEsTION 1. O you know, or did you underftand from Colonel Champion, or

D otherwife, that he had endeavoured to render Colonel Leflie and

Major Hannay fervices; that he was inftrumental in getting the appointment of

Adjutant-General for Major Haonay before he went up to the army; that he

wrote letters in his favour whilft there, and interefted himfelf to obtain a brigade

for Colonel Leflie in September or O¢tober laft, juft before his return to the
Prefidency ? :

2. From what you know and have obferved and heard of Colonel I.eflie and Major
Hannay’s conduct and converfation regarding Colonel Champion .before they left
camp, or on thuir way to, or fince they came laft to the prefidency, do you
or do you not know or believe that they diflike or bear him prejudice and ill-
will?

3. In particular, from the knowledge you have, or from what you have heard of Colonel
Leflie’s conduét towards Colonel Champion before his departure for Furope, do
you or do you not believe that he has a prejudice and ill-will towards Colonel
Champion ?

-Queftions to be propofed to Lieutenant-Colonel Dow.

QuEsTION 1. ROM your knowledge of the cuftoms and manners of the natives,
do you believe it to be a received opinion amongft them, that a fu-
perior prefenting a Khclaut, or drefs, to an inferior 1s a mark of favour, diltintion,
and proreétion? . y
2. Had you evet a Dewan or Binyan named Collychurn in your fervice, and how
long ?
3. Did hcg or did he not ferve you with fidelity, and to your fatisfaction?

Queftions to Captain Baillic and Lieutenant Clark.

QuesTION 1. A S there any mufket ammunition left at Biffoulee, and in the
ftore boats when the army left Biffouleg, and how much fit for
fervice ? . :
2. When did the ammunition from Chunargur reach camp from Ramgaut ?
3. Do you recolleét the late Commander in Chief’s directing ‘the ‘artillery to abate their
. fire in courfe of the aétion of the 23d April?

Quettions to Serjeant Holler at (_?vhunat.gqu.‘f\

g Qq;sriog o, HEN did you arrive at Ramgwt with the ammunition from
‘ S Nk Rl Chunargur, and when did you deliver over charge of it to the

perfon fent from camp to receive it ? i

o, A
ook

2. How .






